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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE (DR DAVID V K CHAO) 

(July 2018 to June 2019) 
 

The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (HKCFP) has had a fruitful year. 

I am truly delighted to see that our beloved College has been gaining 

recognition in promoting and providing Family Medicine training locally and 

internationally. As different countries around the world become more and more 

aware of the benefits that primary healthcare services can bring to the whole 

healthcare system, the governments are more willing to invest in enhancing the 

training and the services related to general practice and family medicine. This 

has also created more incentives and opportunities for general practitioners 

and family physicians around the world to gather in international conferences 

to share our experiences, challenges and the potential solutions. Through 

sharing and reflecting on our experiences and practices, we are refreshed and inspired, as well as 

encouraged and motivated to tackle the future challenges ahead. 

 

In October 2018, Dr Angus Chan, our Immediate Past President, and I flew to the southern hemisphere to 

participate in GP18 - the Annual Conference of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners 

(RACGP) at Gold Coast, Australia. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) aiming at further enhancing 

standards in education and training in General Practice for both Colleges has been signed on that occasion. 

The MOU helped to strengthen the mutual support and continuing relationship between the RACGP and 

the HKCFP. 

 

A week after GP18, a team of over 70 Hong Kong delegates, including myself, met at Seoul, Korea for the 

WONCA World Conference 2018. The theme of the conference was “Primary Care in the Future: 

Professional Excellence”. One of the highlights of the Conference was the inauguration of Dr Donald Li as 

the new WONCA President. Bravo, Dr Li! Dr Donald Li, one of our College’s past Presidents, is the second 

Hong Kong family doctor to lead WONCA, after Dr Peter Lee, our College’s Founding President, who led 

WONCA between 1992 – 1995.  

 

At the beginning of 2019, another highly remarkable MOU was signed between World Health Organisation 

(WHO) and WONCA. It was to recognise the key role played by family doctors in achieving universal health 

coverage by providing comprehensive, patient-centred and professional care.  

 

The importance of primary healthcare within a healthcare system, especially the potential benefits to ease 

the financial burden and to alleviate the heavy workload of secondary care, has been reaffirmed around the 

world, and Hong Kong is no exception. Enhancement of primary care services was one of the major 

initiatives in the Hong Kong government’s health care document, “Towards 2025: Strategy and Action Plan 

to Prevent and Control Non-Communicable Diseases in Hong Kong” published in 2018. The Hong Kong 

government has planned to set up District Health Centres (DHCs) progressively in 18 districts in Hong Kong. 

She has put her plan into action by setting up the first DHC at Kwai Tsing this year. Aiming at raising public 

awareness on personal health management, enhancing disease prevention and strengthening multi-

disciplinary healthcare services in the community, a new operation model focusing on community 

participation would be adopted at DHCs.  

 

I attended and spoke in the Media Spring Luncheon hosted by Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) 

in February 2019, entitled “Promoting Primary Healthcare Development to Enhance the Overall Health 

Service Standard”. Strengthening primary healthcare services was one of the main directions for HKAM’s 

annual plan. Our College was invited to take the coordinating role to collaborate with other relevant HKAM 

Colleges in providing training to cope with the development of primary care services in Hong Kong, as well 

as the training needs derived from the setting up of DHC. 

 

In response to the Fiscal Budget 2019 - 2020 delivered in February 2019, I wrote to the Government 

reiterating that training enough quality Family Physicians is the key to enhance the cost effective utilisation 

of medical resources in Hong Kong. And in order to achieve the World Health Organisation (WHO) goal of 

“health for all”, it was also strongly advocated that for every Hong Kong citizen, there should be one regular 

Family Physician who is familiar with one’s health conditions and the Family Physician would be in the best 

position to provide continuity of care for the patients, avoiding the risks such as those related to repeated 

investigations, and potential drug-drug interactions due to polypharmacy. Our College has been providing 

a variety of Continuing Medical Education and Continuing Professional Development programmes to 

practising doctors in Hong Kong for many years, e.g. Diploma in Family Medicine (DFM), Annual Refresher 
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Course, symposia and workshops. 

 

Family doctor’s “gatekeeping” role also earned increasing recognition in Mainland China. In March 2019, I 

attended the 6th Cross-Strait Congress of General Practitioners, in Zhengzhou, China. The theme this year 

was, “Seize the opportunity to deepen the integration and development of general practice”. Medical leaders 

from the Mainland, Taiwan, Macau, Australia, the United Kingdom, the United State of America, Hong Kong 

and many other countries shared their experiences and expertise. Dr Donald Li, Dr Lau Ho Lim and I 

presented the HKCFP Donald Li Scholarship 2019 to 3 outstanding primary care doctors from the Mainland 

China during the Congress. Just like the previous Scholarship recipients, the 3 recipient doctors would be 

arranged to have further family medicine exposure in Hong Kong.  

 

The 4th Annual General Practice Training Forum of the Chinese Medical Doctor Association (CMDA) cum 

the 16th Annual Conference of General Practice and community Health was held at Beijing, China in April 

2019. Some familiar faces were met in the Conference, namely the Honorary Director-General of WHO, Dr 

Margaret Chan Fung Fu-chun, and the President of WONCA, Dr Donald Li. They delivered inspiring 

speeches to the participants. The fundamental and pivotal role of primary care in public healthcare system 

in all countries was reinforced. The importance of Continuing Professional Development (CPD) to both 

trainers and trainees in order to improve the quality of primary healthcare services were reiterated. 

 

In addition to the “gatekeeping” role, the crucial role of family doctors in providing lifelong care to patients 

throughout the various stages in life was highlighted in the World Family Doctor Day (WFDD), which has 

been marked to be celebrated on 19 May each year by WONCA since 2010. We had our World Family 

Doctor Day Symposium in May 2019 to celebrate the Day. To echo with the theme of the WFDD, “Family 

Doctor – caring for you for the whole of your life” was also the theme of our Symposium. The Keynote 

address of the Symposium, “Challenges to family doctors in providing life-long care”, was delivered by Dr 

Donald Li. Dr Li not only shared the challenges that family doctors faced, but also reiterated the central role 

of family doctors in looking after patients in the community in his speech. 

 

WONCA Asia Pacific Region Conference 2019 took place in mid-May 2019 at Kyoto, Japan. It was hosted 

by the Japan Primary Care Association with the them, “Medical generalist: bring forward a brighter future”. 

Many colleagues from Hong Kong participated in the conference with presentations on a wide range of 

clinical topics relevant to primary care and family medicine practice and research. 

 

Our 32nd Conjoint Fellowship Conferment and Diploma Presentation Ceremony 2019 and the 30th Dr Sun 

Yat Sen Oration were successfully held in early June 2019. One of our long-term friends from the RACGP, 

Dr Chris Hughes, the RACGP Censor of Tasmania, joined the ceremony to confer the Conjoint Fellowship 

to successful candidates. We were most privileged to have two distinguished new Honorary Fellows this 

year, Prof Gabriel Leung from Hong Kong and Prof Amanda Howe from the United Kingdom. Prof Howe 

was also the Orator of the 30th Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration, titled “Identity, Humanity and Equity – Three 

Principles for Modern Times”.  

 

With the wholehearted dedication and active participation from our Censors, Executives, Council members, 

College members and our secretariat, the Collegial events have been run very smoothly over the last twelve 

months. I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to all of you! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dr David V K CHAO 

President  



6 

HONORARY SECRETARY’S MESSAGE (DR WILLIAM C W WONG)  

(July 2018 to June 2019) 

 

The Council have put in tremendous efforts at all fronts for the advocacy 

and standard setting for our discipline in the last year. I must say it was 

again a busy year for the College Council and the Secretariat. 

 

In December 2018, the College has elected the new President, Dr David 

Chao. We thank the immediately Past President, Dr Angus Chan for his 

leadership and guidiance in the past four years. I have every confidence in 

Dr Chao to lead the College into a challenging era with the set-up of District 

Health Centres (DHC) and the conjoint examination with RACGP. 

 

The College is working with the Primary Care Office (PCO) to assist to the CME/CPD checking for all 

existing enrolled practicing doctors in the Primary Care Directory. For those not fulfilling the requirement 

they would be inactivated from the Directory. Practicing doctors who fall into the inactivation list will not be 

able to participate in the Vaccination Subsidy Scheme from 2019 onwards. 

 

Primary care is the first level of care at community level to provide continueing care to individuals and 

families. Further to the Policy Address 2017, a steering committee on primary healthcare development was 

formed and the first DHC was planned to be set up in Kwai Tsing District. Dr Angus Chan and Dr Lau Ho 

Lim represented the College to attend the DHC consultation sessions and actively responded to the 

discussion of the model setting. It was noted that DHC would become a district primary healthcare hub and 

be supplemented by sub-district satellite centres and a network of multi-disciplinary teams providing multiple 

access and service points. There would be no doctors in the DHC Hub or satellite centres. All Primary Care 

Directory listed doctors working in the district will automatically be included in the network of doctors unless 

one actively opts out.  

 

Given the Government has completed the tender to provide services for the Kwai Tsing DHC, the College 

deems that family doctors should play an important coordination role in DHC. With reference to the imminent 

2018 Policy Address, HKCFP had held a press conference in September to urge the Government to 

increase resources in family doctors training and recommends optimal utilisation of DHC, achieving the 

goal of “One Family Doctor for Each Citizen” to improve our primary healthcare system. 

 

Apart from setting high standards in the training of family doctors, HKCFP has nurtured world leaders at 

international family doctors’ organisations. Dr Donald Li, Past President and incumbent Censor of HKCFP, 

assumed his new role as the President of the World Organisation of Family Doctors (WONCA) in the 

WONCA World Conference in Seoul, Korea in October 2019. Dr Donald Li is the second family doctor from 

Hong Kong to lead WONCA, the first being the late Dr Peter Lee who was WONCA President from 1992-

1995. The fact that HKCFP in her 41‐year history has produced two WONCA Presidents attests international 

appreciation of the standard of Family Medicine locally. 

 

There will be more and more important work awaiting ahead of us. I would take the opportunity to thank all 

the contributions from our dedicated fellows, broads and committee members. I would also like to express 

my sincere gratitude to the Secretariat and Ms Erica So, our General Manager, for their hard work to make 

all these events run smoothly throughout the year. 

 

 

 

Dr William C W Wong 

Honorary Secretary 
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BOARD OF CONJOINT EXAMINATION 

(April 2018 to March 2019) 

Chairman:  Dr CHAN Hung Chiu  

Members:  Dr IP Pang Fei       (Chief Examiner &  

          OSCE Case Writing Subcommittee Coordinator) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim      (KFP Coordinator) 

 Dr Kinson K S LAU      (Deputy KFP Coordinator) 

 Dr Kenny KUNG      (AKT* Coordinator) 

 Dr NGAI Ka Ho      (Deputy AKT* Coordinator) 

 Dr Billy S H CHUI      (OSCE Coordinator) 

 Dr CHAN Wing Yan      (Deputy OSCE Coordinator) 

 Dr Barry T F BIEN 

 Dr Winnie W Y CHAN 

 

Ex-officio: Dr Angus M W CHAN      (to December 2018) 

 Dr  David V K CHAO      

 Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN      (from December 2018 onwards) 

 Dr William C W WONG     

    

Board of Censors: Prof Cindy L K LAM      (Chief Censor) 

 Dr Stephen K S FOO      (Censor) 

 Prof Donald K T LI      (Censor) 

 

Staff: Ms Charlotte Y C CHEUNG (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms Suki Y C LUNG    (Administrative Executive) 

 

*Multiple Choice Questions (MCQ) has been renamed as Applied Knowledge Test (AKT) since 2018 

Panel of Examiners: 

(A) Active Examiners 

Dr Eva T K AU 

Dr AU YEUNG Shiu Shing 

Dr Barry T F BIEN 

Dr CHAN Hung Chiu 

Dr Patrick H W CHAN 

Dr Carroll K L CHAN 

Dr CHAN Kin Ling 

Dr CHAN King Hong 

Dr Kitty K C CHAN 

Dr CHAN Kwok Wai 

Dr CHAN Man Hung 

Dr CHAN Man Li 

Dr CHAN Mei Tak 

Dr Angus M W CHAN 

Dr David S L CHAN 

Dr Eddie T CHAN  

Dr CHAN Wan Wai 

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN 

Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang 

Dr Andrew Y H CHAN 

Dr CHAN Yuen Yan 

Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr CHAU Kai Man 

Dr CHENG Michael 

Dr CHEUNG Hard King 

Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung 

Dr CHEUNG Man Ha 

Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee 

Dr Cindy P S CHEUNG 

Dr CHEUNG Sze Man 

Dr Paul W K CHEUNG 

Dr Florence Y L CHEUNG 

Dr CHEUNG Ying Man 

Dr CHING Kam Wing 

Dr Billy S H CHUI 

Dr Anita W M FAN 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

Dr Elsie O S FANG 

Dr FOK Peter Anthony 

Dr Stephen K S FOO 

Dr FUNG Yuk Kwan 

Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr HO Kam Wai 

Dr HO Kin Sang 

Dr Steven Y K HO 

Dr HUI King Wai 

Dr Wilson K S HUI 

Dr Eric M T HUI 

Dr HUNG Wai Yin 

Dr IP Pang Fei 

Dr IP Sui Wah 

Dr Silvia S M KAM 

Dr KAN Chi Ho 

Dr KO Wai Kit 

Dr KONG Che Wan 

Dr KUNG Kenny 

Dr Betty K M KWAN 

Dr KWAN Sin Man 

Dr Michael C H KWOK 

Dr Mary B L KWONG 

Dr Douglas T C LAI 

Dr LAM Hiu Lam 

Dr LAM Hon Man 

Prof Cindy L K LAM 

Dr LAM Paul 

Dr Catherine T M LAM 

Dr LAM Wing Kwun 

Dr LAM Wing Wo 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr LAU Kam Tong 

Dr Kinson K S LAU 

Dr LAU Po Shan 

Dr LAU Tai Wai 

Prof LEE Albert 

Dr Tony C K LEE 

Dr Glenn K L LEE 

Dr LEE Man Kei 

Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

Dr Daniel C Y LEUNG 

Dr LEUNG Gin Pang 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

Dr Sandy M H LEUNG 

Dr Violet T M LEUNG 
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Dr LI Yim Chu 

Dr Raymond C H LO 

Dr Dana S M LO 

Dr Benny L P LUI 

Dr NG Ching Luen 

Dr NG Mei Po 

Dr NG Mei Yee 

Dr NGAI Bernard 

Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr PANG Siu Leung 

Dr SHEK Chun Chiu 

Dr SHEK Hon Wing 

Dr SIN Ka Ling 

Dr SIU Pui Yi 

Dr Gloria C Y SO 

Dr TAM Ho Shan 

Dr TAM John Hugh 

Dr Tammy K W TAM 

Dr TAM Kit Ping 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO 

Dr TONG Leon George 

Dr TONG Po Hei 

Dr TSE Hing Choi 

Dr Keith K K TSE 

Dr TSIM Koon Lan 

Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

Dr Gene W W TSOI 

Dr TSUI Hoi Yee 

Dr WAN King Tung 

Dr WONG Chak Tong 

Dr Roger C K WONG 

Dr WONG Chi Lung 

Dr WONG Kwok Ho 

Dr Marcus M S WONG 

Dr WONG Nai Ming 

Dr Amy O Y WONG 

Dr WONG Pak Hoi 

Dr WONG Pak Kin 

Dr WONG Suk Ching 

Dr Nerrissa S C WU 

Dr WU Tsz Yuen 

Dr YAU Lai Mo 

Dr Solomon T L YEUNG 

Dr YEUNG Sau Ying 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan 

Dr YOUNG Sui Wah 

Dr Frances S K YU 

 

(B)  Examiners 

Dr Dawn H F AI 

Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 

Dr CHAN Laam 

Dr Mark S H CHAN 

Dr CHAN Suk Yin 

Dr Thomas Y L CHAN 

Dr Dickson Y S CHAN 

Dr CHEUNG Yu 

Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Dr CHOY Lai Chun 

Dr Daniel W S CHU 

Dr John T N CHUNG 

Dr FU Sau Nga 

Dr Linda Y F HUI 

Dr Andrew K K IP 

Dr Albert Y F KONG 

Dr Hilary C S KU 

Dr KWOK Chi Sum 

Dr LAI Wing Yiu 

Dr Johnny C Y LAM 

Dr Stanley K H LAM 

Dr LAM Pui 

Prof LAM Tai Pong 

Dr Augustine T LAM 

Dr LAW Tung Chi 

Dr LEE Kai Yuen 

Dr LEE Wang Yat 

Dr LI Heung Wing 

Prof Donald K T LI 

Dr LIANG Jun 

Dr LUK Wan 

Dr NG Chun Bor 

Dr Catherine S W NG 

Dr NG Ventura Lorna 

Dr NGAN Sze Yuen 

Dr Monica P S SHUM 

Dr SO Kon Ping 

Dr Roger P SO 

Dr TSUI Kwok Biu 

Dr TSUI Pun Nang 

Dr Wendy W S TSUI 

Dr WAN Wing Fai 

Dr WONG Chuen Ho 

Dr WONG Kwai Wing 

Dr YIU Ming Pong 

Dr YUEN Shiu Man 

(C) Trainee Examiners 

Dr Cheuk Christina 

Dr Clarence C M CHOI 

Dr Susanna L L HUNG 

Dr LEUNG To Fung 

Dr Mariana C K SHUEN  

Dr TAM Wah Kit 

Dr TAM Yick Sin 

Dr George T W TSE 

Dr YIP Wing Ki 

Dr YUEN Fu Lam 

(D)  Case-writers 

Dr Barry T F BIEN 

Dr CHAN Man Hung 

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN 

Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang 

Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr CHENG Michael 

Dr CHEUNG Hard King 

Dr Cindy P S CHEUNG 

Dr Billy S H CHUI 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr IP Pang Fei 

Dr IP Sui Wah 

Dr KUNG Kenny 

Dr Catherine T M LAM 

Dr LAM Wing Kwun 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr LAU Kam Tong 

Dr Kinson K S LAU 

Dr Glenn K L LEE 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

Dr NG Mei Po 

Dr SIN Ka Ling 

Dr SIU Pui Yi 

Dr Gloria C Y SO 

Dr TAM Ho Shan 

Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

Dr WONG Chak Tong 

Dr Roger C K WONG 

Dr WONG Chi Lung 

Dr WU Tsz Yuen 

Dr YAU Lai Mo 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man 

 

The Examination 

The format of the 32nd Conjoint Examination 2018 was the same as in previous years, consisting of both Written and Clinical 

Examinations. 
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Preparatory works for both segments started early from the beginning of the year. Thanks to the tremendous contributions of our 

Board members, our case writers and all our examiners. 

Workshops for Examiners 

 1st Examiner Training Workshop for OSCE 15 July 2018 
(Sunday) 

 2nd Examiner Training Workshop for OSCE 19 August 2018 
(Sunday) 

 
 Workshop on Standard Setting for KFP exam paper 
 

21 August 2018 
(Tuesday) 

 
 Workshops on Standard Setting for AKT exam paper 
 

12 & 13 August 2018 
(Sunday, Monday) 

 
 KFP Marking Sessions 
 

31 August & 1, 2 September 2018 
(Friday, Saturday & Sunday) 

  
 Case-writing Meeting for AKT 21 January 2018 

(Sunday) 

 Case-writing Group Meetings for OSCE March, June - August 2018 
 

 3rd Examiner Training Workshop and On-site Examiners’ Rehearsal for OSCE 7 October 2018 
(Sunday) 

Information Seminar and Rehearsal for Candidates 

An information seminar for candidates sitting the clinical segment was organized on 10 June 2018. 21 candidates attended. The 

purpose of the seminar was to provide first-hand information to the candidates on the various aspects of the examination (including 

the logistics, expectations, marking and standard setting methods, and so on), in order to help them become better prepared for the 

examination and to minimize their anxiety and misunderstandings. Interactive sessions with video-taped scenarios were also 

conducted. 

 

Same as last year, candidates this year were invited to the rehearsal for OSCE on 7 October 2018 in participating as ‘real candidates’ 

in the prepared clinical scenario. The purpose was to allow the candidates to have an actual on-site experience of the OSCE. 29 

candidates attended. 

Number of candidates 

There were altogether a total of 71 candidates sitting for this year’s examination, with 63 candidates of Category I and 8 Category II 

respectively.  

 

44 candidates sat for the Written Segments (39 Cat I and 5 Cat II candidates), while 34 candidates sat for the Clinical Examination 

(27 Cat I and 7 Cat II candidates).  

 

The total numbers of candidates for the years from 2009 to 2018: 

0

50

100

150

Total no. of Candidates (2009-2018)
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The Conjoint Fellowship Examination 

Written Segments: 

AKT 12 August 2018 (Sunday) HKAM Jockey Club Building 

KFP 21 August 2018 (Tuesday) HKAM Jockey Club Building 

 

Successful candidates in Written Examination 2018 

1. Dr BIEN Szu Hsin Davina 

2. Dr CHAN Chung Po 

3. Dr CHAN Ki Chun Enoch 

4. Dr CHAN Kiu Pak Kilpatrick 

5. Dr CHAN Wing Chi Annie 

6. Dr CHAN Yuen Ching 

7. Dr CHIU Yuen Man 

8. Dr FUNG Kevin Koon Fun 

9. Dr HO Ka Ki 

10. Dr HUI Yuk Ting Candy 

11. Dr HUN Pek I 

12. Dr KAM Ngar Yin 

13. Dr LAM Ching Man 

14. Dr LAM Ki Yu 

15. Dr LEE Wing Lam 

16. Dr LEE Ying Cheung 

17. Dr LEUNG Lai Man 

18. Dr LIM Martina 

19. Dr LO Wei 

20. Dr MAURELLET Juan-Domingo 

21. Dr NG Kai Man 

22. Dr NG Ngai Mui 

23. Dr TANG Suet Chung Lawson 

24. Dr TSAI Hung Yu 

25. Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang 

26. Dr WONG Chi Wing 

27. Dr WONG Chiu Lun 

28. Dr WONG Chung Yan 

29. Dr WONG Man Ho 

30. Dr WONG Sze Man 

31. Dr WONG Wing Ning Rosanna 

32. Dr WONG Yu Man 

33. Dr YAU Chi Yan 

34. Dr YAU Tang Fai 

35. Dr YIP Pui Leung 

36. Dr ZHANG Dingzuan 

 

The passing rates of the Written Examination for the years 2009 – 2018: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Clinical Segment: 

OSCE 28 October 2018 (Sunday) Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 

Successful candidates in Clinical Examination 2018 

1. Dr AU-YEUNG Kevin Yik Hin 

2. Dr CHAN Wing Yi 

3. Dr CHEN Liujing 

4. Dr CHOI Man Kei 

5. Dr CHOW Pui Yin Melody 

6. Dr HOU Jing 

7. Dr LAI Joyce Ho Yan 

8. Dr LAM Ting 

9. Dr LAU Ka Man 

10. Dr LEE Shek Hang 

11. Dr MAURELLET Juan-Domingo 

12. Dr NG Hoi Yee 

13. Dr NGAI Ming Leon 

14. Dr POON Wing Kwan 

15. Dr PUN Yat Hei 

16. Dr SUEN Victoria Gee Kwang 

17. Dr TAM Kwan Wai 

18. Dr TSANG Pui Lim 
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Written passing rate (2009 - 2018)

Cat. I passing rate Cat. II passing rate Overall passing rate
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19. Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang 

20. Dr TSUI Sau In 

21. Dr YAU King Sun 

22. Dr YEN Pang Fei 

23. Dr YEUNG Ka Yu Doogie 

24. Dr YIP Hoi Man 

25. Dr YUEN Chi Hang 

 

The passing rates of the OSCE Examination for the years 2009 - 2018: 

 

External Examiners from RACGP 

Dr Kaye ATKINSON (RACGP Censor in Chief) and Dr Hung The NGUYEN (RACGP Censor, National Faculty of Aboriginal and Torres 

Strait Islander Health) were the visiting External Examiners from RACGP this year for the OSCE Examination on 28 October 2018. 

Security  

Strong emphasis was put on the security measures as in previous years. All preparatory procedures were carried out according to our 

security protocols, including: 

1. Strict adherence to the Working Protocol by staff handling all the Examination Materials. 

2. Use of designated Case-Writing Subcommittee, consisting of Examiners, led by our Chief Examiner, to be responsible for the 

preparation of all the OSCE cases. 

3. A centralized process for development of examination cases and marking schemes, with examination materials exposed to a minimal 

number of persons. 

4. Strict adherence to the security protocol for the OSCE exam by all examiners (including strict prohibition of electronic transference of 

exam materials). 

5. Sharing cases with RACGP to widen our exam case bank. 

6. Transmission of confidential exam materials through the secured sharing platform as suggested by RACGP. 

7. Presentation of OSCE exam materials to examiners only on the day of exam. 

8. Continual appeal to the professional integrity of all involved in running the exam. 

9. Proper “quarantine” of candidates of the morning and afternoon sessions respectively on the day of OSCE exam. 

10. Forbiddance of use of any electronic devices by candidates inside exam venue. 

11. Prompt data entry of candidates’ scores on the same day of exam. 

All these measures, among many others, were well adhered to throughout the whole examination period. 

Quality Assurance 

Quality assurance of our examination was maintained by the large number of experienced local examiners in our panel. Pairing up 

experienced examiners with less experienced examiners also helped to improve its validity. Our QA Examiners and External Examiners 

continued to assess and monitor the standards of our local examiners as well as the role players. 

 

To facilitate better understanding for our External Examiners in our Cantonese speaking stations during the OSCE examination, instant 

translation (in writing) had been arranged. 

 

Comments on individual examiner by various QA Examiners had been grouped and sent to each examiner for reference. 
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Examination Prize: "Dr Peter C Y Lee Best Candidate Award 2018" 

It was the fourteenth year that the College offered this prize. From the year 2013, this award was renamed “Dr Peter C Y Lee Best 

Candidate Award” for commemorating Dr Peter Lee’s contribution to the discipline of family medicine. The “Dr Peter C Y Lee Best 

Candidate Award 2018” was presented to Dr TSANG Pui Lim, who had passed the Conjoint Examination at one setting and achieved the 

best performance in the Examination. 

 

Acknowledgement 

The Board of Conjoint Examination would like to thank our Chief Examiner and segment Coordinators for contributing so much of their 

time and effort throughout the entire examination, all the Board members for their active participation, the External Examiners from RACGP 

for their continual advice and support, all our QA Examiners, Case-writing and Marking Examiners, Trainee Examiners, and Role Players 

for their time and contributions before and during the examination, and all our College secretarial staff and helpers for their excellent 

administrative and supportive works. 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF DIPLOMA IN FAMILY MEDICINE 

(July 2018 to June 2019) 

 

Chairman: Dr Simon C L AU       

Board Members:  Dr Stephen K S FOO (Course Director) 

(2018 - 2019) Prof Cindy L K LAM (Course Advisor)  

 Prof Donald K T LI (Course Co-ordinator)  

 Dr David V K CHAO (Course Co-ordinator) 

 Dr Edmond C W CHAN (Deputy Chairman and Chairman, DFM 

Assessment & Examination Subcommittee) 

           Dr CHAN Man Li            (Co-ordinator, DFM Clinical Examination) 

           Dr Bobo H Y TSUI            (Co-ordinator, DFM Written Examination)  

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN            (Module I & II Co-ordinator) 

 Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing  (Module III Co-ordinator) 

 Dr Mary B L KWONG (Module IV Co-ordinator) 

 Dr WONG Pak Hoi (Module V Co-ordinator) 

 Dr WAN Kwong Yu (Co-ordinator, Shunde CFM) 

 Dr Mark S H CHAN (Board Member) 

 

Ex-officio:  Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer) 

 Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 

   

Staff:  Ms Alky H K YU (Executive Officer) 

      

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE  

 

The DFM course entered her sixteenth year. This was a successful year as twenty six candidates graduated in the DFM course in 2019. 

The Board praised the candidates for their hard work and commitment in learning new knowledge and skill in Family Medicine and 

congratulated them on their wonderful accomplishment. 

 

CFM Course Shunde 2018 

This year has been another memorable year to the DFM board. Our Board has successfully completed the forth Shunde CFM course with 

the tremendous support of the Shunde Heath Department and generous sponsorship from Shunde District Min Yuen Tong (順德綿遠堂). 

The Board has modified and translated the CFM materials to cater the cultural needs of our Shunde colleagues. Our Board members 

have found this new Shunde teaching experience rewarding and meaningful. We highly enjoyed the local Shunde food and the hospitality 

of our friendly Shunde Health official and colleagues. The Shunde Health officials and our Board both wish to continue the Shunde CFM 

course in the coming year to benefit more Shunde doctors. 

 

Eighteen candidates fulfilled the requirement of the course and were awarded the certificate. 

 

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to thank Professor Cindy Lam, Professor Donald Li, Dr Stephen Foo and our 

President, Dr David Chao for their continuous support and guidance. Lastly, I like to express my deepest appreciation to Dr Chan Chi Wai 
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for leading his team in organizing a very successful examination, Dr Chan Man Li for his dedication in clinical examination, Dr Bobo Tsui 

for her dedication in written examination and all the hardworking Board members, teachers and examiners for their unfailing support and 

selfless contribution. I also wished to thank our secretarial staff Ms Alky Yu for her diligent work. 

 

DFM Course 2018-2019 

The DFM Course consisted of five Modules: Principles of Family Medicine (Distance Learning), Common Problems in Family Medicine 

(Distance Learning), Essentials of Family Medicine (Structured Seminars & Tutorials), Clinical Updates (Updates and Clinical Attachment) 

and Practical Family Medicine (Practical Workshops). The timetable of the Course was as follows: 

 

HK DFM 

Date  Topic Teaching Staff 

6 July 2018 (Fri) Introduction Session Course & Module Co-ordinators 

9 July 2018 –  

30 September 2018 
Module I – Principles of Family Medicine Distance Learning Module I 

4 August 2018 (Sat) Module V Consultation Skill Workshop I Dr Simon C L AU 

1 September 2018 (Sat) Module V Counseling Skills Workshop Dr Aster W Y LAU 

8 September 2018 (Sat) Module III Introduction to Family Therapy Dr Edmund W W LAM 

15 September 2018 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 1 Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

22 September 2018 (Sat) Module III Clinical Audit & Quality Assurance Dr Lisa P K CHENG 

29 September 2018 (Sat) Module V Musculoskeletal Workshop Dr Simon C L AU 

 Module II Introduction Session Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

13 October 2018 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 2 Dr CHAN Man Li 

14 October 2018 –  

25 November 2018 
Module II – Common Problems in Family Medicine Distance Learning Module II 

20 October 2018 (Sat) Module III Care for the Elderly & Chronic Illness Professor LAM Tai Pong 

27 October 2018 (Sat) Module V Orthopaedic Injection Workshop Dr LAU Hoi Kuen 

3 November 2018 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 3 Dr Mark S H CHAN 

17 November 2018 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 4 Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

24 November 2018 (Sat) Module V Women's Health Workshop Dr Clement L K CHAN 

1 December 2018 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 5 Dr Simon C L AU 

8 December 2018 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 6 Dr CHAN Man Li 

15 December 2018 (Sat) Module IV – FM Clinical Skills Enhancement 7 Dr Mary B L KWONG 

5 January 2019 (Sat) 
Module III – Evidence-based Medicine & Critical 
Appraisal 

Dr Aster W Y LAU 

  

DFM Assessment and Examination Subcommittee 

Chairman:   Dr Edmond C W CHAN 

Subcommittee Members: Dr CHAN Man Li   Clinical Examination Co-ordinator 

Dr Bobo H Y TSUI   Written Examination Co-ordinator 

    Dr YEUNG Chi Keung Written Examination Co-ordinator (Chinese Translation) 

   Dr CHUNG Kin Wing Case Leader 

   Dr FOK Peter Anthony Case Leader 

   Dr Ken K M HO  Case Leader 

   Dr LAI Sheung Siu  Case Leader 

   Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing Case Leader 

   Dr Wanmie W M LEUNG Case Leader 

 

Panel of Examiners: 

QA Examiners:  Dr Simon C L AU   Prof Cindy L K LAM 

Dr Stephen K S FOO  

      

Examiners:   Dr CHAN Pui Wai   Dr NG Cham Chi   

 Dr CHANG Wells  Dr SHUEN Chuen Kwok 

 Dr CHING Tak Kwan  Dr SIN Ming Chuen 

 Dr CHUNG Wai Ho   Dr WONG Kwok Hoi 

   Dr FOK Chun Man  Dr Kitty K WONG 

   Dr HUI King Wai  Dr WONG Tak Lung 

   Dr KWAN Chun Man Dr WU Kwok Keung 

   Dr KWOK Chi Ming   Dr YAU Kin Chung 

   Dr LEE Sum   Dr YIP Tze Hung 

 

Trainee Examiner:  Dr CHENG Kit Wing 
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Pre-examination Workshop: 

The simulated OSCE workshops were organised for candidates before the final examination on 9 March and 16 March 2019 (Saturdays) 

for HK DFM. Those who were not familiar with the examination format would have a chance to practice through the simulated workshops. 

 

Written and Clinical Examination: 

The written examination and the clinical examination were held on 27 and 28 April 2019 (Saturday and Sunday). 

 

Graduation Ceremony 2018 - 2019 

The Graduation Ceremony of the 16th DFM Course of the College was held jointly with Conferment Ceremony on 6 June 2019. 

 

The DFM 2018-2019 successful candidates were: 

Dr Stewart T K CHAN  Dr LEE Chung Yan  

Dr CHANG PIVE Sok Cheng Dr LEI Sao Kuan  

Dr CHEN Li Dr LIU Hin Yeung  

Dr CHEN Yun Ju   Dr NG Ngai Mui  

Dr CHENG Siu Han Dr PANG Kwan  

Dr CHEUNG Cheuk Hee Dr PONG Fei Fung  

Dr CHUNG Ka Chun* Dr SAU Chung Ying  

Dr Joshua W M FOK Dr TSANG Sharon  

Dr FU Wing Kai 
 
 
 
 

Dr XIANG Yuling 
 
 

 

Dr KWOK Kwok Lung Dr Amy Y WANG  

Dr LAM Lap Dr Gordon C B WONG 

Dr Tony K F LAU Dr Caroline M S YUNG 

Dr Valerie W Y LAU  

 

* Passed with Distinction 

Twenty five candidates completed the 16th DFM Course and were awarded The Certificate of Diploma in Family Medicine in 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

(April 2018 to March 2019) 

 

Chairman:       Dr Alvin C Y CHAN  

 

Board Members (2019): 

Dr Edmond C W CHAN (Deputy Chairman, Board) 

Dr Solomon T L YEUNG (Deputy Chairman, Board) 

Dr Simon C L AU (Coordinator, Neuro-Musculoskeletal Interest Group) 

Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing (Chairman, Moderator Subcommittee) 

Dr CHAN King Hong (Coordinator, Community Education Subcommittee)  

Dr Mark S H CHAN (Coordinator, Interest Group in Mental Health & Psychiatry in Primar Care 

and Coordinator, Interest Group in Medical Humanities) 

Dr David S L CHAN   (Chairman, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Subcommittee)  

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN (OLMH Coordinator, Community Education Subcommittee) 

Dr CHEUNG Ying Man (Deputy Chairman, Video Viewing & Video Library Subcommittee) 

Dr DAO Man Chi (Coordinator, Interest Group in Radiology) 

Dr Winson W Y HUNG  (Liaison Person with QA&A Committee) 

Dr KONG Che Wan (Deputy Chairman, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Subcommittee) 

Dr KO Siu Hin (Coordinator, Interest Group in Evidence-based Medicine) 

Dr Mary B L KWONG (Chairlady, Clinical Attachment Subcommittee, Advisor of CPR Subcommittee and liaise person with 

RCHK) 

Dr Florence S S LAI (Coordinator, Assessment Enhancement Subcommittee) 

Dr Edmund W W LAM (Coordinator, Interest Group in Dermatology) 

Dr Aster W Y LAU (Coordinator, Interest Group in Counselling) 

Dr Bea W S LAU (Coordinator, Interest Group in Geriatric) 

Dr Francis W T LEE (Coordinator, Interest Group in Evidence-based Medicine) 

Dr Danny P K MA (Coordinator, Interest Group in Chronic Disease & Geriatrics) 

Dr Lorna V NG (Liaison Person with Hong Kong Primary Care Conference Organizing Committee) 

Dr MO Kam Chuen (Chairman, Video Viewing & Video Library Subcommittee) 



 15 

Dr Leon G TONG (Coordinator, Interest Group in Medical-legal Alert) 

Dr TONG Siu Man (Chairman, Small Discussion Group Subcommittee) 

Dr TSUI Hing Sing (Member) 

Dr WONG Ka Wah  (Liaison Person with Editorial Board) 

Dr WONG Pak Hoi (Deputy Chairman, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Subcommittee) 

Dr Yvonne Y C LO                  (Chairlady, Annual Refresher Course) 

 

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO (President) 

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer) 

  Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 

       

Staff: Ms Teresa D F LIU           (Executive Officer) 

 Ms Windy W L LAU          (Administrative Executive)   

 

 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE  

 

During the year 2018-2019, the Board continued to organize a series of different educational activities for our members and doctors in 

Hong Kong. These abundant activities are outlined below.  

 

Video-Library and Video Viewing Session 

For the year 2018 we arranged 11 video sessions in our Wanchai College premises on a monthly basis. Video Library has been set up 

since July 2005. Video viewing session is scheduled on the last Friday of every month, at 2:30pm – 3:30pm, at the 8/F, Duke of Windsor 

Social Service Building, Wanchai. The topics are selected from the lectures in our Luncheon CME activities, various Interest Groups and 

Annual Refresher Course. These viewing sessions are open only to our members. 1 CME point per session is accredited to colleagues 

who attend the viewing session. A maximum of 2 CPD points may be accredited (subject to submission of satisfactory report of 

Professional Development Log). It is encouraging that the number of attendance is increasing. The topics presented were as follows: 

 

- The Interactive Roles of Primary Care Professionals and Pain Specialist 

- VTE and NOAC Bleeding Management 

- Elderly Care 

- Holistic Diabetes Management – Is it all about Glycaemic Control Only? 

- Protecting multi-morbid AF patients against stroke in the ageing population: What is the evidence-based approach?” 

- Common Facial Skin Diseases: Acne, Rosacea 

- Management of Urticaria – An Update 

- Update on GERD Management guidelines : From World Gastroenterology Organisation (WGO) guidelines to Asia Pacific 

consensus 

- Update on the Management of Diabesity 

- Peripheral Neuropathy 

- Aging and Malnutrition 

- Nutrition & Cognition (Can Nutritional Interventions Delay or Prevent Alzheimer’s?) 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank Dr MO Kam Chuen and Dr CHEUNG Ying Man in running the monthly video session 

very smoothly and especially Dr Cheung’s effort in producing the high quality video. With Dr Cheung’s works, the participants will feel like 

attending the luncheon meeting live while watching the video.   

 

If you have interest to view these videos, you can contact our secretaries and they are happy to make arrangement for you. 

 

Small Discussion Group 

There was 60 active Small Discussion Groups in 2018. Participants will gain 1 CME point per session.  In addition, speaker or moderator 

will be accredited 1 CPD point. 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank Dr TONG Siu Man and other Board members in reviewing all the synopses and 

protocol, making sure the standard is reached.  

 

Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Training: Advanced Primary Care Life Support 

The Advanced Primary Care Life Support (APCLS) organized by the CPR Subcommittee was launched in 2017 in order to align with our 

Sister College (RACGP) requirement of Advanced Life Support components, namely the airway management, neck support and 

automated external defibrillation (AED) on top of basic life support. This year, we had 51 members who passed the APCLS Examination 
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and were awarded the Certificate of Competency in Advanced Primary Care Life Support, which is also endorsed by the Resuscitation 

Council of Hong Kong. 

 

The Board would like to express our deepest appreciation to our external examiners from RCHK, namely Dr LEUNG Chin San in the 

instructor and examination workshops. Furthermore, sincere thanks must be given to Dr David S L CHAN, Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing, Dr 

KONG Che Wan, Dr Mary B L KWONG and Dr WONG Pak Hoi in coordinating the training manuals, various workshops; and all instructors 

and trainee instructors as listed below for their time and effort in helping out the CPR training and examination for our members. 

 

Instructors: Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing, Dr Patrick H W CHAN, Dr CHEUNG Ying Man, Dr Clarence C M CHOI, Dr John T N CHUNG, Dr 

HUI Lai Chi, Dr KO Siu Hin, Dr KONG Che Wan, Dr KWONG Hon Kei, Dr Michael C H KWOK, Dr LAU Pui Ling, Dr Daniel C Y LEUNG, 

Dr Selina S W LEUNG, Dr Danny P K MA, Dr MO Kam Chuen, Dr SUNG Tai Wai, Dr TAM Wah Kit, Dr Keith TSE, Dr WONG Ka Wah, Dr 

Amy O Y WONG, Dr WONG Pak Hoi and Dr WONG Wai Man. 

 

Trainee Instructor: Dr Luke C Y TSANG 

 

For trainee instructor(s) who have fulfilled the requirement would be promoted instructor in the following year. 

 

Clinical Attachment 

Being the Chairman, I am glad that we have the ENT clinical attachment this year with the support from Department of Otorhinolaryngology, 

Head and Neck Surgery, CUHK. The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Prof Michael TONG, Prof C A van HASSELT, Dr 

John WOO and the staff of their department for organizing the ENT clinical attachments in the Prince of Wales Hospital. 

 

The clinical attachments are aimed at in-depth and structural teaching of our members in these specialties. 

 

Assessment Enhancement Course  

Assessment Enhancement Course remained the most welcome course in her 19th year of establishment. I would like to thank all the tutors 

in contributing their time and effort in this course. They help tremendously in improving the skills on consultation, physical examination 

and other various aspects of the participating doctors. These are very useful to our members in preparing the Conjoint Fellowship 

Examination. The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr Florence S S LAI in coordinating the course and all tutors for their 

hard work as follows: Dr CHOW Kam Fai, Dr CHUNG Kin Wing, Dr DAO Man Chi, Dr FOK Peter Anthony, Dr LEE Sum, Dr LUK Chun 

Wa, Dr Samuel J S SIU, Dr WONG Kwok Hoi, Dr WONG Chun Fai and Dr XU Shaowei. 

 

Annual Refresher Course 

Annual Refresher Course is the traditional major year-end event for 38 years. This year, we had 5 weekday lectures and 4 Sunday 

workshops and were attended by over 163 members. Thanks for all those participants who returned their evaluation questionnaires. The 

comments and suggestions are valuable in helping us to plan for the coming ARC in the coming year. 

 

LUNCHEON LECTURES 

Date Topics Speakers 

27 Nov 2018 (Tue) Paediatrics Respiratory 
Approach to a child with snoring in primary care setting 
 

 
Dr Theresa N H LEUNG  

29 Nov 2018 (Thu) Hypertension 
Intensifying blood pressure control - How? How low? 
 

 
Dr Michael P H CHAN 

4 Dec 2018 (Tue) Mental Health 
Recent Advance in Management of Depression 
 

 
Dr Vanessa T C WONG  

6 Dec 2018 (Thu) Allergic Rhinitis 
Update on Guidelines for Management of Allergic Rhinitis 
 

 
Dr Eric C H TANG 

11 Dec 2018 (Tue) CPR Update 
CPR Knowledge Update 

 
Dr Carol S N LI 

 

SUNDAY WORKSHOPS 

25 Nov 2018 (Sun) Pre-DM and CV 

1. Different International Hypertension Guideline: Which one to follow? 

2. Pre-diabetes: Why and how should we treat? 

 

1. Dr Andy W K CHAN 

2. Dr Francis C C CHOW 

2 Dec 2018 (Sun) DM and CV 

1. DECLARE: the implication to primary care physician 

2. Key updates in oral anti-platelet therapy – from studies & guidelines to 

real life clinical practice 

 
1. Dr Rose Z W TING 

2. Dr CHEUNG Ling Ling 

 

9 Dec 2018 (Sun) Hypertension and Angina 

1. Advancing the angina treatment paradigm 

 

1. Dr LEE Kin Tong 
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2. New opportunities for treating systolic hypertension through fixed-dose 

combinations 

2. Dr CHEUNG Chi Yeung 

 

16 Dec 2018 (Sun) Oncology Update 

1. An update of new developments and toxicities of different modalities of 

cancer therapies - targeted therapy, immunotherapy, radiotherapy, 

chemotherapy 

2. How family physicians can co-manage with oncologists in patients with: 

a. Breast cancer & prostate cancer;  

b. Colorectal cancer; 

c. Lung cancer 

 
1. Prof Roger K C NGAN 
 
 
 

2a. Dr Alex K C LEUNG 

2b. Dr LAW Chi Ching 

2c. Dr WONG Kam Hung 

 

The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank Dr Robert H S TSUI in organizing the course and all the speakers in making our 

ARC very successful 

 

Annual Updates, Luncheon Meetings, Seminars and Workshops  

Updates seminars and weekday luncheon lectures were organized regularly throughout the whole year with the support from various 

specialties including Cardiology, Dental, Endocrinology, ENT, Surgery, Gynaecology, Dermatology, Gastroenterology, Geriatric, 

Nephrology, Neurology, Oncology, Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics, Paediatric, Psychiatry, Respiratory and Rheumatology. 

 

The following were our programmes since the last report: 

Dates Topics Speakers 

10 Apr 2018 
Start right in hypertension management for reducing cardiovascular events 
 

Prof Claudio BORGHI 

11 Apr 2018 
Combating Sympathetic Overdrive – An under-recognized cardiovascular 
risk factor 
 

Prof Zbigniew GACIONG 

7 May 2018 
Benefits and Practical Use of Ultra-Long Acting Basal Insulin - A Primary 
Care Perspective 
 

Prof Richard HOLT  

17 May 2018 
1. How to support our patients controlling asthma beyond coping it? 
2. Influzena vaccination – protecting asthma patients from infection and   
exacerbation 

1. Dr WONG King Ying 

2. Dr Philippe BUCHY 

15 Jun 2018 
 
Prescription of Insulin Therapy in a Primary Clinic 
 

Dr Rose Z W TING  

29 June 2018 
Nutrition Interventions to Change Health Behaviors and Prevention of Type-2 
Diabetes in Asian Population 

Dr Osama HAMDY  

11 Jul 2018 
 
The Evolution of HIV Treatment Guidelines 
  

Prof Shinichi OKA 

13 Jul 2018 Innovative Smoking Cessation Therapy Methodology Dr LAI Chih-kuan 

26 Jul 2018 
 
Aging and Malnutrition 
 

Dr LEE Cheung Kei 

17 Aug 2018 The Latest Update On The Management of Diabetic Macular Edema Dr Timothy Y Y LAI 

18 Sep 2018 Early Diagnosis and Intervention for Dementia in Community 

 
Prof Henry BRODATY 
Dr David L K DAI 
Dr Donald K T LI 

20 Sep 2018 
Pre-Diabetes: Why and How should we treat? 
 

Prof Ian CAMPBELL 

28 Sep 2018 

1. Individualization of diabetes treatment: patients with different level of CV 
risk 
2. The impact of novel DM drugs on CV outcomes: From RCTs to Real 
World Evidence and clinical practice 

Prof Jonathan SHAW 

8 Oct 2018 
 
Treatments for Patients with Oral and Jaw Diseases in Primary Health Care 
Setting 

Dr Alfred LAU 
Dr Edward HUI 
Dr Raymond CHOW 
Dr Miko LO 

9 Oct 2018 
 
How to Manage Your High Risk Patients with Thromboembolic Stroke Safely 
and Simply 

Prof Valeria CASO 

23 Oct 2018 
 
Polypharmacy in MDD – are we doing it right? 
 

Dr Gustavo ALVA M.D. 

27 Oct 2018 

1. Door Opening to a Bright Light: Evolving Concepts of Dyslipidemia, 
Diabetes, and Cardiovascular Disease 

2. Dyslipidemia and Intervention Disparities: A Dual Approach to Reduce 
Cardiovascular Events 

3. Is Dual Treatment Approach More Neuroprotective? Stoke Prevention and 
Management 

1. Dr CHOW Chun Chung 

2. Dr LEE Wai Luen 

3. Dr WONG Ka Sing 

3 Nov 2018 
 
Choosing Wisely: A revolution in the prescribing process 
 

Prof Martin DAWES 
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24 Nov 2018 Update Course in Urogynaecology 

Dr LEE Lao Wan 
Dr Symphorosa S C CHAN 
Ms Anny TONG 
Ms Ivy YIU 
Dr Cecilia W CHEON 
Dr GO Wing Wa 
Dr Paulin W S MA 
 

12 Dec 2018 Changing treatment goal in neuropsychiatric disorders Prof TANG Siu Wa 

17 Jan 2019 
 
Redefining HIV Treatment Management beyond Viral Suppression 
 

Dr Corklin STEINHART 

19 Feb 2019 Casting new light in diabetes journey from basal initiation to intensification Dr Norman N CHAN  
   
5 Mar 2019 Prediabetes - Insights to prevent a preventable disease Prof Paolo POZZILLI 

 

The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank all guest speakers in our various College scientific and educational events.  

 

The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing, the Moderator Chairman, Dr Alvin C Y CHAN, Dr CHAN 

King Hong, Dr FONG Ting, Dr HO Ka Ming, Dr Memei KWOK, Dr Bea W S LAU, Dr Yvonne Y C LO, Dr TONG Siu Man, Dr TSE Sut Yee 

and Dr Robert H S TSUI, Dr YAU Kin Chung, Dr Frances S K YU and Dr YU Yee Tak for being the moderators. 

  

The Board videotaped the updates and lectures, which are kept in our video library for video viewing sessions and for members’ access 

through the secretariat at Wanchai. Those members, who cannot attend the lectures that they are interested in, can re-visit through seeing 

the videotape in our Wanchai premise. Our College plans to upload these lectures and Updates on to the website for Board of Education 

so that all members could access at home.  

 

The Board would like to thank all those members for giving us comments or returning evaluation forms after attending the lectures or 

Updates. Their valuable comments would enable the Board to arrange lectures to meet the learning needs of our members in the future. 

Again, members are encouraged to submit their CPD logs after attending these lectures and Updates to gain additional CPD points. 

 

Certificate Course 

Three certificate courses were organized in 2018 with the co-organization with Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital (OLMH), United Christian 

Hospital (UCH) and Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) respectively. 

 

Refresher Course for Health Care Providers 2018/2019 co-organized with OLMH 

Dates Topics                             Speakers 

8 Sep 2018 Urology update for primary care Dr CHU Wing Hong  

6 Oct 2018 Sports Medicine Dr Vincent YU 

10 Nov 2018 Common foot and ankle problems Dr LEE Hin Lun  

8 Dec 2018 Primary care cardiology conditions and ECGs Dr LEUNG Sum Kin  

12 Jan 2019 Home physiotherapy Ms Dora FUNG 

16 Feb 2019 Sports nutrition Ms LAM Nga Sze  

9 Mar 2019 Inflammatory skin conditions in primary care Dr Francis F C IP 

27 Apr 2019 Children and adolescent mental health challenges in primary care Dr LAM Wing Wo  

11 May 2019 Upper gastrointestinal/liver diseases- an update for primary care Dr WONG Wai Chuen  

1 Jun 2019 Alarming skin conditions in adults and elderlies Dr NG Shun Chin 

  

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Winnie W Y CHAN and all the guest speakers. 

 

CME Course for General Practitioners 2018 co-organized with UCH 

Dates Topics             Speakers 

22 Mar 2018 Management of Syncope in Primary Care Setting Dr YUE Chiu Sun 

10 May 2018 Assessing Febrile Frail Elderly Patients Dr Edmund K Y SHA 

5 Jul 2018 Update on Injectable Diabetes Mellitus Treatment Dr TSANG Man Wo 

13 Sep 2018 Minor Orthopaedic Procedures and Injections Dr Esther C S CHOW 

8 Nov 2018 
Update on Managing Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) 

and Autism 
Dr YIP Kim Wai 

29 Nov 2018 Management of Paediatric Dermatological Conditions in the Community Dr David C K LUK 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinators, Dr David V K CHAO and Dr. Danny P K MA and all the guest 

speakers. 

 

The Board would also like to thank Dr Gary K K AU, Chairman, HKMA Kowloon East Community Network, in helping to organize the CME 
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Course for General Practitioners 

 

 

CME Course for Health Personnel 2018 co-organized with UCH 

Dates Topics              Speakers 

14 Apr 2018 Management of Menopausal Problems Dr Cindy M Y CHAN 

9 Jun 2018 Update on Management of Acute Visual Loss Dr Candice C H LIU 

11 Aug 2018 Management of Hearing Loss Dr Wendy M Y KWAN 

13 Oct 2018 Update on Management of Lower Urinary Tract Symptoms in Primary 
Care Settings 

Dr CHENG Kwun Chung 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinators, Dr David V K CHAO and Dr. Danny P K MA and all the guest 

speakers. 

 

The Board would also like to thank Dr Gary K K AU, Chairman, HKMA Kowloon East Community Network, in helping to organize the CME  

Course for Health Personnel 

 

Certificate Course on Bringing Better Health to Our Community 2018 co-organized with QEH 

Dates Topics Speakers 

26 May 2018 1. Case Sharing on Child Abuse 

2. Approach to Suspected Child Abuse 

3. Hyperlink to Social Support to Family with Child Abuse 

1. Dr KWONG Hon Kei 

2. Dr LOUNG Po Yee and Dr Andy KWOK 

3. Ms Karre CHUNG  

30 Jun 2018 1. New AHA Hypertension Guideline 

2. Role of Ambulatory blood Pressure Monitoring in Kowloon Central 

Cluster GOPC 

3. Practical Tips on Home Exercise for Hypertension  

1. Dr CHAN Kam Tim 

2. Dr Ken K M HO 

 

3. Ms Intonia CHOW  

28 Jul 2018 1. Not to be Missed Eye Disease in Primary Care Setting  

2. Non-contact Tonometer Result? How to Interpret 

3. Update on Management of Refractory Error in Children, What a GP 

Should Know 

1. Prof Jason YAM 

2. Ms Yammie Y C CHAN 

3. Prof Jason YAM 

 

25 Aug 2018 1. Management of Patient with Knee Pain (Sport Injury & Degeneration) 

2. Allied Health Service for Knee Pain Management 

3. Practical Tips on Home Exercise for Knee Pain 

1. Dr Paul S C YIP 

2. Dr David CHAN 

3. Ms Margaret W Y POON 

22 Sep 2018 1. GOLD 2018 Guideline & Smoking Cessation 

2. COPD-6 & Early Detection of COPD in Primary Care 

3. Model of COPD Care in Kowloon Central Cluster GOPCs  

1. Dr LING Sai On 

2. Ms Phoebe F S LAI 

3. Dr Clarence C M CHOI and  

Dr Phoebe F Y MAN 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr CHAN King Hong and all the guest speakers. The Board would 

also like to thank Dr Primus L C HUI, Dr HUI King Wai, Dr KO Siu Hin, Dr LAI Siu Wai and Dr TAM Wah Kit for being the moderators: 

 

The Seminars on Management of Common Skin Problems in General Practice were held in 2018 with the details below: 

Seminars on Management of Common Skin Problems in General Practice 

Dates Topics Speakers 

 
22 April 2018 

 Benign skin lumps and conditions: seborrheic wart, hypertrophic 
scar, keloid, pyogenic granuloma etc. 

Dr WONG Sze Man 

 Viral disorders of the skin 

 Fungal disorders of the skin  

 Bacterial infections of the skin 

 Infestations of the skin 

Dr HO King Man 

6 May 2018 

 Common Pediatric skin problems 

 Common clinic procedures (e.g. skin scrapings for microscopy, 
skin biopsy, cryotherapy, skin testing for allergy, introduction to 
phototherapy 

 Introduction to application of Laser treatment 

Dr David C K LUK 

 Drug eruptions 

 Solar damage & common skin cancers 
Dr Mimi M CHANG 
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20 May 2018  

 Eczema and contact dermatitis 

 Seborrhic dermatitis & Rosacea 

 Urticaria 

 Pigmentary disorders 

 Pityriasis rosea and lichen planus 

Dr CHAN Yung  

10 June 2018 

 Psoriasis  

 Bullous disorders of the skin 

 Acne 

 Hair and nail problems 

 Cutaneous manifestation of systemic diseases 

 
Dr LEE Tze Yuen  

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank all the guest speakers. The Board would also like to thank Dr Aster W Y LAU, Dr 

Yvonne Y C LO and Dr TSE Sut Yee for being the moderators. 

 

Collaboration between Hong Kong College of Family Physicians and Primary Care Office, Department of Health 

 

Chronic Disease Management (CDM) Training Course 

Mental health, diabetes management and knee pain management were the common chronic diseases that primary care doctors would 

encounter daily. The Primary Care Office (PCO) of Department of Health and the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (HKCFP) had 

continued to jointly organized a Chronic Disease Management (CDM) training course for primary care doctors to update their knowledge 

and enhance the skills in better managing patients with these common chronic conditions. 

 

The course consists of 3 Wednesday symposiums with the following details: 

Dates Topics Speakers 

9 Jan 2019 1. Diagnostic Approach to Lumbosacral Spinal Pain and Management in 

Primary Care 

2. Home Exercise for Low Back Pain 

1. Dr NGAI Ho Yin 

 

2. Ms Heidi FUNG 

16 Jan 2019 1. Chronic Cough in Adult: Diagnosis, Management & Preventive Care 

2. Exercise prescription for COPD 

1. Dr Maria LEUNG 

2. Mr Stanley LEE 

23 Jan 2019 Management of Common Mental Health Problems - Role of Mindfulness 

and its Application in Primary Care 

Prof Samuel WONG 

 

Certificate Course on End of Life Care for Primary Care Doctors 

The course co-organized by the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, Haven of Hope Sister Annie Skau Holistic Care Centre and 

Jockey Club End of Life Community Care Project, Faculty of Social Sciences, the University of Hong Kong. The course aims to promote 

the role of family physicians in the provision of end of life care in the community; to equip family physicians with the knowledge and 

resources in offering end of life care to their patients; to facilitate the collaboration between palliative care specialists and family physicians. 

The course consists of 8 hours of interactive seminars (i.e. 4 seminars and 2 hours each) and 1 optional visit to Haven of Hope Sister 

Annie Skau Holistic Care Centre will be provided to all course participants.  

 

The topics presented were as follows: 

Dates Topics Speakers 

17 Feb 2019  
1. Introduction of Palliative Medicine & Overview of Palliative Care 

Services in Hong Kong 
2. Advance care planning and advance directive Dr Paul K S WONG 

Dr Tracy W T CHEN 

3 Mar 2019 
Symptoms control for terminal patients 

- Opioid usage by GPs in the community for end of life care 

17 Mar 2019  
1. Psychosocial and spiritual needs of patients, practical tips and 

community resources 
2. Family-based bereavement care from pre-death to post-death 

Dr Amy Y M CHOW 

7 Apr 2019 

End of life care:  
1. What the family doctors can do, 
2. The legal & practical aspect on home care 
3. Case sharing 

Dr Welgent CHU 
Dr Jonathan K C LAU 
Dr Luke C Y TSANG 
Ms Paula YEUNG 

9 Apr and 25 Apr 2019 Site visit to Haven of Hope Sister Annie Skau Holistic Care Centre  

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank all guest speakers, JCECC and to HOHCS for accommodating the site visit 

arrangement. 

The Board would like to thank all the moderators Dr Bea W S LAU, Dr TSE Sut Yee and Dr WAN Kwong Yu as well. 
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Professional Development Subcommittee 

Since 2005, nine Interest Groups have been formed under Professional Development Subcommittee Clinical Family Medicine, Chronic 

Disease and Geriatrics, Counseling, Dermatology, Evidence-based Medicine, Medico-legal Alert, Mental Health and Psychiatry in Primary 

Care, Medical Humanities and Neuro-Musculoskeletal Interest Groups. 

 

Our Interest Groups provide a platform for all members of our College in public and private sectors to meet and exchange their experience. 

Members are encouraged to participate and present their cases or problems for discussions or role-play for sharing. Sharing experience 

is an important mode of gaining knowledge. Both the experienced and less experienced doctors can benefit from their participation. 

 

Sharing problem cases with specialists or experts will provide peer support, skill-mix, knowledge transfer and bridging the professional 

gap. This will help to solve our clinical problems and queries, upgrade our standard, raise our morale, and increase our job satisfaction. 

This will also promote early awareness, clinical governance and risk management in respect to different medical fields, to assure a better 

management and a high-quality health care for the public. 

 

The Interest Group in Dermatology scheduled to have regular bimonthly meeting on the first Saturday afternoon of odd months (except 

public holidays) in the year 2018. We had 5 meetings in 2018. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

6 January 2018    Is it really dermatitis?                      Dr LEE Tze Yuen 

3 March 2018    Cutaneous Manifestations in Spondyloarthritis                                                  Dr SUNG Chi Keung  

5 May 2018    Common Facial Rashes                                                                                   Dr Bessie B S TONG 

7 July 2018    Dermatology Case Studies                                                                                   Dr LAM Yuk Keung 

1 September 2018    Role of Topical Treatment on AD Patients                                                    Dr Steven K F LOO 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Edmund W W LAM and all the guest speakers who had contributed 

their time and effort in preparing the lectures for us. The Board would also like to thank Dr Edmund W W LAM and Dr Simon C L AU for 

being the moderators. 

 

The Interest Group in Mental Health and Psychiatry in Primary Care scheduled regular bimonthly meeting on the first Saturday 

afternoon of even months (except public holidays) in the year 2018. We had 5 meetings and 6 speakers in 2018. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

2 June 2018 NGO Mental Service Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

18 August 2018 European Experience on Fighting drug abuse Dr Aaron F K LEE 

6 October 2018 
Mental Health Assesssment in Primary Care: How our Counterpart is doing it? 

The Australian GP Mental Health Care Plans 
Dr Jonathan K C LAU 

*20 October 2018 The Humanity Aspect in Geriatric Mental Health Care Dr Chris LUM 

*1 December 2018 
Traditional Chinese Culture and Medical Humanities-  

Case discussion on filial piety 中國傳統孝道於醫學人文案例展示 
Dr Dana LO 

 

*The October and December meetings were joint meeting with the Interest group in Medical Humanities. 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Mark S H CHAN and all the guest speakers who had contributed 

their time and effort in preparing the lectures for us. The Board would also like to thank Dr Mark S H CHAN for being the moderator. 

 

The Interest Group in Counselling 

Counseling is a professional relationship that empowers diverse individuals, families, and groups to accomplish mental health, wellness, 

education, and career goals. Counseling skills are important in daily management of our patients on the aspects of psychosocial issues 

and health education, such as life style modification. Counseling is one of the effective means for developing human potential. Interest 

Group in Counseling is established and will provide some training to the beginners by sharing of experience with expertise and members, 

who are interested in Counseling in primary care setting. We had 4 meetings in 2018. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

10 March 2018 
Counselling and Support for Patients with Advanced Illness 

(Joint Meeting with Interest Group in Chronic Diseases and Geriatric) 

Dr Paul WONG and PSS Team 
of Haven of Hope Hospital 

26 May 2018 What family doctors need to know when communicating with deaf families?  
Representative from Children 
of Deaf Adults (CODA) 

14 July 2018 Workshop on Satir Family Therapy for family doctors Miss Angela K Y WONG 

15 September 2018 Introduction of Common Counselling Approaches 
Dr Aster W Y LAU, Dr Anthony 
K Y HO and Dr Dana S M LO 
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The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Aster W Y LAU for her hard work and all the guest speakers for 

their time in sharing their knowledge. 

 

The Interest Group in Evidence Based Medicine  

Interest Group in Evidence Based Medicine aims to introduce the development of evidence based medicine and show how to apply 

evidence based medicine in general practice. We had 2 meetings in 2018. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

19 May 2018 Evidence-based Influenza Vaccination: Who should get it? Dr HUI Lai Chi 

13 October 2018 EBM Approach to Common Mental Disorders in Primary Care Dr KWONG Hon Kei 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Francis W T LEE and all the guest speakers for their knowledge 

and skills sharing. The Board would also like to thank Dr Victor S W IP and Dr Aster W Y LAU for being the moderators. 

 

The Interest Group in Medical Humanities  

Interest Group in Medical Humanities aims to form a regular platform for sharing and developing knowledge and skill in the medical 

humanities. We had 5 meetings in 2018. 

 

Dates Topics Speakers 

09 June 2018 
Walk with people recovered from mental illness: Medical humanities, trail walker, 
psychiatrist and more 

Dr Willy WONG 

04 August 2018 Global Development in Medical Humanities: We are not alone Dr Mark CHAN 

*20 October 2018 The Humanity Aspect in Geriatric Mental Health Care Dr Chris LUM 

*1 December 2018 
Traditional Chinese Culture and Medical Humanities-  
Case discussion on filial piety 中國傳統孝道於醫學人文案例展示 

Dr Dana LO 

15 December 2018 Medical Sociology for Family Physicians Dr Rodney CHU 

 

*The October and December meetings were joint meeting with the Interest group in Mental Health and Psychiatry in Primary Care. 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the coordinator, Dr Mark S H CHAN and Dr Dana S M LO and all the guest speakers 

for their knowledge and skills sharing. 

 

Community Education Programmes 

I would like to thank the following hospitals, societies and associations in helping our Board to organize the various Community Education 

Programmes, which are open to all our College members and will be announced in the Board Education News every month.  

- Hong Kong Medical Association 

- Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital, Kowloon Central Cluster, Hospital Authority 

- Professional Development & Quality Assurance, Department of Health 

- Queen Elizabeth Hospital, Kowloon Central Cluster, Hospital Authority 

- United Christian Hospital, Kowloon East Cluster, Hospital Authority 

 

College members are welcomed to attend these programmes which are free and CME points are accredited. 

 

Structured Education Programme 

The Structured Educational Programme (SEP) is the mandatory training programme in basic training of Family Medicine. It's divided into 

14 modules and trainees should be attended at least 15 hours for each module. It is also open to all College members and will be awarded 

CME credit points when attending the programme. I would like to thank the following hospitals in organizing the Structured Education 

Programme for our College members: 

- Caritas Medical Centre 

- Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 

- Prince of Wales Hospital 

- Queen Elizabeth Hospital 

- Tsan Yuk Hospital 

- Tseung Kwan O Hospital 

- Tuen Mun Hospital 

- United Christian Hospital 

 

Self-Assessment Correspondent Programme 

MCQ papers 
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MCQ papers were sent out quarterly with our College Journal. Members will only be accredited if over 50% of the answers are correct 

and will be awarded maximum 12 CME credit points per year.  

 

Acknowledgement 

I would like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere gratitude to all members of the Board of Education for their continuous 

support and contributions in serving the College. I have indeed a capable and supportive team to back me up in organizing the various 

types of educational activities for our College members. I am indebted to them. Last but not the least, I have to thank our secretarial staffs, 

Ms Teresa D F LIU and Ms Windy W L LAU for their enormous hard work over the past year. I would also like to take this opportunity to 

thank all sister Colleges, Universities, Hospital Authority, Department of Health for their support in our various educational activities. We 

are also grateful to the various pharmaceutical companies who generously sponsored many of our functions. 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICES 

(July 2018 to June 2019)  

 

 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 

Family Medicine educational activities provided for doctors in mainland China and Macau continued to develop over the past year. These 

projects and programmes were built upon the expertise and experience gathered over the past years from College members who 

contributed tremendously to their success. The Board Chairman would like to thank them all for their contribution. 

 

STRUCTURED PROJECTS         

Continuing Medical Education Programme 2018/2019 – coordinated with Macau Health Bureau (澳門衛生局): 

 

Organizers: BPDS, HKCFP and Macau Health Bureau  

Format: 30 hours of lecture divided into 10 half-day sessions 

Topics (2018/2019) Month / Year Speakers 

Hypertension: Controversies in the diagnosis and management September 2018 Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Modern-day management of DM and New drugs for type 2 DM October 2018 Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

Palliative Care - A Primary Care Perspective November 2018 Dr David V K CHAO 

Knee Pain and Low back Pain: Physical Examination and Management December 2018 Dr KWAN Yu 

Abnormal vaginal bleeding January 2019 Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen 

Approach to: (1) Child abuse (including sexual abuse) (2) Domestic violence February 2019 Dr IP Pang Fei 

Drug abuse Mar 2019 
Dr FAN Yuen Man,  

Dr KWONG Ngar Ming 

Asthma April 2019 Dr LIANG Jun 

Chairman: Dr LAU Ho Lim  

   

Vice Chairman: Dr LIANG Jun  

   

Advisors: Dr Stephen K S FOO  

 Prof Cindy L K LAM  

 Prof Donald K T LI  

   

Board Members: Dr CHAN Hung Chiu Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen 

 Dr Angus M W CHAN  Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

 Dr Edmond C W CHAN Dr NGAN Po Lun 

 Dr Lorette W Y CHAN Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

 Dr David V K CHAO Dr Jenny H L WANG 

  
 

 

Ex-officio: Dr Billy C F CHIU  

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  

 Dr William C W WONG  

   

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager) 

 Ms Katie P L LAM (Administrative Assistant) 
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How to conduct Clinical Audits May 2019 Dr Jenny H L WANG 

Fall prevention, Cognitive and functional assessment and Carer stress June 2019 Dr YEUNG Sau Ying 

 

This course was organised on the request from the Macau Health Bureau aiming at strengthening knowledge and skills in Family Medicine 

for Macau doctors. We have received excellent feedback from those who attended the course. Certificates of Attendance were issued to 

those who had maintained an attendance of 80% or higher. 

 

Training Programme for Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association (CMEA 海峽兩岸醫藥衛生交流協會): 

Organizers: BPDS, HKCFP and Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association  

Programme Dates: 10-14 September 2018 / 5-9 November 2018 / 11-15 March 2019 / 27-31 May 2019 

Format: 30 hours of tuition divided into 10 sessions for each programme 

 (Including lectures / workshops and clinic visits) 

Topics & Speakers:  

全科醫學骨幹(師資)培訓班 

  香港家庭醫學教育培訓模式 (Dr Catherine X R CHEN) 

  家庭醫學診療模式及技能(一) (Dr Jenny H L WANG) 

家庭醫學診療模式及技能(二) 及 家庭醫學概念 (Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen) 

慢病管理  (Dr LIANG Jun) 

醫患溝通: 理論 (Dr Daniel W S CHU, Dr LAU Ho Lim) 

醫患溝通: 如何令病人成為您的治療伙伴 (Dr YU Ching Ching, Dr TSE Sut Yee) 

醫患溝通: 技能訓練深度解構(一) (Dr Edmond C W CHAN, Dr CHAN Lam, Dr Emily T Y TSE) 

醫患溝通: 技能訓練深度解構(二) (Dr Loretta W Y CHAN, Dr LEUNG Lok Hang) 

預防醫學  (Dr LAU Ho Lim)   

Clinic Visits: Tang Shiu Kin Hospital Violet Peel General Outpatient Clinic (10 September 2018) 

  Tsan Yuk Hospital (10 September 2018, 13 March 2019) 

  Ha Kwai Chung General Out-patient Clinic (7 November 2018) 

  Fanling Family Medicine Centre (7 November 2018, 31 May 2019) 

  East Kowloon General Out-patient Clinic (13 March 2019, 31 May 2019) 

   

This Programme was organised after we had received a request from the Cross-Straits Medicine Exchange Association. Its aim is to 

introduce the training of family physicians in Hong Kong to mainland Chinese doctors and to strengthen their knowledge and skills in 

primary care. The Programme went smoothly and successfully with excellent feedback from attendees. Certificates of Attendance were 

issued to those who had maintained an attendance of at least 80% for each programme.  

 

From September 2018 to May 2019, a total of 89 mainland delegates attended the programme and were awarded with the Certificate of 

Attendance. 

 

Three-day Training Porgramme for Beijing Community Health Service Association (北京市社區衛生協會) 

Organizers: BPDS, HKCFP and Beijing Community Health Service Association 

Programme Date: 10-12 March 2019 

Format: 6 sessions (Including lectures and clinic visits) 

 

Topics & Speakers:  

赴港考察培訓班 

香港家庭/全科醫生的培訓及考核 (Dr LAU Ho Lim) 

香港醫療衛生服務體系 (Dr Catherine X R CHEN) 

Clinic Visits:  Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital (11 March 2019) 

 Kwun Tong Community Health Centre (12 March 2019) 

 UMP Medical Centre (12 March 2019) 

United Christian Hospital Community Nursing Services (11 March 2019) 

 

This Programme was organised on the request from the Beijing Community Health Service Association. Its main focus is on the training 

of family doctors and the different primary healthcare services in Hong Kong. A total of 24 mainland delegates attended the programme. 

It was very well regarded by the attendees. Request for a second similar course was received. 

 

Family Medicine Training Programme for the Shanghai Changning District Health Commission (上海長寧區衛生健康委員會) 

Organizers: BPDS, HKCFP and Shanghai Changning District Health Commission 

Programme Date: 2-10 April 2019 

Format: 11 sessions (Including lectures / workshops and clinic visits) 
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Topics & Speakers:  

全科家庭醫生主管研修班 

  香港家庭醫學教育培訓模式 (Dr LAU Ho Lim) 

家庭醫學診療模式及技能(一) (Dr Jenny H L WANG) 

家庭醫學診療模式及技能(二) 及 家庭醫學概念 (Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen) 

慢病管理 - 高血壓 (Dr Catherine X R CHEN) 

醫患溝通: 理論 (Dr LAU Ho Lim) 

醫患溝通: 技能訓練深度解構(一) (Dr Loretta W Y CHAN, Dr LEUNG Lok Hang) 

醫患溝通: 技能訓練深度解構(二) (Dr Edmond C W CHAN, Dr CHAN Lam) 

醫患溝通: 如何令病人成為您的治療伙伴 (Dr TSE Sut Yee) 

全科醫學研究 - 科研專案 (Dr William C W WONG) 

全科醫生的評估 - 客觀結構化臨床評估 (Dr Loretta W Y CHAN) 

    

Clinic Visits: Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital (10 April 2019) 

 

This Programme was organised on the request from the Shanghai Changning District Health Commission to provide doctors working in 

Changning District in Shanghai with an opportunity to understand the training of family physicians in Hong Kong, and to strengthen their 

communication skills in primary care. A total of 17 doctors attended the programme and were awarded with the Certificate of Attendance. 

Further courses have been planned. 

 

SCHOLARSHIP 

HKCFP Donald LI Scholarship 

The HKCFP Donald LI Scholarship was established in Mar 2016 thanks to the generous donation by Dr Donald LI. It aims to provide an 

opportunity for outstanding family doctors in China with the appropriate knowledge, attitude and practical experience to pursue further 

practical family medicine training opportunities in Hong Kong. 

 

The applications are open to those doctors in China who have attended the Training Programme in Family Medicine in Hong Kong co-

organised by the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians and the Cross-Strait Medicine Exchange Association. The applicants are 

required to fill in an application form and write an essay of not more than 1000 words outlining their specific learning objectives in family 

medicine and their views on family medicine learning.  

 

The Scholarship is awarded to at most three practising front-line doctors in China selected from the applicants. Each recipient of the 

Scholarship will receive HK$10,000 for further practical family medicine training in Hong Kong for one week. They will be assigned to 

attachments in approved Family Medicine training centres in Hong Kong. 

 

The awardees of the 2018 HKCFP Donald LI Scholarship were vetted and endorsed in January 2019 by a Selection Committee formed 

under the Board of Professional Development and Services. Details are as follows: 

 

HKCFP Donald LI Scholarship Selection Committee 2018 

Dr Angus M W CHAN, Dr David V K CHAO and Dr LAU Ho Lim 

 

HKCFP Donald LI Scholarship Awardees 2018 

(1) 邱艷，浙江大學醫學院附屬第一醫院，主治醫師 

(2) 秦紅莉，浙江大學醫學院附屬第一醫院，住院醫師 

(3) 金花，上海市楊浦區中心醫院(同濟大學附屬楊浦醫院)，主治醫師 

 

The Scholarships were presented to the awardees during the Zhengzhou Conference 第六屆海峽兩岸全科醫學大會 in March 2019. 
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BOARD OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING AND STANDARDS 

(April 2018 to March 2019) 

Chairlady: Dr YIU Yuk Kwan (from December 2018 onwards)  

 Dr Billy C F CHIU (to December 2018) 

  

Deputy Chairlady/ Dr Heidi H T FUNG (from December 2018 onwards) 

Chairman: Dr CHAN Kin Ling   (to December 2018) 

     

Board Members:          Dr Barry T F BIEN  Dr LAW Tung Chi 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai  Dr Tony C K LEE 

Dr CHAN Kin Ling  Dr LI Yim Chu 

Dr Billy C F CHIU  Dr Jun LIANG 

Dr CHONG Man Yuk  Dr Benny L P LUI 

Dr Heidi H T FUNG  Dr Peter T K NG 

Dr Eric M T HUI  Dr Lorna V NG 

Dr KO Wai Kit  Dr Michelle M Y WONG 

Dr Mary B L KWONG     

 

Ex-officio:            Dr Angus M W CHAN (to December 2018) 

Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (from December 2018 onwards) 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr William C W WONG 

 

Subcommittees 

Basic Training Subcommittee 

Chairman: Dr Michelle M Y WONG 

Members:            Dr Loretta W Y CHAN   Dr Anthony S B POON 

             Dr CHONG Man Yuk   Dr TSUI Pun Nang 

Dr LAU Po Shan   Dr YOUNG Sui Wah 

Dr Tony C K LEE 

 

Higher Training Subcommittee 

Chairman: Dr Heidi H T FUNG  

Members: Dr Carroll K L CHAN   Dr Stanley K H LAM  

Dr Edwin Y H CHAN   Dr Benny L P LUI 

Dr Anthony K Y HO   Dr NG Ming Shing 

Dr LAM Hiu Lam   Dr WONG Suk Ching 

Trainers Subcommittee 

Chairlady: Dr LAW Tung Chi 

Memebers: Dr Gene W W TSOI   Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

Dr John T N CHUNG   Dr Stephen K S FOO 

Dr Raymond C H LO 

Clinical Supervisor Subcommittee 

Chairman:  Dr Barry T F BIEN        

Member: Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Training Centre Subcommittee 

Chairman:            Dr CHAN Kin Ling  

Members:          Dr CHEUNG Yu      

Dr Tony C K LEE 

Training Programme Subcommittee 

Chairman: Dr Peter T K NG      

Training Curriculum Review Subcommittee 

Chairlady:            Dr Ruby S Y LEE       

Members:            Dr Angus M W CHAN   Dr LAW Tung Chi 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai   Dr LIANG Jun 

Dr David V K CHAO   Dr LEE Man Kei 
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Dr Billy C F CHIU   Prof Martin C S WONG 

Dr Heidi H T FUNG   Dr William C W WONG 

Dr KO Wai Kit   Dr Michelle M Y WONG 

Dr Mary B L KWONG   Dr WUN Yuk Tsan 

Prof LAM Tai Pong   Dr Quincy S M YUEN 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Staff:            Ms Charlotte Y C CHEUNG                (Administrative Executive) 

            Ms Kathy K Y LAI                 (Administrative Executive) 

 

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE 

 

This year has passed smoothly in the running of the Board’s regular activities. All Board members and subcommittee members had helped 

on various BVTS’s activities such as responding trainees’ enquiries, checking new applications for enrollment, checking logbooks for 

completion of trainees’ training, organizing the workshop for both basic and higher trainees, travelling to various training centers for 

accreditation, reviewing the Structural Education Programmes for pre-approval and holding the quarterly board meeting etc. All these 

activities are ongoing all through the year and important to the standard of vocational training. 

 

  The usual statistics up to 31st March 2019 are as follows: 

  New enrolled Basic trainees  : 39 

  New enrolled Higher trainees  : 21 

  Total Basic trainees   :             134 

  Total Higher trainees  : 57 

 

Our curriculum renewal is an ongoing process. The Board reviewed and made amendments on the documents according to the feedback 

collected from trainees and supervisors on trial run logbook and the old logbook. The Board had finalized and launched the new logbook 

in September 2019.  

 

Lastly, I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our Board members, honorary clinical supervisors, and cluster coordinators for their 

contributions in the training programme. I would also like to express my sincere gratitude to our administrative executives Ms. Charlotte 

Cheung and Ms. Kathy Lai who are highly committed in their duties to serve the trainees and the Board’s running. Their efforts and 

patience are very much appreciated. 

 

Output 

Congratulations to our trainees for passing the HKCFP/RACGP Conjoint Examination in 2018 and for being elected Fellows of the Hong 

Kong College of Family Physicians and the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners. 

Dr Y H Kevin AU-YEUNG  

Dr CHAN Wing Yi 

Dr CHEN Liujing 

Dr CHOI Man Kei 

Dr Melody P Y CHOW 

Dr HOU Jing 

Dr Joyce H Y LAI 

Dr LAU Ka Man 

Dr LEE Shek Hang 

Dr NG Hoi Yee 

Dr NGAI Ming Leon 

Dr POON Wing Kwan 

Dr PUN Yat Hei 

Dr Victoria G K SUEN 

Dr TSANG Pui Lim 

Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang 

Dr TSUI Sau In 

Dr YAU King Sun 

Dr Doogie K Y YEUNG 

Dr Vivian H Y YIP 

Dr YUEN Chi Hang 

The Board certified completion of 4-year Basic Training in Family Medicine for the 17 trainees in 2018. 

Dr Y H Kevin AU-YEUNG 

Dr Enoch K C CHAN 

Dr Annie W C CHAN 

Dr CHAN Wing Yi 

Dr CHIU Ho Ching 

Dr KUM Chung Hang 

Dr Joyce H Y LAI 

Dr LAU Ka Man 

Dr LEE Shek Hang 

Dr POON Wing Kwan 

Dr Victoria G K SUEN 

Dr TSANG Pui Lim 

Dr TSUI Sau In 

Dr WONG Ching Keung 

Dr Doogie K Y YEUNG 

Dr Vivian H Y YIP 

Dr YUEN Chi Hang 

 

The Board certified completion of 2-year Higher Training in Family Medicine for the 24 trainees in 2018-2019.

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Dr CHAN So Wai 
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Dr CHEUNG Shun Tai 

Dr CHUNG Sze Ting 

Dr JOR Hon Man 

Dr Elaine Y M KWOK 

Dr KWOK Yuen Na 

Dr Mathew C N LAU 

Dr LAU Lai Na 

Dr LAU WING Man 

Dr LEE Chun Hui 

Dr LEE Ho Ming 

Dr LEUNG Ching Ching 

Dr LO Alvina 

Dr LUK Chi To 

Dr Winnie C S SHUM 

Dr Samuel J S SIU 

Dr TIN Yuen Ying 

Dr TSE Wan Ying 

Dr TSUI Felix 

Dr Ricky H F WONG 

Dr WONG Sze Kei 

Dr WU Chun Yu 

Dr Derek G C YING 

Dr YIU Cheuk Man 

 

APPENDIX A 

Trainees in Higher Vocational Training in Family Medicine 2018/2019 

Name of Trainees Clinical Supervisor 

Dr Kevin Y H AU-YEUNG Dr LEE Kit Yan 

Dr CHAN Ham Dr Ronald S R CHENG 

Dr CHAN Lam Dr YUEN Shiu Man 

Dr CHAN Pui Chuen Dr LEE Kit Yan 

Dr CHAN Pui Kwan Dr LI Shun Vincent 

Dr CHAN Wing Yi Dr KWAN Sin Man 

Dr CHANG Wells Dr CHEUNG Hard King 

Dr CHEN Hing Han Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr CHEN Liujing Dr LEE Shik Pui 

Dr CHENG Wai Fat Dr NG Ming Shing 

Dr CHEUK Yau Chun Dr LAU Po Shan 

Dr CHIANG Lap Kin Dr Lorna V NG 

Dr CHOI Man Kei Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Dr Melody P Y CHOW Dr WONG Sze Nga 

Dr Winnie W Y Chui Dr Susanna L L HUNG 

Dr FONG Chui Ying Dr SY Wing Man 

Dr HAN Jinghao Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

Dr HO Shu Wan Dr NG Yeung Shing 

Dr HOU Jing Dr LEUNG To Fung 

Dr DAVID K F HSU Dr CHAN Man Li 

Dr KUM Chung Hang Dr CHENG Sai Yip 

Dr Tony Y T KWOK Dr Judy G Y CHENG 

Dr Joyce H Y LAI Dr Rosita WONG 

Dr LAU Ka Man Dr LEUNG To Fung 

Dr LEE Shek Hang Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr LIU Yin Mei Dr LAU Chi Hang 

Dr LUK Chun Wa Dr IP Sui Wah 

Dr NG Hoi Yee Dr Benny L P LUI 

Dr Leon M NGAI Dr HONG Tin Chak 

Dr POON Wing Kwan Dr CHOW Kam Fai 

Dr PUN Yat Hei Dr Matthew M H LUK 

Dr TONG Ka Hung Dr NG Mei Po 

Dr TSANG Pui Lim Dr SY Hung Pan 

Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr Alan Y H WONG Dr Y T Esther YU 

Dr WONG Hiu Lap Dr YEUNG Chi Keung 

Dr Queenie H K WONG Dr Loretta K R LAI 

Dr XU Shaowei Dr Catherine X R CHEN 

Dr YAU King Sun Dr CHAN Ting Bong 

Dr YEN Pang Fei Dr WONG Sum Lok 

Dr Doogie K Y YEUNG Dr CHAN Pang Fai 

Dr Vivian H M YIP Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

Dr YUEN Chi Hang Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing 

 
Trainees in Basic Vocational Training in Family Medicine 2018/2019 

Hong Kong West Cluster 

1.        Dr CHIU Yuen Chun 5.        Dr LIU Wing Yee 

2.        Dr KWAN Tsz Yan 6.        Dr Esther S C PANG 
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3.        Dr LEUNG Ka Cheong 7.        Dr Nicola T L TIK 

4.        Dr LI Minru  

 

Hong Kong East Cluster 

1. Dr Enoch K C Chan 

2. Dr Rita W K CHAN 

3. Dr CHAN Yuen Ling 

4. Dr CHIU Yuen Man 

5. Dr Michelle S W CHOI 

6. Dr FONG Pak Yiu 

7. Dr Michelle K M LO 

8. Dr LO Yuen Man 

9. Dr Michael K Y LOCKE 

10. Dr TAI Lik 

11. Dr YUEN Chi Hang 

12. Dr YUEN Man Ki 

 

Kowloon East Cluster 

1. Dr Dickson K F CHAN 

2. Dr CHANG Hsu Wei 

3. Dr CHAU Yiu Shing 

4. Dr CHEN Tsz Ting 

5. Dr Candy Y T HUI 

6. Dr Kelvin H Y LAI 

7. Dr LEE Tsz Ching 

8. Dr Eunice H C LEUNG 

9. Dr LI Wing Chi 

10. Dr LIM Martina 

11. Dr Candy S W LUK 

12. Dr MA Man Ki 

13. Dr MA Yuen Ying 

14. Dr WONG Chung Ming 

15. Dr WONG Sze Man 

16. Dr WONG Yu Man 

17. Dr YAU Chi Yan

 

Kowloon Central Cluster 

1. Dr CHAN Fung Yuen 

2. Dr CHAN Kam Sheung 

3. Dr Kilpatrick K P CHAN 

4. Dr CHEUNG Yuen Yan 

5. Dr CHUANG Chi Kit 

6. Dr Patricia Y S FAN 

7. Dr HO Ka Ki 

8. Dr Alice S W HUI 

9. Dr JIAO Fangfang 

10. Dr LAI Ka Ho 

11. Dr LAW Man Fong 

12. Dr LEE Wing Lam 

13. Dr Amas K W LEUNG 

14. Dr Janice C Y LI 

15. Dr NG Ka Wing 

16. Dr NOH Young Ah 

17. Dr SIU Wing Yee 

18. Dr Herny H H WONG 

19. Dr ZHU Yin 

 

Kowloon West Cluster 

1. Dr Davina S H BIEN 

2. Dr CHAN Chi Hung 

3. Dr CHAN Kwan Ho 

4. Dr CHANG Hoi Yi 

5. Dr Ivy W Y CHEUK 

6. Dr Christie Y Y CHEUNG 

7. Dr Jessica H K CHOW 

8. Dr CHOW Tsz Wang 

9. Dr CHU Pui Yan 

10. Dr DIANTO Jeffrey 

11. Dr Kevin K F FUNG 

12. Dr Colin Y N KWOK 

13. Dr LAM Chi Hang 

14. Dr LAM Ching Man 

15. Dr Matthew T C LAM 

16. Dr LEUNG Wai Lun 

17. Dr LEUNG Yuen Kei 

18. Dr Kara W S LO 

19. Dr LO Wei 

20. Dr NG Kwok Fai 

21. Dr Beatrice P Y NG 

22. Dr SHEN Yu Chun 

23. Dr SZETO Chui Ying 

24. Dr TAM Chun Ho 

25. Dr TO King 

26. Dr TSAI Hung Yu 

27. Dr WONG Chi Wing 

28. Dr WONG Chiu Lun 

29. Dr WONG Kai Hei 

30. Dr WONG Man Ho 

31. Dr Rosanna W N WONG 

32. Dr YAU Tang Fai 

33. Dr YEUNG Lok Ki 

34. Dr Genevieve M L YIU

 

New Territory East Cluster 

1. Dr CHOI Man Kit 

2. Dr CHUNG Hiu Yeung 

3. Dr FAN Vei Chen 

4. Dr Andrew Y W FUNG 

5. Dr Andrew K M KONG 

6. Dr LAI Hoi Lin 

7. Dr LAU Sin Mei 

8. Dr LEE Ying Cheung 

9. Dr Viola W Y LEUNG 

10. Dr LEUNG Yuen Yee 

11. Dr Sunny W H LI 

12. Dr LIM Foon Lian 

13. Dr MAK Ho Yin 

14. Dr NG Hok Wai 

15. Dr Joanne Y W NG 

16. Dr POON Lai Ping 

17. Dr SHEN Yu Wei 

18. Dr Wendy Y N WEN 

19. Dr Arthur C K WONG 

20. Dr YAN Chi Yung 

21. Dr ZHAO HaiFeng
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New Territory West Cluster 

1. Dr CHAN Cheuk Ming 

2. Dr Erica C S CHAN 

3. Dr Yeni Y Y CHAN 

4. Dr CHAN Yuen Ching 

5. Dr CHANG Ting Ting 

6. Dr CHONG Kok Hung 

7. Dr Jonathan C H CHUNG 

8. Dr CHUNG Ka Chun 

9. Dr FAN Siu Wai 

10. Dr FENG Longyin 

11. Dr HONG Ka Yi 

12. Dr HUN Pek I 

13. Dr L A LAM 

14. Dr LAM Wai Yiu 

15. Dr LEUNG Lai Man 

16. Dr NG Kai Man 

17. Dr NG Ngai Mui 

18. Dr Kevin K H SO 

19. Dr TSANG Kam Wah 

20. Dr TSANG Yee Wing 

21. Dr WONG Kar Shing 

22. Dr Jon-Alvan T H YAP  

23. Dr YIP Pui Leung 

24. Dr YUNG Hiu Ting 

25. Dr ZHANG Dingzuan 

 

Others 

1 Dr Eugenia L C LAM    

 

APPENDIX B 

Clinical Supervisors of Basic and Higher Training in Family Medicine 

1.  Dr Simon C L AU 

2.  Dr Barry T F BIEN 

3.  Dr Edmond C W CHAN 

4.  Dr CHAN Chin Ping 

5.  Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 

6.  Dr Peter H C CHAN 

7.  Dr Carroll K L CHAN 

8.  Dr CHAN Ka Man 

9.  Dr CHAN Ka Wai 

10.  Dr CHAN Kin Ling 

11.  Dr CHAN King Hong 

12.  Dr Kitty K C CHAN 

13.  Dr Keith K W CHAN 

14.  Dr CHAN Laam 

15.  Dr CHAN Lit Ping 

16.  Dr Jeff M H CHAN 

17.  Dr CHAN Man Li 

18.  Dr CHAN Mei Tak 

19.  Dr Angus M W CHAN 

20.  Dr CHAN Ngai Ping 

21.  Dr CHAN Pang Fai 

22.  Dr CHAN Pui Wai 

23.  Dr CHAN Sio Pan 

24.  Dr CHAN Suk Yin 

25.  Dr David S L CHAN 

26.  Dr Eddie T CHAN 

27.  Dr CHAN Ting Bong 

28.  Dr CHAN Wan Wai 

29.  Dr Winnie W Y CHAN 

30.  Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

31.  Dr Thomas Y L CHAN 

32.  Dr CHAN Yeuk Kei 

33.  Dr CHAN Yin Hang 

34.  Dr Andrew Y H CHAN 

35.  Dr CHAN Yuen Yan 

36.  Dr David V K CHAO 

37.  Dr CHAU Kai Man 

38.  Dr Catherine X R CHEN 

39.  Dr CHENG Cheuk Hong 

40.  Dr David C S CHENG 

41.  Dr Judy G Y CHENG 

42.  Dr CHENG Kit Wing 

43.  Dr Lisa P K CHENG 

44.  Dr Cupid P S CHENG 

45.  Dr Ronald S Y CHENG 

46.  Dr Christina CHEUK 

47.  Dr David C H CHEUNG 

48.  Dr CHEUNG Hard King 

49.  Dr Sydney K L CHEUNG 

50.  Dr CHEUNG Man Ha 

51.  Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen 

52.  Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee 

53.  Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung 

54.  Dr CHEUNG Sze Man 

55.  Dr Paul W K CHEUNG 

56.  Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo 

57.  Dr CHEUNG Yu 

58.  Dr CHING Kam Wing 

59.  Dr Billy C F CHIU 

60.  Dr Clarence C M CHOI 

61.  Dr Gabriel K CHOI 

62.  Dr CHOI Wing Kin 

63.  Dr CHOI Yue Kwan 

64.  Dr Stephen C W CHOU 

65.  Dr CHOW Kai Lim 

66.  Dr CHOW Kam Fai 

67.  Dr Alex S Y CHOW 

68.  Dr Ignatius P S CHOY 

69.  Dr CHU Lai Shan 

70.  Dr CHU Tsun Kit 

71.  Dr Daniel W S CHU 

72.  Dr CHUA Kam Ling 

73.  Dr Antonio A T CHUH 

74.  Dr Billy S H CHUI 

75.  Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong 

76.  Dr CHUNG Kin Wing 

77.  Dr CHUNG Sze Pok 

78.  Dr John T N CHUNG 

79.  Dr CHUNG Wai Ho 

80.  Dr DAO Man Chi 

81.  Dr Anita W M FAN 

82.  Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 
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83.  Dr FOK Peter Anthony 

84.  Dr Garry K L FONG 

85.  Dr Stephen K S FOO 

86.  Dr FOSTER Jonathan Charles 

87.  Dr FU Sau Nga 

88.  Dr FUNG Hoi Tik 

89.  Dr FUNG Kwok Hay 

90.  Dr FUNG Pak Kei 

91.  Dr Colman S C FUNG 

92.  Dr FUNG Yuk Kwan 

93.  Dr HO Hon Ming 

94.  Dr HO Ka Ming 

95.  Dr HO Kam Wai 

96.  Dr Anthony K Y HO 

97.  Dr Desmond W F HO 

98.  Dr HO Wing Man 

99.  Dr HONG Tin Chak 

100.  Dr HUI King Wai 

101.  Dr Wilson K S HUI 

102.  Dr HUI Lai Chi 

103.  Dr Eric M T HUI 

104.  Dr Linda Y F HUI 

105.  Dr HUNG Chi Bun 

106.  Dr Susanna L L HUNG 

107.  Dr Winson W Y HUNG 

108.  Dr Ronald C H IP 

109.  Dr Andrew K K IP 

110.  Dr IP Pang Fei 

111.  Dr IP Sui Wah 

112.  Dr IP Yan Yan 

113.  Dr Silvia S M KAM 

114.  Dr KAN Chi Ho 

115.  Dr KO Siu Hin 

116.  Dr KO Wai Kit 

117.  Dr KONG Che Wan 

118.  Dr Kenny KUNG 

119.  Dr Betty K M KWAN 

120.  Dr KWAN Sin Man 

121.  Dr Wendy W Y KWAN 

122.  Dr KWAN Yu 

123.  Dr KWOK Chi Sum 

124.  Dr Mary B L KWONG 

125.  Dr KWONG Ho Tak 

126.  Dr KWONG Hon Kei 

127.  Dr KWONG Ka Wah 

128.  Dr Alfred S K KWONG 

129.  Dr KWONG Wing Hun 

130.  Dr LAI Kit Chi 

131.  Dr Loretta K P LAI 

132.  Dr LAI Sheung Siu 

133.  Dr LAI Siu Wai 

134.  Dr Irene S Y LAI 

135.  Dr LAI Sum Yin 

136.  Dr Douglas T C LAI 

137.  Dr LAI Wai Wah 

138.  Dr Johnny C Y LAM 

139.  Dr LAM Hiu Lam 

140.  Dr LAM Hon Man 

141.  Dr Stanley K H LAM 

142.  Prof Cindy L K LAM 

143.  Dr Paul LAM 

144.  Dr LAM Pui 

145.  Dr LAM Tai Pong 

146.  Dr Catherine T M LAM 

147.  Dr Augustine T LAM 

148.  Dr LAU Chi Hang 

149.  Dr LAU Chi Hung 

150.  Dr Angela K M LAU 

151.  Dr LAU Kam Tong 

152.  Dr Kinson K S LAU 

153.  Dr Dominic M W LAU 

154.  Dr LAU Po Shan 

155.  Dr LAU Pui Ling 

156.  Dr LAU Tai Wai 

157.  Dr LAW Tung Chi 

158.  Prof Albert LEE 

159.  Dr Frederick C T LEE 

160.  Dr LEE Chik Pui 

161.  Dr Tony C K LEE 

162.  Dr LEE Kai Yuen 

163.  Dr LEE Kar Fai 

164.  Dr LEE Kit Yan 

165.  Dr LEE Ling Hin 

166.  Dr LEE Man Kei 

167.  Dr Ruby S Y LEE 

168.  Dr Francis W T LEE 

169.  Dr LEE Wang Yat 

170.  Dr LEE Wing Yi 

171.  Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing 

172.  Dr Daniel C Y LEUNG 

173.  Dr LEUNG Ka Fai 

174.  Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

175.  Dr Crystal P S LEUNG 

176.  Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun 

177.  Dr Selina S W LEUNG 

178.  Dr LEUNG To Fung 

179.  Dr Violet T M LEUNG 

180.  Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu 

181.  Dr LEUNG Wing Kit 

182.  Dr LEUNG Wing Mun 

183.  Dr LI Hei Lim 

184.  Dr LI Heung Wing 

185.  Prof Donald K T LI 

186.  Dr Vincent W S LI 

187.  Dr LI Yim Chu 

188.  Dr LIANG Jun 

189.  Dr Raymond W T LIU 

190.  Dr Raymond C H LO 

191.  Dr Dana S M LO 

192.  Dr Yvonne Y C LO 

193.  Dr Wendy W C LO (WONG) 

194.  Dr Benny L P LUI 

195.  Dr LUK Kam Hung 

196.  Dr Matthew M H LUK 

197.  Dr LUK Wan 

198.  Dr Dennis C S MAK 

199.  Dr MAN Fung Yi 

200.  Dr Jennifer Y F MOK 

201.  Dr NG Ching Luen 

202.  Dr NG Chun Bor 

203.  Dr NG Kwok Keung 

204.  Dr Jackie M P NG 

205.  Dr NG Mei Yee 

206.  Dr NG Ming Shing 

207.  Dr NG Pak Him 

208.  Dr Catherine S W NG 

209.  Dr NG Tsz Kin 

210.  Dr Peter T K NG 
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211.  Dr NG Yeung Shing 

212.  Dr Lorna NG VENTURA  

213.  Dr Bernad NGAI 

214.  Dr Allen H Y NGAI 

215.  Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

216.  Dr Raymond K L NGAN 

217.  Dr OWENS David Edward 

218.  Dr PANG Siu Leung 

219.  Dr Raymond W M PAU 

220.  Dr PON Wai Pi 

221.  Dr PONG Pong 

222.  Dr Anthony S B POON 

223.  Dr POON Ting Kong 

224.  Dr SHEK Chun Chiu 

225.  Dr SHEK Hon Wing 

226.  Dr Mariana C K SHUEN 

227.  Dr SIN Ming Chuen 

228.  Dr SIT Wing Shan 

229.  Dr SIU Leung Chow 

230.  Dr SO Fong Tat 

231.  Dr SUN Yiu Kwong 

232.  Dr David T W SUNG 

233.  Dr Jimmy H P SY 

234.  Dr SY Wing Man 

235.  Dr SZE Chung Fai 

236.  Dr SZE Hon Ho 

237.  Dr Catherine P K SZE 

238.  Dr Janet C Y TAM 

239.  Dr TAM Ho Shan 

240.  Dr TAM John Hugh 

241.  Dr Tammy K W TAM 

242.  Dr TAM Kit Ping 

243.  Dr TAM Sze Man 

244.  Dr TAM Wah Kit 

245.  Dr TAM Yick Sin 

246.  Dr TANG Kin Sze  

247.  Dr Joyce S F TANG 

248.  Dr TING Fei Yin 

249.  Dr Dorothy K Y TO 

250.  Dr Timmy P H TONG 

251.  Dr TOO Lai Chong 

252.  Dr Luke C Y TSANG 

253.  Dr TSE Hing Choi 

254.  Dr Keith K K TSE 

255.  Dr TSE Sut Yee 

256.  Dr Emily T Y TSE 

257.  Dr Gene W W TSOI 

258.  Dr TSUI Hoi Yee 

259.  Dr TSUI Kwok Biu 

260.  Dr TSUI Pun Nang 

261.  Dr Wendy W S TSUI 

262.  Dr Hayles H W WAI 

263.  Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

264.  Dr WAN Wing Fai 

265.  Dr WANG Hua Li 

266.  Dr WONG Chak Tong 

267.  Dr Roger C K WONG 

268.  Dr WONG Chi Lung 

269.  Dr William C W WONG 

270.  Dr WONG Chun Fai 

271.  Dr WONG Chung Tao 

272.  Dr WONG Fai Ying 

273.  Dr WONG Ho Cheong 

274.  Dr WONG Kwai Sheung 

275.  Dr WONG Kwai Wing 

276.  Dr Joseph K H WONG 

277.  Dr WONG Kwok Hoi 

278.  Dr Kitty K WONG 

279.  Dr WONG Man Kin 

280.  Dr Michelle M Y WONG 

281.  Dr Marcus M S WONG 

282.  Dr Amy O Y WONG 

283.  Dr WONG Pak Hoi 

284.  Dr WONG Pak Kin 

285.  Dr WONG Suk Ching 

286.  Dr WONG Sum Lok 

287.  Dr WONG Sze Nga 

288.  Dr WONG Tak Lung 

289.  Dr WONG Tseng Kwong 

290.  Dr Rita W M WONG 

291.  Dr WONG Wing Sze 

292.  Dr WONG Yu Fai 

293.  Dr WU Kwok Keung 

294.  Dr Nerrissa S C WU 

295.  Dr Tom T Y WU 

296.  Dr YAU Kin Chung 

297.  Dr YAU Lai Mo 

298.  Dr YEUNG Chi Keung 

299.  Dr YEUNG Sau Ying 

300.  Dr YEUNG Wai Man 

301.  Dr YIM Chi Ling 

302.  Dr YIP Pui Chuen 

303.  Dr YIP Wing Yi 

304.  Dr YIU Ming Pong 

305.  Dr YIU Yuk Kwan 

306.  Dr YU Pui Hang 

307.  Dr Frances S K YU 

308.  Dr Esther Y T YU 

309.  Dr YUEN Fu Lam 

310.  Dr YUEN Shiu Man 

APPENDIX C 

Training Centers and Clinical Supervisors of Basic Vocational Training Programme in Family Medicine 

HOSPITAL BASED TRAINING CENTERS 

1.  Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital (Coordinator : Dr HUI Ming Tung) 

Dr CHAN Chung Yung Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Hung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Richard S D YEUNG Emergency Medicine 

Dr Eddie C P YUEN Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Chi Wo Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Hok Sum Internal Medicine 

Dr CHENG Yuk Lun Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOI Kin Wing Internal Medicine 
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Dr HO Sheng Sheng Internal Medicine 

Dr Josun A HUI  Internal Medicine 

Dr HUI Wai Man Internal Medicine 

Dr LAU Wai Yan Internal Medicine 

Dr LO Kwun Man Internal Medicine 

Dr Jonas H M YEUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr Jason C H FAN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HUNG Yuk Wah Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Jeffrey Justin S C KOO Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAM Hoi Yan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAW Sheung Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Siu Man Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LO Chun Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr MA Chun Man Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Kwok Chiu Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Tang Tat Paediatrics 

Dr CHENG Yan Wah Paediatrics 

Dr CHIANG Pui King Paediatrics 

Dr LAM Man Chun Paediatrics 

Dr LEE Hau Man Paediatrics 

Dr MA Kam Hung Paediatrics 

Dr MAK Chung Wai Paediatrics 

Dr Rainbow K Y MAK Paediatrics 

Dr Luke C T TONG Paediatrics 

Dr TSUI Kwing Wan Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Tak Wai Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Wai Chun Paediatrics 

 

2. Caritas Medical Centre (Coordinator : Dr YIU Yuk Kwan) 

Dr CHAN Ho Yin Emergency Medicine 

Dr Vincent W T HO Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAU Chui Ling Emergency Medicine 

Dr Ringo S F LEE Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Chung Hong Emergency Medicine 

Dr MA Kin Kou Emergency Medicine 

Dr MUI Tsz Kuen Emergency Medicine 

Dr NG Fu Emergency Medicine 

Dr TANG Ka Yuen Emergency Medicine 

Dr TSANG Wai Tsan Emergency Medicine 

Dr Tommy C F LAU General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Chi Keung General Surgery 

Dr LUI Yuen Ching General Surgery 

Dr NG Ka Chun General Surgery 

Dr WONG Kwok Wa General Surgery 

Dr YONG Lap Jamy General Surgery 

Dr CHENG Jen Ngai Internal Medicine 

Dr CHIU Chi Suen Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Chi Kai Internal Medicine 

Dr KWOK Oi Ling Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Chi Shing Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Chung Ping Internal Medicine 

Dr Annie C Y NG Internal Medicine 

Dr NG Kam Hung Internal Medicine 

Dr Lawrence C Y ONG Internal Medicine 

Dr SAY Chun Yu Internal Medicine 

Dr SHAN Hok Shing Internal Medicine 

Dr SHEK Lam Hin Internal Medicine 

Dr Vicki H K TAM Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Cheuk Lik Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Chit Wai Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Mo Lin Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Wing Yin Internal Medicine 

Dr WOO Kam Wing Internal Medicine 
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Dr David S P YONG Internal Medicine 

Dr YOUNG Kit Yu Internal Medicine 

Dr YUEN Sze Kit Internal Medicine 

Dr Mimi T M FUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr HUI Sze Ki Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Fred Y L KUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Kai Wan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LO Tsz Kin Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr MOK Sau Lan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr TAM Man Sum Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Queenie H Y WONG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Judy Y W YUK Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr BAIG Nafees Begum Ophthalmology 

Dr Rose P S CHAN Ophthalmology 

Dr Ida Y F IO Ophthalmology 

Dr Madeline K M KWOK Ophthalmology 

Dr KWONG Chi Ho Ophthalmology 

Dr Rachel P W KWONG Ophthalmology 

Dr Frank H P LAI Ophthalmology 

Dr LAM Fung Robert Ophthalmology 

Dr LI Chi Lai Ophthalmology 

Dr LIN Wing Yuen Ophthalmology 

Dr Fiona O J LUK Ophthalmology 

Dr Abbie S W LUK Ophthalmology 

Dr NGAI Wing Sang Ophthalmology 

Dr WONG Kwok Tung Ophthalmology 

Dr WONG Lee Ophthalmology 

Dr HO Sheung Tung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Angela W H HO Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr MAN Lok Pong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kwok Ho Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Cheong Wai Paediatrics 

Dr CHENG Wai Wai Paediatrics 

Dr CHEUNG Ka Ming Paediatrics 

Dr HUI Wai Han Paediatrics 

Dr HUNG Kei Wong Paediatrics 

Dr KO Chun Hung Paediatrics 

Dr KO Po Wan Paediatrics 

Dr LAM Ping Paediatrics 

Dr LAU Wai Ling Paediatrics 

Dr Yoki Y K FONG Psychiatry 

Dr HO Pui Tat Psychiatry 

Dr KU Kwok Hung Psychiatry 

Dr Shirley S L WONG Psychiatry 

  

3. Castle Peak Hospital (Coordinator : Dr CHAN Cheong Fai) 

Dr CHAN Cheong Fai Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Kai Tai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Chi Wai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Koi Man Psychiatry 

Dr CHIANG Tin Po Psychiatry 

Dr CHOW Suet Yan Psychiatry 

Dr LAI Wing Him Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Ming Psychiatry 

Dr Jenny P H LAM Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Siu Man Psychiatry 

Dr LAU Mei Suen Psychiatry 

Dr LAU Yuk Shing Psychiatry 

Dr LUI Sai Yu Psychiatry 

Dr MAK Shun Chi Psychiatry 

Dr Bonnie W M SIU Psychiatry 

Dr TSUI Chi Fong Psychiatry 
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Dr TUNG Chi Kwong Psychiatry 

Dr Jessica O Y WONG Psychiatry 

Dr YEUNG Sze Wing Psychiatry 

 
4. Evangel Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Billy S H CHUI) 

Dr Dennis Y P YUEN Internal Medicine 

Dr Leo P W CHIU Psychiatry 

Dr David Y W WONG Ophthalmology 

Dr FUNG Shiu Kee Otorhinolaryngology 

 
5. Fung Yiu King Hospital (Coordinator: Dr James K H LUK) 

Dr CHAN Fei Geriatric Medicine 

Dr Felix H W CHAN Geriatric Medicine 

Dr CHAN Tuen Ching Geriatric Medicine 

Dr James K H LUK Geriatric Medicine 

 
6. Grantham Hospital – Ophthalmology (Coordinator: Prof Jimmy S M LAI) 

Dr CHAN Shun Kit Ophthalmology 

Prof Jimmy S M LAI Ophthalmology 

 

7. Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Joseph W T CHAN) 

Dr Johnny C Y CHAN Dermatology 

Dr Ian C T TSE Dermatology 

Dr Angus C W CHAN General Surgery 

Dr SIU Wing Tai General Surgery 

Dr Wai Sang W WONG General Surgery 

Dr Annie O O CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr LAM Bing Internal Medicine 

Dr Raymond H S LIANG Internal Medicine 

Dr LO Kwok Wing Internal Medicine 

Dr Joseph W T CHAN Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr John S M CHANG Ophthalmology 

Dr Ivan N CHEN Ophthalmology 

Dr Walton W T LI Ophthalmology 

Dr Agnes T Y TSE Ophthalmology 

Dr Joan T WU Ophthalmology 

Dr Stephen W C WU Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Ignace W WEI Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr TSAO Yen Chow Paediatrics 

Dr Ben K L CHEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr IP Yan Ming Psychiatry 

 
8. Haven of Hope Hospital (Coordinator: Dr LAM Wai Man) 

Dr MOK Shan Shan Geriatric Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kam Keung Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kin Sang Internal Medicine 

Dr LAM Wai Man Internal Medicine 

Dr NG Sheung Ching Internal Medicine 

Dr Donald K K SHING Internal Medicine 

Dr WAH Shu Hong Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Wei Yin Internal Medicine 

Dr YIP Choi Wan Internal Medicine 

 
9. Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital (Coordinator: Dr CHONG Yee Hung) 

Dr TAM Kui Fu Internal Medicine 

 
10. Hong Kong Eye Hospital (Coordinator: Dr YUEN Kwok Lai) 

Dr CHAN Kar Man Ophthalmology 

Dr CHI Chung Chai Ophthalmology 

Dr CHOW Wing See Ophthalmology 

Dr Andrew C Y FOK Ophthalmology 
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Dr Angie H C FONG Ophthalmology 

Dr Yolanda Y Y KWONG Ophthalmology 

Dr Isabel S W LAI Ophthalmology 

Dr LAM Nai Man Ophthalmology 

Dr Carol P S LAM Ophthalmology 

Dr LEE Allie Ophthalmology 

Dr LEUNG Lai Chun Ophthalmology 

Dr LOK Ka Hing Ophthalmology 

Dr MOHAMED Shaheeda Ophthalmology 

Dr Clement C Y THAM Ophthalmology 

Dr TSANG Chi Wai Ophthalmology 

Dr Raymond L M WONG Ophthalmology 

Dr Mandy O M WONG Ophthalmology 

Dr WONG Siu Man Ophthalmology 

Dr Victoria W Y WONG Ophthalmology 

Dr YUEN Kwok Lai Ophthalmology 

  

11. Kowloon Hospital, Department of Psychiatry (Coordinator: Dr Roger M K NG) 

Dr CHAN Ka Yee Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Chun Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Wai Keung Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Che Kin Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Hing Wah Psychiatry 

Dr Kevin Y T LI Psychiatry 

Dr Roger M K NG Psychiatry 

Dr POON Ting Keung Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Man Tak Psychiatry 

Dr Eric W C YAU Psychiatry 

Dr Gabriel K K YU Psychiatry 

Dr YU Yee Wah Psychiatry 

 
12. Kowloon Hospital, Respiratory Medical Department (Coordinator: Dr LING Sai On) 

Dr KWAN Hoi Yee Internal Medicine 

Dr LING Sai On Internal Medicine 

Dr POON Yik Ning Internal Medicine 

Dr Anthony P Y YAU Internal Medicine 

Dr YIM Chie Wai Internal Medicine 

 
13. Kwai Chung Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Desmond G H NGUYEN) 

Dr CHAN Cheuk Chi Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Chin Ho Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Hung Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Lap Kei Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Sheung Chun Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Kin Shing Psychiatry 

Dr Bonnie M M CHIU Psychiatry 

Dr CHOI Yan Yin Psychiatry 

Dr Catherine S Y CHONG Psychiatry 

Dr Stephanie S K CHU Psychiatry 

Dr CHUN King Kong Psychiatry 

Dr Yoki Y K FONG Psychiatry 

Dr HO Pui Tat Psychiatry 

Dr KU Kwok Hung Psychiatry 

Dr Lisa L S LAU Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Chi Chiu Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Quinson Psychiatry 

Dr LEE Wing King Psychiatry 
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Dr Joey S Y LEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr LI Ching Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr LIU Wan Wan Psychiatry 

Dr Alison W F LO Psychiatry 

Dr LU Wan Yin Psychiatry 

Dr Desmond G H NGUYEN Psychiatry 

Dr Clara M W SIU Psychiatry 

Dr Danny W H TAM Psychiatry 

Dr TANG Chun Pan Psychiatry 

Dr TANG Hoi Yin Psychiatry 

Dr Carrie K Y TUNG Psychiatry 

Dr Karen H Y WAT Psychiatry 

Dr Lydia K Y WONG Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Lai Yi Psychiatry 

Dr Shirley S L WONG Psychiatry 

Dr Terence T Y YEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr Vicky W K YOUNG Psychiatry 

Dr YU Yee Wah Psychiatry 

  

14. Kwong Wah Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Lorna V NG) 

Dr AU Yiu Kai General Surgery 

Dr Miranda C M CHAN General Surgery 

Dr LAW In Chak General Surgery 

Dr NG Yim Hung General Surgery 

Dr YING Wai Leung General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Hon Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr KWAN Min Chung Internal Medicine 

Dr LOO Ching Kong Internal Medicine 

Dr MAK Siu Ka Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Ping Nam Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kit Sheung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Irene L Y CHO Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAI Shui Fan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAM Mei Ting Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAU Wai Lam Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEUNG Tsin Wah Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEUNG Wing Cheong Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Kennis A L LIU Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Vivian K S NG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr YUNG Wai Kwan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHAN Wai Lam Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOI Siu Tong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWOK Tik Koon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Hing Cheong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kam Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Kevin K H WONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Wing Cheung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WOO Siu Bon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWOK Ka Li Paediatrics 

Dr LAM Yuen Yu Paediatrics 

Dr Lettie C K LEUNG Paediatrics 

Dr Daniel K K NG Paediatrics 

Dr Eric F C CHEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr Paulina P L CHOW Psychiatry 
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15. North District Hospital (Coordinator: Dr HUI Ming Tung) 

Dr Bin A K KITCHELL Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAW Kam Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Wing Cheong General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Ka Yin General Surgery 

Dr LEONG Heng Tat General Surgery 

Dr Raymond S K LI General Surgery 

Dr LO Xina General Surgery 

Dr MAK Siu King General Surgery 

Dr NG Chung Kei General Surgery 

Dr TSOI Yee Kei General Surgery 

Dr WONG Hon Ming General Surgery 

Dr LAU Kam Piu Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG I Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr YIU Kwok Hing Internal Medicine 

Dr LIEM Man Shing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

  

16. Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Winnie W Y CHAN) 

Dr CHIU Ying Wah General Surgery 

Dr Kevin C N LAU General Surgery 

Dr Jasmine T M CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Wing I Internal Medicine 

Dr Iris W S KWAN Internal Medicine 

Dr Herrick S W LAU Internal Medicine 

Dr LAU Sze Ting Internal Medicine 

Dr Sandy H S LEUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr LO Kwok Man Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Tak Cheung Internal Medicine 

Dr HO Kai Kit Ophthalmology 

Dr WONG Wing Cheung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAU Sai Kit Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Buddy Y K WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr HUNG Kei Wong Paediatrics 

Dr KO Po Wan Paediatrics 

  

17. Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Michelle M Y WONG) 

Dr Thomas T S AU Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Hok Hang Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Lap Wa Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Ming Yin Emergency Medicine 

Dr Jeffrey C W CHAU Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHOI Sing Yim Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHOI Yu Fai Emergency Medicine 

Dr Samuel S N CHOW Emergency Medicine 

Dr HON Ka Fai Emergency Medicine 

Dr KWOK Wai Shing Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAW Chi Yin Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Kai Shing Emergency Medicine 

Dr Maxime S M MARK Emergency Medicine 

Dr Maria M Y SY Emergency Medicine 

Dr TSE Sik Kee Emergency Medicine 

Dr WONG Tai Wai Emergency Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Sze Hoi Emergency Medicine 

Dr YU Fong Emergency Medicine 

Dr YUNG Chun Tung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Oliver C Y CHAN General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Ning Hong General Surgery 

Dr CHOI Chi Yee General Surgery 
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Dr Carmen C W CHU General Surgery 

Dr Daniel T M CHUNG General Surgery 

Dr Eric C H LAI General Surgery 

Dr LAU Chi Wai General Surgery 

Dr Steven C Y LAW General Surgery 

Dr Alex L H LEUNG General Surgery 

Dr James C M LI General Surgery 

Dr Eric S K LI General Surgery 

Dr Skyi Y C PANG General Surgery 

Dr TANG Chung Ngai General Surgery 

Dr Jason K W WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wai Ho General Surgery 

Dr AU YEUNG Man Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kwok Keung Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yu Pak Internal Medicine 

Dr Jonathan Y K CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Chun Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr Vincent C C CHOW Internal Medicine 

Dr Bonnie C S KHO Internal Medicine 

Dr LAO Wai Cheung Internal Medicine 

Dr Emmy Y F LAU Internal Medicine 

Dr Violet K L LEE Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Chi Man Internal Medicine 

Dr Stanley H K LO Internal Medicine 

Dr LO Yi Tat Internal Medicine 

Dr LUNG Kwok Cheung Internal Medicine 

Dr Flora P L MIU Internal Medicine 

Dr MO Ka Leung Internal Medicine 

Dr PANG Ho Kwong Internal Medicine 

Dr Loletta K Y SO Internal Medicine 

Dr TSUI Kin Lam Internal Medicine 

Dr Winnie Z M WAT Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Chi Kwan Internal Medicine 

Dr Stephen S F WONG Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOI Ka Man Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Jessica Y P LAW Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Chung Nin Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Dorothy Y T NG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr TANG Kwok Keung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr WONG Daniel Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Anita P C YEUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHAN Edwin Ophthalmology 

Dr Calle K L KO Ophthalmology 

Dr KO Tak Chuen Ophthalmology 

Dr LEOW Po Lin Ophthalmology 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Shan Ophthalmology 

Dr CHAN Wai Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Philip Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHIU Shin Yeung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HAU Vincent Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr IP Fu Keung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Ka Hei Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Leo K H LEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Man Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Priscilla O Y LEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr MAK Yan Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 
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Dr MOK Wing Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr POON Kai Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TAM Kin Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSANG Wai Leuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Man Kwan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Tak Chuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YAM Sai Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YIP Tak Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Ka Cheong Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHEUNG Amy Sonya Cheuk See Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr TONG Fu Man Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr WONG Chui Yan Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHAN Chi Man Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Kwong Tat Paediatrics 

Dr KO Wai Tai Paediatrics 

Dr Elaine Y W KWAN Paediatrics 

Dr LEE Kwok Piu Paediatrics 

Dr LEE Shing Yan Paediatrics 

Dr LEE Wing Cheong Paediatrics 

Dr LIU Kam Tim Paediatrics 

Dr SO Lok Yee Paediatrics 

Dr TAI Shuk Mui Paediatrics 

Dr Lilian L Y TSUNG Paediatrics 

Dr Wendy K W WONG Paediatrics 

Dr Wilson K Y YEUNG Paediatrics 

Dr YU Tak Ching Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Ka Po Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Man Chak Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Wai Hong Psychiatry 

Dr Joyce Y CHAN Psychiatry 

Dr CHEUK Tin Yan Psychiatry 

Dr CHOY Lam Wai Psychiatry 

Dr CHUNG Pui Yin Psychiatry 

Dr Eva L W DUNN Psychiatry 

Dr HUI Hon Man Psychiatry 

Dr KAN Chui Kwan Psychiatry 

Dr KWOK Choi Hon Psychiatry 

Dr Francis W K LEE Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Chi Keung Psychiatry 

Dr Queenie S M WONG Psychiatry 

Dr Anna Y K WU Psychiatry 

Dr YEUNG Wai Song Psychiatry 

 
18. Pok Oi Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. LIANG Jun) 

Dr FUNG Hin Tat Emergency Medicine 

Dr Jeffery C H LAI Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAU Chu Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Larry L Y LEE Emergency Medicine 

Dr ONG Kim Lian Emergency Medicine 

Dr TSUI Kwok Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Yi General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Shun General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Tsz Yeung General Surgery 

Dr Lysander H CHAU General Surgery 

Dr CHENG Cheung Hing General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Chin Cheung General Surgery 
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Dr CHEUNG Hin Fong General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Tak Yan General Surgery 

Dr CHOI Wing Kee General Surgery 

Dr CHU Ming Leong General Surgery 

Dr CHU Sau Kwan General Surgery 

Dr FUNG Tak Kwan General Surgery 

Dr HUI Wei Han General Surgery 

Dr HUNG Lai Fai General Surgery 

Dr LEE Ching Ching General Surgery 

Dr LEE Yue Kit General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Siu Kee General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Yu Wing General Surgery 

Dr LI Ki Kwong General Surgery 

Dr MAK Chak Fong General Surgery 

Dr MAK Yan Wah General Surgery 

Dr MAN Chi Wai General Surgery 

Dr Albert K Y NG General Surgery 

Dr Michael C M POON General Surgery 

Dr Terrence T L POON General Surgery 

Dr THUNG Kin Hoi General Surgery 

Dr TSE Pui Ying General Surgery 

Dr TSUI King Yiu General Surgery 

Dr Kenny C Y WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Chun Sing General Surgery 

Dr Kelvin K F WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Kei Kwong General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wai Man General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wui Bun General Surgery 

Dr Patricia P C YAM General Surgery 

Dr YIU Chun Wang General Surgery 

Dr YIU Hak Lim General Surgery 

Dr YUEN Ho Yan General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Ting Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr CHOI Chun Hung Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LAM Cheuk Sum Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr MAN Shiu Piu Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr SHIU Ka Lock Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Matthew K H TONG Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr WONG Chi Wing Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr YUNG Chun Yu Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr CHAN Chun Fung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Kwok Bill Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Ping Tak Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Wai Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Yat Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHENG Hung On Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Chi Nok Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Ka Kin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Alexander K Y CHOI Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOW Yuk Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Leo K K HO Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWOK Ngai Chueng Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAM Chor Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Marianne M Y LAM Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAU Chi Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Kwok Hung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 
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Dr Arthur K H MA Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Bruce Y H TANG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSANG Ka Ho Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSUI Hon For Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WEN Eleanor Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Martin C T WONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Hok Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WUN Yiu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YANG Isaac Bruce Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YIM Wing Ngai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Emily K Y YIP Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHIO Io Meng Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LAU Tak Yin Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LEE Ting Hon Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Vincent K H LEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Andrew C L WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr YEUNG Kong Wah Otorhinolaryngology 

 

19. Prince of Wales Hospital (Coordinator: Dr HUI Ming Tung) 

Dr CHEUNG Koon Ho Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Nai Kwong Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Yue Sun General Surgery 

Dr Simon S M HOU General Surgery 

Dr LEE Kim Hung General Surgery 

Dr LEE Kit Fai General Surgery 

Dr Enders K W NG General Surgery 

Dr Jones C M CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Kai Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr Philip K T LI Internal Medicine 

Dr OZAKI Risa Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Kong Chiu Internal Medicine 

Dr Raymond S M WONG Internal Medicine 

Dr Annie S Y HUI Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Jacqueline H S LEE Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr WAH Yi Man Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr YEUNG Suet Ying Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Noel C Y CHAN Ophthalmology 

Dr Regine Y C CHAN Ophthalmology 

Dr FAR Ying Ophthalmology 

Dr HO Mary Ophthalmology 

Dr Lawrence P L IU Ophthalmology 

Dr KAM Ka Wai Ophthalmology 

Dr YIP Wai Kuen Ophthalmology 

Dr Alvin L YOUNG Ophthalmology 

Dr CHIU Wang Kei Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHUNG Kwong Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWOK Kin On Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAW Ying Yan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TANG Ning Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSE Wing Lim Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kwok Chuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Yu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Henry C K LAM Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LI Hok Nam Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr WONG Wai Yeung Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHAN Ching Ching Paediatrics 

Dr CHOW Chung Mo Paediatrics 

Dr Eva L W FUNG Paediatrics 
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Dr Assunta C H HO Paediatrics 

Dr Hugh Simon H S LAM Paediatrics 

Dr LEUNG Ting Fan Paediatrics 

Dr LI Chi Kong Paediatrics 

Dr LI Martin Albert Paediatrics 

Dr Amy F C LO Paediatrics 

Dr Geoffrey C F MOK Paediatrics 

Dr Allan K W SO Paediatrics 

Dr Gary W K WONG Paediatrics 

Dr YAM Man Ching Paediatrics 

Dr YAU Ho Chung Paediatrics 

Dr KAM Wai Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr KO Shuk Fun Psychiatry 

Dr Vincent M C LEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr LIN Wei Psychiatry 

Dr Arthur D P MAK Psychiatry 

Dr TANG Wai Kwong Psychiatry 

Dr Joshua M Y TSOH Psychiatry 

Dr WING Yun Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Tak Shun Psychiatry 

Dr Connie T Y YAN Psychiatry 

  

20. Princess Margaret Hospital (Coordinator: Dr YIU Yuk Kwan) 

Dr CHAN Chi Ming Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEE Fu Tat Emergency Medicine 

Dr SHIH Yau Ngai Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kwong Man General Surgery 

Dr HO Leung Sing General Surgery 

Dr LAI Tak Wing General Surgery 

Dr KO Chi Fai Geriatric Medicine 

Dr Alexander C B LAW Geriatric Medicine 

Dr TAM Tak Cheong Geriatric Medicine 

Dr TONG Bing Chung Geriatric Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Kwan Mo Geriatric Medicine 

Dr AU Kai Man Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Ka Man Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Kin Wah Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Man Chun Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Ngai Yin Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yu Wai Internal Medicine 

Dr CHANG Yui Internal Medicine 

Dr CHEUK Au Internal Medicine 

Dr John J H CHIU Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Ho Ying Internal Medicine 

Dr CHU Pui Shan Internal Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Chun Hoi Internal Medicine 

Dr Samuel K S FUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr HO Chi Pang Internal Medicine 

Dr HO Sze Ki Internal Medicine 

Dr Victor H F HUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr KWOK Chi Hang Internal Medicine 

Dr KWOK Hau Chung Internal Medicine 

Dr KWONG Kai Yan Internal Medicine 

Dr LAM Wai Sing Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE Kwok Kuen Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE William Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wai Shing Internal Medicine 
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Dr Reggie S T LI Internal Medicine 

Dr Vivien W M MAK Internal Medicine 

Dr MOK Ngai Shing Internal Medicine 

Dr Carmen K M NG Internal Medicine 

Dr POON Ka Yan Internal Medicine 

Dr SHENG Bun Internal Medicine 

Dr TANG Hon Lok Internal Medicine 

Dr Owen T Y TSANG Internal Medicine 

Dr TSUI Ping Tim Internal Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Yiu Cheong Internal Medicine 

Dr YIM Ka Fai Internal Medicine 

Dr YING King Yee Internal Medicine 

Dr Mimi T M FUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr HE Mung Yuen Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr HUI Sze Ki Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Fred Y L KUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Kai Wan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Yun Ting Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LO Tsz Kin Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr MOK Sau Lan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr TAM Man Sum Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Queenie H Y WONG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Judy Y W YUK Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHAN Shiu Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Kim Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHIU Wing Fat Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOI Shing Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Stephen C Y CHUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LUI Wai Hee Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr SIU Kwai Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TAM Kwok Bun Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Benny Y N TSE Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Chong Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Hin Keung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Kam Yiu Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WU Tse Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YUEN Man Hon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr FONG Nai Chung Paediatrics 

Dr LAI Wai Ming Paediatrics 

Dr LING Siu Cheung Paediatrics 

Dr SHEK Chi Chiu Paediatrics 

 
21. Queen Elizabeth Hospital (Coordinator: Dr CHOI Cheung Hei) 

Dr Paul H F HO Emergency Medicine 

Dr Gordon C K WONG Emergency Medicine 

Dr AU Wing Hang General Surgery 

Dr CHIA Nam Hung General Surgery 

Dr CHICK Wai Keung General Surgery 

Dr KWOK Kam Hung General Surgery 

Dr LAU Chi Hung General Surgery 

Dr LEE Kin Yan General Surgery 

Dr Michael W Y LEUNG General Surgery 

Dr Allen K L TONG General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Kam Tim Internal Medicine 

Dr Johnny W M CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOI Cheung Hei Internal Medicine 
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Dr LEE Man Po Internal Medicine 

Dr Sammy C S CHAN Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr Eric K Y LEUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr YUEN Kwok Lai Ophthalmology 

Dr Benjamin S T FONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEE Kin Bong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LI Ka Kin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LI Wilson Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr John K F WONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHONG Hon Ming Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Kelvin C W CHOW Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHU Tsun Cheong Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr PANG Pui Shan Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Betty W M BUT Paediatrics 

Dr Winnie K Y CHAN Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Wai Hung Paediatrics 

Dr CHANG Kai On Paediatrics 

Dr Jasmine C K CHOW Paediatrics 

Dr Eric C H FU Paediatrics 

Dr Alvin W F HUI Paediatrics 

Dr LAW Chi Wai Paediatrics 

Dr LEE Shuk Han Paediatrics 

Dr NG Chi Hang Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Man Yee Paediatrics 

Dr WU Shun Ping Paediatrics 

Dr YAU Ping Wa Paediatrics 

Dr YAU Yat Sun Paediatrics 

 
22. Queen Mary Hospital (Coordinator: Dr KO Wai Kit) 

Dr TSANG Tat Chi Emergency Medicine 

Dr Ludwig C H TSOI Emergency Medicine 

Dr TSUI Sik Hon Emergency Medicine 

Dr Albert C W TING General Surgery 

Dr James  C M HO Internal Medicine 

Dr Mary S M IP Internal Medicine 

Dr Karen S L LAM Internal Medicine 

Dr Albert K W LIE Internal Medicine 

Dr Kenneth M C CHEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Man Hong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Jason P Y CHEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Wai Yuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Peter K Y CHIU Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOW Shew Ping Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr FANG Xinshuo Christian Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr IP Wing Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Kenny Y H KWAN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAM Ying Lee Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAU Tak Wing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Frankie K L LEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Terence C T PUN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Michael K T TO Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Tak Man Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YAN Chun Hoi Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YAU Wai Pan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HO Wai Kuen Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Raymond K Y TSANG Otorhinolaryngology 
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Dr Birgitta Y H WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Godfrey C F CHAN Paediatrics 

Dr Anita M C TSANG Paediatrics 

Dr Phyllis K L CHAN Psychiatry 

Dr Eileena M C CHUI Psychiatry 

Dr Michael M C WONG Psychiatry 

Dr Zoe H S YU Psychiatry 

 

23. Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Michelle M Y WONG) 

Dr Lyn C P KNG Internal Medicine 

Dr Jenny Y Y LEUNG Internal Medicine 

  

24. Shatin Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Eric M T HUI) 

Dr HUI Elsie Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LUM Chor Ming Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr NG Wing Ling Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Maria W S TANG Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr WOO Jean Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr KAM Wai Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr KO Shuk Fun Psychiatry 

Dr Vincent M C LEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr Joshua M Y TSOH Psychiatry 

Dr WING Yun Kwok Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Tak Shun Psychiatry 

Dr Connie T Y YAN Psychiatry 

 
25. Tai Po Hospital (Coordinator: Dr Eric M T HUI) 

Dr CHUI Pui Yuk Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE Man Yee Internal Medicine 

Dr LEE Shun Wah Internal Medicine 

Dr MA Hon Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr Man Yu Hon Internal Medicine 

Dr Samuel L S TSE Internal Medicine 

 
26. Tai Po Hospital, Department of Psychiatry (Coordinator: Dr Eric M T HUI) 

Dr Dicky W S CHUNG Psychiatry 

Dr TAI Wing Ki Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Yip Chau Psychiatry 

 

27. Tseung Kwan O Hospital (Coordinator: Dr LAU Ip Tim) 

Dr KUNG Shu Wing Emergency Medicine 

Dr LEE Chung Yan Emergency Medicine 

Dr LOK Cheuk Mei Emergency Medicine 

Dr MA Shu Kai Emergency Medicine 

Dr NG Wah Shan Emergency Medicine 

Dr POON Tak Shun Emergency Medicine 

Dr SO Lok Tsun Emergency Medicine 

Dr YAU Kin Pang Emergency Medicine 

Dr YOUNG Bun Emergency Medicine 

Dr Bryant S Y CHAN General Surgery 

Dr Phoebe M H CHEUNG General Surgery 

Dr CHONG Lap Chun General Surgery 

Dr CHUNG Tsz Kwong General Surgery 

Dr Grace K Y HUNG General Surgery 

Dr Alex T Y LAI General Surgery 

Dr Derek M K LEE General Surgery 

Dr Candy Y Y LEUNG General Surgery 

Dr MAK Yat Lun General Surgery 
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Dr Susanna W Y TAM General Surgery 

Dr Kenny K Y YUEN General Surgery 

Dr Susanna C P CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr Jacky K H CHAN Internal Medicine 

Dr CHENG Ming Kin Internal Medicine 

Dr CHING Chi Keung Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Chi Wing Internal Medicine 

Dr Frankie C F CHOY Internal Medicine 

Dr Tina T T FAN Internal Medicine 

Dr Elaine T L HO Internal Medicine 

Dr Billy T L LAI Internal Medicine 

Dr LAU Chi Kuen Internal Medicine 

Dr LAU Ip Tim Internal Medicine 

Dr Athena K Y LOCK Internal Medicine 

Dr Colin H T LUI Internal Medicine 

Dr Samantha Y Y LUK Internal Medicine 

Dr Maria T T SINN Internal Medicine 

Dr TSANG Woon Choy Internal Medicine 

Dr TSE Pak Yiu Internal Medicine 

Dr WONG Cheuk Hon Internal Medicine 

Dr Stella P Y WONG Internal Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Chi Kin Internal Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Shing Joseph Internal Medicine 

Dr YIM Cheuk Wan Internal Medicine 

Dr Ivan P K YUEN Internal Medicine 

Dr Sylvia S N CHOI Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAM Wai Cheung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr TSANG Sing Wing Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr TSANG Susanna Ophthalmology 

Dr CHAN Tsang Tung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Warren W Y CHEUNG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Eric P Y HO Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HUNG Leong Pan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEE Yuen Lun Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Kenneth C K NG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Sara H Y TONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YIP Kun Chow Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YIU Lo Ramon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Jonathan S H YUEN Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Alice K Y SIU Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Zenon W C YEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Louis T W CHAN Paediatrics 

Dr KU Wai Hung Paediatrics 

Dr LAU Chun Yuen Paediatrics 

Dr NG Hak Yung Paediatrics 

Dr TAY Ming Kut Paediatrics 

Dr YAU Man Mut Paediatrics 

 
28. Tuen Mun Hospital (Coordinator: Dr LIANG Jun) 

Dr FUNG Hin Tat Emergency Medicine 

Dr Jeffery C H LAI Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAU Chu Leung Emergency Medicine 

Dr Larry L Y LEE Emergency Medicine 

Dr ONG Kim Lian Emergency Medicine 

Dr TSUI Kwok Leung Emergency Medicine 
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Dr CHAN Man Yi General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Shun General Surgery 

Dr CHAN Tsz Yeung General Surgery 

Dr Lysander H CHAU General Surgery 

Dr CHENG Cheung Hing General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Chin Cheung General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Hin Fong General Surgery 

Dr CHEUNG Tak Yan General Surgery 

Dr CHOI Wing Kee General Surgery 

Dr CHU Ming Leong General Surgery 

Dr CHU Sau Kwan General Surgery 

Dr FUNG Tak Kwan General Surgery 

Dr HUI Wei Han General Surgery 

Dr HUNG Lai Fai General Surgery 

Dr Samuel S K LAM General Surgery 

Dr LAW Hing Yuen General Surgery 

Dr LEE Ching Ching General Surgery 

Dr LEE Yue Kit General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Siu Kee General Surgery 

Dr LEUNG Yu Wing General Surgery 

Dr LI Ki Kwong General Surgery 

Dr MAK Chak Fong General Surgery 

Dr MAK Yan Wah General Surgery 

Dr MAN Chi Wai General Surgery 

Dr Albert K Y NG General Surgery 

Dr Michael C M POON General Surgery 

Dr Terrence T L POON General Surgery 

Dr THUNG Kin Hoi General Surgery 

Dr TSE Pui Ying General Surgery 

Dr TSUI King Yiu General Surgery 

Dr Kenny C Y WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Chun Sing General Surgery 

Dr Kelvin K F WONG General Surgery 

Dr WONG Kei Kwong General Surgery 

Dr WONG Sui To General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wai Man General Surgery 

Dr WONG Wui Bun General Surgery 

Dr YAM Kwong Yui General Surgery 

Dr Patricia P C YAM General Surgery 

Dr YIU Chun Wang General Surgery 

Dr YIU Hak Lim General Surgery 

Dr YUEN Ho Yan General Surgery 

Dr Eddie S L CHOW Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Michael Y P FU Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr HAU Kai Ching Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Andrew Y Y HO Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr KWAN Yiu Keung Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Andrew W K LAI Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LEUNG King Shing Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr MOK Chi Chiu Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Francis C K MOK Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr SIN Kit Man Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Sidney K C AU-YEUNG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr CHAN Wai Ho Ophthalmology 

Dr YIU Po Fat Ophthalmology 

Dr YUNG Hon Wah Ophthalmology 
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Dr CHAN Chun Fung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Ping Tak Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Wai Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHAN Yat Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHENG Hung On Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Chi Nok Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHEUNG Ka Kin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Alexander K Y CHOI Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHOW Yuk Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KWUN Tung Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAM Chor Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAU Chi Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEUNG Kwok Hung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Arthur K H MA Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Bruce Y H TANG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSANG Ka Ho Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr TSUI Hon For Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WEN Eleanor Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Hok Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WUN Yiu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Emily K Y YIP Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr CHIO Io Meng Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LAU Tak Yin Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LEE Ting Hon Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Vincent K H LEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Andrew C L WONG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr WONG Nga Sze Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr YEUNG Kong Wah Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr BELARAMANI Kiran Moti Paediatrics 

Dr CHAK Wai Kwong Paediatrics 

Dr Tammy W Y CHEUNG Paediatrics 

Dr CHUNG Fung Shan Paediatrics 

Dr KU Tak Loi Paediatrics 

Dr KWONG Ling Karen Paediatrics 

Dr David S Y LAM Paediatrics 

Dr LI Chak Ho Paediatrics 

Dr LI Ka Wah Paediatrics 

Dr LUI Ying Shun Paediatrics 

Dr MAN Sze Shun Paediatrics 

Dr Mary Y M NGAN Paediatrics 

Dr Sylvia L Y SIU Paediatrics 

Dr Daniel Y W TING Paediatrics 

Dr TSANG Chi Ho Paediatrics 

Dr Niko K C TSE Paediatrics 

Dr TSE Kong Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Chi Hang Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Lap Ming Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Oi Yin Paediatrics 

Dr WONG Sik Nin Paediatrics 

Dr YEUNG Kin Yip Paediatrics 

Dr YUEN Chi Lap Paediatrics 

Dr CHAN Cheong Fai Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Kai Tai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Chi Wai Psychiatry 

Dr CHIANG Tin Po Psychiatry 

Dr CHOW Suet Yan Psychiatry 
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Dr LAM Ming Psychiatry 

Dr Jenny P H LAM Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Siu Man Psychiatry 

Dr LUI Sai Yu Psychiatry 

Dr Bonnie W M SIU Psychiatry 

Dr TSUI Chi Fong Psychiatry 

Dr Jessica O Y WONG Psychiatry 

Dr LO Sing Hung Radiology 

Dr Frank C S WONG Radiology 

 
29. Tung Wah Hospital – Department of Medicine (Coordinator: Dr LUI Sing Leung) 

Dr Carmen T K HO Internal Medicine 

Dr IP Tai Pang Internal Medicine 

Dr LUI Sing Leung Internal Medicine 

Dr MOK Ming Yee Internal Medicine 

 

30. Tung Wah Hospital – Department of Surgery (Coordinator: Dr Joseph H P CHUNG) 

Dr CHOI Hok Kwok General Surgery 

 

31. Tung Wah Eastern Hospital (Coordinator: Dr YUEN Ka Hong) 

Dr LAM Ping Ping Geriatric Medicine 

Dr Grace P S HUI Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Ho Ching Internal Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Kai Chi Internal Medicine 

Dr LIU Hor Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr Lindy T L NG Internal Medicine 

Dr Betty H K YOUNG Internal Medicine 

Dr YUEN Ka Hong Internal Medicine 

Dr CHAN Edwin Ophthalmology 

Dr Calle K L KO Ophthalmology 

Dr KO Tak Chuen Ophthalmology 

Dr LEOW Po Lin Ophthalmology 

Dr LEUNG Yuen Shan Ophthalmology 

 

32. United Christian Hospital (Coordinator: Dr David V K CHAO) 

Dr CHAN Yiu Cheung Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHOW Yiu Ming Emergency Medicine 

Dr LAM Kin Kwan Emergency Medicine 

Dr LI Kai Ming Emergency Medicine 

Dr NG Hon Wah Emergency Medicine 

Dr Andy Y B TAM Emergency Medicine 

Dr TANG Ho Ming Emergency Medicine 

Dr TING Soo Moi Emergency Medicine 

Dr Sharon W W CHAN General Surgery 

Dr CHOW Tam Lin General Surgery 

Dr Henry K M JOENG General Surgery 

Dr LAW Siu King General Surgery 

Dr SO Hing Shing General Surgery 

Dr Arthur H W WU General Surgery 

Dr HUI Kwok Fai Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Grace Y W KAM Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LAM Po Tin Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr LIN Shek Ying Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr NG Woon Leung Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Edmund K Y SHA Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr SIM Tiong Chee Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Engene Y K TSO Medicine and Geriatrics 
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Dr Sunny S H WONG Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr YIM Ting Kwan Medicine and Geriatrics 

Dr Edith O L CHENG Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr GO Wing Wa Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr KONG Choi Wah Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LAM Wai Cheung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr LEE Lee Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr William W K TO Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr AU Ka Hong Ophthalmology 

Dr Charles S L LAU Ophthalmology 

Dr Brian C T LI Ophthalmology 

Dr Kenneth K W LI Ophthalmology 

Dr Candice C H LIU Ophthalmology 

Dr MAK Shiu Ting Ophthalmology 

Dr TANG Hoi Yau Ophthalmology 

Dr Emily W H TANG Ophthalmology 

Dr TSANG Susanna Ophthalmology 

Dr Nelson K F YIP Ophthalmology 

Dr CHIU Chi Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Esther C S Chow Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HSU Yung Chak Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr HUI Ching Lik Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Edwin K H LAM Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LI Hak Suen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LOK Lin Wing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Sammy N T MAK Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr Raymond N M WONG Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr ABDULLAH Victor James Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr CHO Hung Wai Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr HO Yee Man Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Wendy M Y Kwan Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Zenon W C YEUNG Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr Patrick C H CHEUNG Paediatrics 

Dr CHIU Wa Keung Paediatrics 

Dr HO Yok Chiu Paediatrics 

Dr David C K LUK Paediatrics 

Dr Louis C K MA Paediatrics 

Dr NG Kwok Leung Paediatrics 

Dr Coral H S AU Psychiatry 

Dr Connie L W CHAN Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Wai Tuen Psychiatry 

Dr Janice D W CHIK Psychiatry 

Dr CHOW Shiu Cheung Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Wai Chung Psychiatry 

Dr Jimmy C W LEUNG Psychiatry 

Dr LI Hoi Man Psychiatry 

Dr Liao Wei Ming Psychiatry 

Dr PANG Pui Fai Psychiatry 

Dr POON Lap Tak Psychiatry 

Dr Tsang Lo Wah Psychiatry 

Dr TSANG Suk Ling Psychiatry 

Dr WAN Yuen Ting Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Ho Hon Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Kit Yi Psychiatry 

Dr Mimi M C WONG Psychiatry 

Dr WONG Meng Kong Psychiatry 
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Dr YIP Kim Wai Psychiatry 

Dr Michael G C YIU Psychiatry 

 
33. Yan Chai Hospital (Coordinator: Dr YIU Yuk Kwan) 

Dr NGAN Hung Kwok Emergency Medicine 

Dr Patrick K L WONG Emergency Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Kwok Fai General Surgery 

Dr HUI Sheung Kit General Surgery 

Dr KONG Chi Kwan General Surgery 

Dr LUI Ka Wing General Surgery 

Dr Loar K K MO Geriatric Medicine 

Dr WONG Wai Ming Geriatric Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Siu Fai Internal Medicine 

Dr CHOW Wai Hung Internal Medicine 

Dr LI Kam Yin Internal Medicine 

Dr CHEONG Peng Meng Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr KAM Wing Lok Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LEE Qunn Jid Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LO Hung Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr WONG Yiu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr YUNG Yu Bun Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Dr LAM Chiu Wing Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr NGAI Chi Man Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr TANG Kwong Chi Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr WONG Ka Chun Otorhinolaryngology 

Dr LING Siu Cheung Paediatrics 

COMMUNITY BASED TRAINING CENTERS 

1. A.D.E.C Medical Alliance (Kwai Fong) (Coordinator : Dr Eddie T CHAN) 

Dr Eddie T CHAN Family Medicine 

 
2. A.D.E.C Medical Alliance (Tuen Mun) (Coordinator : Dr Eddie T CHAN) 

Dr Eddie T CHAN Family Medicine 

 
3. Aberdeen Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator : Dr KO Wai Kit) 

Dr David C H CHEUNG Chi Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Man Ha Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung Family Medicine 

Dr Desmond W F HO Family Medicine 

Dr KO Wai Kit Family Medicine 

Dr NGAI Ka Ho Family Medicine 

Dr PONG Pong Family Medicine 

Dr Jimmy H P SY Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Hon Ho Family Medicine 

Dr WAN Wing Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Wing Sze Family Medicine 

 
4. Anne Black General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Wendy W Y KWAN) 

Dr Wendy W Y KWAN Family Medicine 

Dr Irene S Y LAI Family Medicine 

Dr Johnny C Y LAM Family Medicine 

 
5. Blue Care Medical Centre (Coordinator : Dr Angus M W CHAN) 

Dr Angus M W CHAN Family Medicine 

 
6. Caritas Medical Centre - General Practice Clinic (Coordinator : Dr TSUI Hoi Yee) 

Dr Thomas T L CHAN Family Medicine  Family Medicine 
Dr CHU Lai Shan Family Medicine  Family Medicine 
Dr P A FOK Family Medicine  Family Medicine 
Dr IP Yan Yan Family Medicine  Family Medicine 
Dr LUK Wan Family Medicine  Family Medicine 
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Dr NG Ching Luen Family Medicine  Family Medicine 

Dr Mariana C K SHUEN Family Medicine  Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Hoi Yee Family Medicine  Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Family Medicine   

 
7. Caritas Medical Centre – Department of Medicine & Geriatrics, Palliative Care Unit (Coordinator : Dr NG Kam Hung) 

Dr NG Kam Hung Rheumatology 

Dr KWOK Oi Ling Palliative Medicine 

Dr Doris M W TSE Internal Medicine 

 
8. Central District Health Centre General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr SIN Ka Ling) 

Dr Catherine P K SZE Family Medicine 

Dr WANG Hua Li Family Medicine 

 
9. Central Kowloon Health Centre (Coordinator : Dr LAW Tung Chi) 

Dr KO Siu Hin Family Medicine 

Dr KWONG Hon Kei Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Siu Wai Family Medicine 

Dr LAW Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

  

10. Chai Wan Families Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Cecilia Y M FAN) 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN Family Medicine 

Dr Douglas T C LAI Family Medicine 

Dr Kinson K S LAU Family Medicine 

Dr NG Mei Yee Family Medicine 

Dr Roger C K WONG Family Medicine 

 
11. Chai Wan General Out-patient Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator : Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu) 

Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Ka Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu Family Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man Family Medicine 

 
12. Cheung Sha Wan Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr YIU Ming Pong) 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai Family Medicine 

Dr FU Sau Nga Family Medicine 

Dr KWAN Sin Man Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kit Yan Family Medicine 

Dr LUK Wan Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ching Luen Family Medicine 

Dr SY Wing Man Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Hoi Yee Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Ming Pong Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 

 
13. East Kowloon General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Catherine T M LAM) 

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr Ho Ka Ming Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine T M LAM Family Medicine 

Dr LAU Chi Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Jennifer Y F MOK Family Medicine 

Dr POON Ting Kong Family Medicine 

Dr Janet C Y TAM Family Medicine 

Dr YAU Kin Chung Family Medicine 

 
14. Education and Training Centre in Family Medicine (Ngau Tau Kok) (Coordinator: Dr KONG Che Wan) 

Dr KONG Che Wan Family Medicine 

 
15. Evangel Hospital – Family Medicine Department (Coordinator : Dr Billy S H CHUI) 

Dr Billy S H CHUI Family Medicine 

Dr LAU Tai Wai Family Medicine 

  

16. Fanling Families Clinic (Coordinator : Dr LAU Kam Tong) 
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Dr LAU Kam Tong Family Medicine 

Dr Dominic M W LAU Family Medicine 

Dr Raymond K L NGAN Family Medicine 

Dr Rita W M WONG Family Medicine 

 
17. Fanling Family Medicine Center (Coordinator : Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun) 

Dr Jeff M H CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr CHENG Cheuk Hong Family Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Kin Wing Family Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Wai Ho Family Medicine 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Shuk Yun Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chi Lung Family Medicine 

Dr Kitty K WONG Family Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Chi Keung Family Medicine 
 
18. Ha Kwai Chung General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr TAM Ho Shan) 

Dr DAO Man Chi Family Medicine 

Dr FU Sau Nga Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ming Shing Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Ho Shan Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 

 
19. Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital - Family Medicine Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Ignatius P S CHOY) 

Dr David S L CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr Ignatius P S CHOY Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Wah Kit Family Medicine 

 
20. Hong Kong Families Clinic – Tang Chi Ngong Specialist Clinic (Coordinator : Dr TSUI Kwok Biu) 

Dr Anthony K Y HO Family Medicine 

Dr Linda Y F HUI Family Medicine 

Dr Selina S W LEUNG  Family Medicine 

Dr NG Kwok Keung Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Kwok Biu Family Medicine 

Dr Roger C K WONG Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Wing Yi Family Medicine 
 

21. Hong Kong Polytechnic University - University Health Service (Coordinator : Dr WONG Ho Cheong) 

Dr KWONG Ho Tak Family Medicine 

Dr Dana S M LO Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Ho Cheong Family Medicine 

 
22. Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital, Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Billy C F CHIU) 

Dr Judy G Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Yu Family Medicine 

Dr Billy C F CHIU Family Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong Family Medicine 

Dr HONG Tin Chak Family Medicine 

Dr PANG Siu Leung Family Medicine 

Dr Anthony S B POON Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chak Tong Family Medicine 

Dr YUEN Shiu Man Family Medicine 

 
23. Hung Hom General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Ignatius P S CHOY) 

Dr Ignatius P S CHOY Family Medicine 

Dr LAW Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Family Medicine 
Dr TAM Wah Kit Family Medicine 

 
24. Jockey Club Tin Shui Wai Community Health Centre (Coordinator : Dr John T N CHUNG) 

Dr John T N CHUNG Family Medicine 

 
25. Jockey Club Wo Lok Community Health Centre (Coordinator : Dr Joyce S F TANG) 

Dr Joyce S F TANG Family Medicine 

  

26. Kennedy Town Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr WAN Wing Fai) 
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Dr WAN Wing Fai Family Medicine 

  

27. Kowloon Families Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Carroll K L CHAN) 

Dr Carroll K L CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr Lisa P K CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr HO Kam Wai Family Medicine 

Dr LAU Pui Ling Family Medicine 

 
28. Kwong Wah Hospital - General Out-patient Department (Coordinator : Dr Lorna V NG) 

Dr Lorna V NG Family Medicine 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Wah Kit Family Medicine 

 
29. Kwun Tong Community Health Centre (Coordinator : Dr TOO Lai Chong) 

Dr CHAN Ngai Ping Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Pang Fai Family Medicine 

Dr KWAN Yu Family Medicine 

Dr TOO Lai Chong Family Medicine 

 
30. Lam Tin General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr FUNG Hoi Tik) 

Dr CHAN Pui Wai  Family Medicine 

Dr FUNG Hoi Tik Family Medicine 

Dr KWOK Chi Sum Family Medicine 

 
31. Lee Kee Memorial Dispensary (Coordinator : Dr HUI Lai Chi) 

Dr Catherine X R CHEN Family Medicine 

Dr HUI Lai Chi Family Medicine 

Dr KO Siu Hin Family Medicine 

Dr LAW Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr Francis W T LEE Family Medicine 

 
32. Lek Yuen General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Maria K W LEUNG) 

Dr Andy K Y CHEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr CHOI Yue Kwan Family Medicine 

Dr FUNG Pak Kei Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Sheung Siu Family Medicine 

Prof Albert LEE Family Medicine 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr LI Heung Wing Family Medicine 

Dr Peter T K NG Family Medicine 

 
33. Li Po Chun General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr HO Ka Ming) 

Dr David S L CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr HO Ka Ming Family Medicine 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

 
34. Ma On Shan Family Medicine Centre (Coordinator : Dr LEUNG Wing Kit) 

Dr CHAN Ting Bong Family Medicine 

Dr CHOW Kam Fai Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wing Kit Family Medicine 

Dr So Fong Tat Family Medicine 

 
35. Madam Yung Fung Shee Health Centre (Coordinator : Dr CHU Tsun Kit) 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Man Kin Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 
36. Mona Fong General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Matthew M H LUK) 

Dr CHAN Pang Fai Family Medicine 

Dr Matthew M H LUK Family Medicine 

  

37. New Territories Families Clinic (Coordinator : Dr CHAN Ka Wai) 

Dr CHAN Ka Wai Family Medicine 

Dr Tammy K W TAM Family Medicine 
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38. Ngau Tau Kok General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr WONG Kwai Wing) 

Dr LAM Pui Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Kwai Wing Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Sze Nga Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Tak Lung Family Medicine 

 
39. North Lantau Hospital Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr LAM Hiu Lam) 

Dr Alex S Y CHOWs Family Medicine 

Dr LAM Hiu Lam Family Medicine 

 

40. Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital – Family Medicine Clinic and Hospital Authority Staff Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Winnie W Y 

CHAN) 

Dr CHAN Mei Tak Family Medicine 

Dr Winnie W Y CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr Cupid P S CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr HUI King Wai Family Medicine 

Dr Susanna L L HUNG Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine T M LAM Family Medicine 

Dr LAU Po San Family Medicine 

Dr Vincent W S LI Family Medicine 

Dr NG Pak Him Family Medicine 

Dr POON Ting Kong Family Medicine 

Dr TAM John Hugh Family Medicine 

Dr Timmy P H TONG Family Medicine 

 
41. Pok Oi Hospital - Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr Ronald S Y CHENG) 

Dr CHAN Laam Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald S Y CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

 
42. Practice of Dr Ip Kit Kuen (Kwai Chung and Ma On Shan Clinics) (Coordinator : Dr IP Kit Kuen) 

Dr IP Kit Kuen Family Medicine 

 
43. Prince of Wales Hospital - Family Medicine Clinic and Integrated & Staff Clinic (Coordinator : Dr LEE Man Kei) 

Dr CHAN Yuen Yan Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUK Christina Family Medicine 

Dr HO Wing Man Family Medicine 

Dr Eric M T HUI Family Medicine 

Dr Augustine T LAM Family Medicine 

Prof. Albert Lee Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Man Kei Family Medicine 

Dr LI Heung Wing Family Medicine 

Dr Peter T K NG Family Medicine 

Dr SO Fong Tat Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Pak Kin Family Medicine 

Dr Frances S K YU Family Medicine 

 
44. Queen Elizabeth Hospital – Hospital Authority Staff Clinic & FM Integrated Clinic (Coordinator : Dr CHAN King Hong) 

Dr CHAN King Hong Family Medicine 

Dr Ignatius P S CHOY Family Medicine 
Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

 
45. Queen Mary Hospital - Hospital Authority Staff Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Catherine S W NG) 

Dr David C S CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr Alfred S K KWONG Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine S W NG Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy W S TSUI Family Medicine 

 
46. Robert Black General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr LI Yim Chu) 

Dr LAU Chi Hang Family Medicine 

Dr Vincent W S LI Family Medicine 

Dr LI Yim Chu Family Medicine 

 

47. Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital – Hospital Authority Staff Clinic & Family Medicine Training Centre (Coordinator : Dr 

Michelle M Y WONG) 
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Dr Michelle M Y WONG Family Medicine 

Dr Marcus M S WONG Family Medicine 

 
48. Sai Wan Ho General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr LEUNG Wing Mun) 

Dr CHENG Kit Wing Family Medicine 

Dr Violet T M LEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG Wing Mun Family Medicine 

Dr LI Hei Lim Family Medicine 

Dr SIN Ming Chuen Family Medicine 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man Family Medicine 

 
49. Sai Ying Pun Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator : Dr CHAU Kai Man) 

Dr CHAN Chin Ping Family Medicine 

Dr CHAU Kai Man Family Medicine 

Dr David C S CHENG Family Medicine 

Dr Stephen C W CHOU Family Medicine 

Dr KWONG Ka Wah Family Medicine 

Dr Alfred S K KWONG Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Sum Yin Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Ling Hin Family Medicine 

Dr Catherine S W NG Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Hon Ho Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Yick Sin Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy W S TSUI Family Medicine 

Dr WANG Hua Li Family Medicine 

 
50. Shau Kei Wan Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr TSUI Pun Nang) 

Dr TSUI Pun Nang Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy W Y KWAN Family Medicine 

 
51. Shun Tak Fraternal Association Leung Kau Kui General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr LEUNG To Fung) 

Dr David S L CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr Clarence C M CHOI Family Medicine 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Family Medicine 

 
52. Tin Shui Wai (Tin Yip Road) Community Health Centre (Coordinator : Dr LIANG Jun) 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr CHAN Yin Hang Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Sze Man Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

 
53. Tin Shui Wai Health Centre (Tin Shui Road) (Coordinator: Dr CHAN Man Li) 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Sut Yee Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Family Medicine 

 
54. Tin Shui Wai Hospital Family Medicine Specialist Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr CHAN Man Li) 

Dr CHAN Man Li Family Medicine 

 
55. Tseung Kwan O Jockey Club General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Loretta K P LAI) 

Dr CHAN Pang Fai Family Medicine 

Dr CHOW Kai Lim Family Medicine 

Dr Loretta K P LAI Family Medicine 

Dr Matthew M H LUK Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Tseng Kwong Family Medicine 

 
56. Tuen Mun Hospital – Family Medicine Specialist Clinic & Hospital Authority Staff Clinic (Coordinator : Dr NG Yeung Shing) 

Dr CHAN Laam Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Sze Man Family Medicine 

Dr HUNG Chi Bun Family Medicine 

Dr Ronald C H IP Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr Jackie M P Ng Family Medicine 
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Dr NG Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Chung Fai Family Medicine 

Dr TAM Kit Ping Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr TSE Hing Choi Family Medicine 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

 
57. Tuen Mun Mental Health Centre (Coordinator : Dr CHENG Chi Wai) 

Dr CHAN Cheong Fai Psychiatry 

Dr CHAN Kai Tai Psychiatry 

Dr CHENG Chi Wai Psychiatry 

Dr CHIANG Tin Po Psychiatry 

Dr Gloria M Y CHOW Psychiatry 

Dr Paulina P L CHOW Psychiatry 

Dr CHOW Suet Yan Psychiatry 

Dr Rommel C H HUNG Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Ming Psychiatry 

Dr Jenny P H LAM Psychiatry 

Dr Jessica P Y LAM Psychiatry 

Dr LAM Siu Man Psychiatry 

Dr LI Siu Wah Psychiatry 

Dr LUI Sai Yu Psychiatry 

Dr LUI Sing Heung Psychiatry 

Dr Bonnie W M SIU Psychiatry 

Dr TSO Steve Psychiatry 

Dr TSUI Chi Fong Psychiatry 

Dr Jessica O Y WONG Psychiatry 

  

58. Tung Wah Hospital General Out-patient Clinic(Coordinator : Dr SZE Hon Ho) 

Dr Raymond W M PAU Family Medicine 

Dr SZE Hon Ho Family Medicine 

Dr Wendy W S TSUI Family Medicine 

 

59. United Christian Hospital – Hospital Authority Staff Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator : Dr David V K 

CHAO) 

Dr David V K CHAO Family Medicine 

Dr TING Fei Yin Family Medicine 

Dr TOO Lai Chong Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Kwai Wing Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Tseng Kwong Family Medicine 

Dr YAU Lai Mo Family Medicine 

 
60. United Christian Hospital – Department of Medicine & Geriatircs, Palliative Care Unit (Coordinator : Dr LAM Po Tin) 

Dr LAM Po Tin Internal Medicine 

 
61. University of Hong Kong – Department of Family Medicine and Primary Care (Coordinator : Prof Cindy L K LAM) 

Prof Cindy L K LAM Family Medicine 

Dr Colman S C FUNG Family Medicine 

Prof LAM Tai Pong Family Medicine 

Dr Emily Tsui Yee TSE Family Medicine 

Prof William C W WONG Family Medicine 

Dr Esther Y T YU Family Medicine 

 
62. University of Hong Kong - University Health Service (Coordinator : Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen) 

Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen Family Medicine 

Dr Paul W K CHEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr Silvia S M HON KAM Family Medicine 

 
63. Violet Peel General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr TSUI Pun Nang) 

Dr TSUI Pun Nang Family Medicine 

Dr Crystal P S LEUNG Family Medicine 

Dr Marcus M S WONG Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Yu Fai Family Medicine 

 
64. Wan Tsui General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Johnny C Y LAM) 
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Dr Johnny C Y LAM Family Medicine 

Dr Raymond W M PAU Family Medicine 

Dr SIN Ming Chuen Family Medicine 

 
65. Wang Tau Hom Jockey Club General Out-Patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Hui King Wai) 

Dr HUI King Wai Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Kwai Sheung Family Medicine 

 
66. West Kowloon General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr CHAN Chi Wai) 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo Family Medicine 

Dr FOK Peter Anthony Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Wing Yi Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ching Luen Family Medicine 

Dr PON Wai Pi Family Medicine 

Dr Mariana C K SHUEN Family Medicine 

Dr SY Wing Man Family Medicine 

Dr TSUI Hoi Yee Family Medicine 

 
67. Wong Siu Ching Family Medicine Centre (Coordinator : Dr Li Heung Wing) 

Dr CHAN Lit Ping Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Hard King Family Medicine 

Dr Eric M T HUI Family Medicine 

Dr LAU Chi Hung Family Medicine 

Dr LEE Chik Pui Family Medicine 

Dr LI Heung Wing Family Medicine 

Dr WONG Kwok Hoi Family Medicine 

 
68. Wu Hong General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr YIM Chi LIng) 

Dr YIM Chi Ling Family Medicine 

 
69. Wu York Yu General Outpatient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr POON Ting Kong) 

Dr Chan Ka Man Family Medicine 

Dr Li Yim Chu Family Medicine 

Dr POON Ting Kong Family Medicine 

Dr WAN Kwong Yu Family Medicine 

 
70. Yan Chai Hospital - General Practice Clinic (Coordinator : Dr NG Ming Shing) 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai Family Medicine 

Dr Thomas Y L CHAN Family Medicine 

Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee Family Medicine 

Dr CHUNG Sze Pok Family Medicine 

Dr IP Sui Wah Family Medicine 

Dr Luk Wan Family Medicine 

Dr NG Ming Shing Family Medicine 

Dr Mariana C K SHUEN Family Medicine 

Dr Janet C Y TAM Family Medicine 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 

 
71. Yan Oi General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr CHU Tsun Kit) 

Dr CHEUNG Sze Man Family Medicine 

Dr CHU Tsun Kit Family Medicine 

Dr LIANG Jun Family Medicine 

Dr TANG Kin Sze Family Medicine 

Dr Dorothy K Y TO Family Medicine 

Dr YU Pui Hang Family Medicine 

 
72. Yau Ma Tei Jockey Club Genreal Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator : Dr Catherine X R CHEN) 

Dr Catherine X R CHEN Family Medicine 

Dr HUI Lai Chi Family Medicine 

Dr LAI Siu Wai Family Medicine 

Dr MAN Fung Yi Family Medicine 

Dr YIP Pui Chuen Family Medicine 
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EDITORIAL BOARD 

(April 2018 to March 2019) 

Chairman / Chief Editor:   Dr David V K CHAO 

Deputy Editors:    Dr Frederick C T LEE 

Dr Maria K W LEUNG 

Dr NG Kwok Keung 

Dr Kathy K L TSIM  

 

Business Manager: Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Board Members: Dr Stephen CHEN (to January 2019) Dr Adrian T Y TANG 

 Dr Mary B L KWONG Dr Wendy W S TSUI 

 Dr LAM Man (to January 2019) Dr Carmen WONG 

 Dr LAM Yuen Dr WONG Ka Wah 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim Dr WONG Kwai Wing 

 Dr LIANG Jun Dr YEUNG Wai Man (from January 2019 onwards) 

 Dr Raymond W M PAU  

 

Panel of Reviewers: Dr CHAN Lam (to April 2019) Dr LAM Mei (from February 2019 onwards) 

 Dr Nelson N Y CHAN Dr LAM Tai Kwan 

 Dr CHAN Pang Fai (from June 2018 onwards) Dr LAM Wing Wo 

 Dr Julie Y CHEN Dr LEE See Mei 

 Dr Judy G Y CHENG Dr LEUNG Wing Mun 

 Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen (to February 2019) Dr LI Heung Wing 

 Dr CHIN Weng Yee Dr Yvonne Y C LO 

 Dr Rudolph W M CHOW Dr Matthew M H LUK (from October 2018 onwards) 

 Dr Antonio A T CHUH Dr Charles C Y NG 

 Dr DAO Man Chi Dr POON Ming Wai 

 Dr Ben Y F FONG Dr Keith K K TSE 

 Dr Xijuan FU Professor Martin C S WONG 

 

Board Advisers: Professor Rodger CHARLTON Professor Grace W K TANG 

 Professor Cindy L K LAM Professor C A van HASSELT 

 Professor LAM Tai Pong Professor Jean WOO 

 Professor LEUNG Ping Chung Professor WONG Tze Wai 

 Professor Albert Martin M C LI Professor Samuel Y S WONG 

 Professor MAK Ki Yan Professor Rosie T T YOUNG 

 Professor Wilfred C G PEH  

 

Statistical Consultant:      Professor W GOGGINS  

 

Ex-officio:    Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

Dr William C W Wong 

 

Staff: Ms Crystal W Y YUNG  (Administrative Manager) 

  Ms Priscilla S M LI        (Administrative Executive) 

   

 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 

The Hong Kong Practitioner, the official journal of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, served as a convenient and useful medium 

in providing clinical update on Family Medicine related issues to our College Fellows, members, and colleagues both locally and overseas, 

reaching out to over 3,500 recipients. Among the published manuscripts over the last 12 months, 4 articles (16%) were original research 

articles, 4 articles (16%) were update articles, 3 articles (12%) were case reports, 4 articles (16%) were editorials, 4 articles (16%) were 

clinical quizes, 2 articles (8%) were internet update topics, 2 articles (8%) were letter to editor, 1 articles (4%) were discussion paper and 

1 article (4%) was our Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration. Riding on the recent establishment of the ‘Panel of Reviewers’ from January 2018, in 

addition to the usual Editorial Board membership, the Board continued to conduct the peer reviewing process smoothly. 
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We would like to thank the following members, who have retired from the Board after years of dedicated service to the Hong Kong 

Practitioner.  

1. Dr CHAN Lam (retired from the Board as Member of Panel of Reviewers since April 2019) 

2. Dr Stephen CHEN (retired from the Board as Board Member since January 2019) 

3. Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen (retired from the Board as Member of Panel of Reviewers since February 2019) 

4. Dr LAM Man (retired from the Board as Board Member since January 2019) 

 

Our Board would also like to welcome the following new members: 

1. Dr CHAN Pang Fai (as a member of the Panel of Reviewers from June 2018 onwards) 

2. Dr LAM Mei (as a member of the Panel of Reviewers from February 2019 onwards) 

3. Dr Matthew M H LUK (as a member of the Panel of Reviewers from October 2018 onwards) 

4. Dr YEUNG Wai Man (as a Board member from January 2019 onwards) 

 

We would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude towards all the contributing authors, editorial board members, 

business manager, reviewers, advisers, ex-officio colleagues, statistical consultant and our secretariat staff for their tremendous support 

and dedication over the year. Our great appreciation also goes to the journal’s readership for their unfailing support. The Editorial Board 

would continue to strive for enhancing the spectrum of clinical articles for the busy family physicians. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SPECIALTY BOARD 

(April 2018 to March 2019) 

 

Chairlady: 

 

Dr Wendy W S TSUI 

 

Vice-Chairmen: 

 

 

Secretary: 

Dr CHAN Kin Ling (External Affairs) 

Dr LUK Kam Hung (Internal Affairs) 
 
Dr Jenny H L WANG 
 

Board Members: Dr KWONG Siu Kei  

Dr KO Wai Kit  

Dr LUK Kam Hung  

Prof Martin C S WONG 

Dr YIU Yuk Kwan  

Dr Lisa P K CHENG 

Dr Ken K M HO  

Dr CHAN Man Li 

Dr Edwin Y H CHAN 

Dr Angus M W CHAN 

Dr Steven Y K HO 

Prof Cindy L K LAM 

Dr Keith K K TSE 

Dr Jenny H L WANG 

 

(Coordinator, Clinical Audit Segment) 

(Coordinator, Consultation Skills Assessment Segment) 

(Coordinator, Practice Assessment Segment) 

(Coordinator, Research Segment)  

(Co-segment Coordinator, Practice Assessment Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Clinical Audit Segment)  

(Deputy Coordinator, Consultation Skills Assessment Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Practice Assessment Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Research Segment) 

 

 

 

 

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Dr William C W WONG 

 

 

Staff: Ms Alky H K YU 

Mr John P C MA 

(Executive Officer)  

(Administrative Executive) 

Panel of Examiners: 

1. Clinical Audit 

A. Examiners  

Dr Au Chi Lap, Simon Dr Ko Wai Kit Dr Ng Kwok Keung 
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Dr Au Wah Cheong, Eric Dr Kwong Ka Wah Dr Ng Tze King Peter 

Dr Au-Yeung Shiu Hing Dr Kwong Siu Kei Dr Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr Chan Chin Ping Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta Dr Sit Wing Shan 

Dr Chan Ka Man Dr Lam Hiu Lam Dr Sze Hon Ho 

Dr Chan Hung Chiu Dr Lam Hon Man Dr Tam Kit Ping 

Dr Chan Man Li Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley Dr Ting Fei Yin 

Dr Chan Pang Fai Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy Dr To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr Chan Sze Luen, David Dr Lam Tsan, Augustine Dr Tse Keith Kwok Ki 

Dr Chan Yin Hang, Edwin Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr Chan Yuen Yan Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony Dr Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine Dr Lee Siu Yin, Ruby Dr Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr Cheng Chun Sing, David Dr Leung Chun Yin, Daniel Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa Dr Liang Jun Dr Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung Dr Lim Mo Kin Dr Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr Ching Kam Wing Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond Dr Wong Pak Hoi 

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne Dr Wong Pui Ling 

Dr Choi Wing Kin Dr Lui Luen Pun, Benny Dr Wong Suk Ching 

Dr Chuh An Tung, Antonio Dr Luk Kam Hung Dr Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia Dr Luk Wan Dr Wu Tsz Yuen Tom 

Dr Fu Sau Nga Dr Mak Chin Sing, Dennis Dr Yeung Wai Man 

Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric Dr Ng Ching Luen Dr Yiu Yuk Kwan 

Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson Dr Ng Chun Bor Dr Yuen Fu Lam 

   

B. Trainee Examiners 

Dr Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin Dr Hui Lai Chi Dr Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr Chan King Hong Dr Ip Sui Wah Dr Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr Chan Laam Dr Ip Yan Yan Dr Ngan Ka Lai, Raymond 

Dr Chan Yam Lai, Thomas Dr Kung Kenny Dr Pang Siu Leung 

Dr Chan Ying Ho Dr Kwan Yu Dr Poon Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David Dr Lai Sheung Siu Dr Shuen Chuen Kwok, Mariana 

Dr Chau Kai Man Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene Dr Sy Hung Pan, Jimmy 

Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny Dr Sy Wing Man 

Dr Cheung Chi Hong Dr Law Tung Chi Dr Tam Chung Yin, Janet 

Dr Cheung Man Ha Dr Lee Ling Hin Dr Wan Wing Fai 

Dr Chow Kai Lim Dr Lee Man Kei Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr Chow Alex Sheung Yan Dr Leung Cheuk Wing Dr Wong Kwok, Kitty 

Dr Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria Dr Wong Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr Chung Chak Cheong Dr Leung To Fung Dr Wong Sze Nga 

Dr Chung Kin Wing Dr Leung Tsi Mei, Violet Dr Wong Wing Sze 

Dr Fan Wai Man, Anita Dr Leung Yu Hang Dr Yip Tze Hung 

Dr Fok Peter Anthony Dr Li Heung Wing Dr Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr Fong Ting Dr Lo Sze Mon, Dana Dr Young Suk Ching 

Dr Fung Hoi Tik, Heidi Dr Loy Tien En, Grace Dr Yu Sze Kai, Frances 

Dr Ho Ka Ming Dr Luk Man Hei, Matthew Dr Yuen Shiu Man 

Dr Ho Wang Fung Dr Ng Mei Po, Jackie  

Dr Hui King Wai Dr Ng Ming Shing  

 

2. Practice Assessment  

A. Examiners 

Dr Au Chi Lap, Simon Dr Fung Hoi Tik, Heidi Dr Lo(Wong) Wan Ching, Wendy 

Dr Au Wah Cheong, Eric Dr Fung Siu Cheung, Colman Dr Lui Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr Au-Yeung Shiu Hing Dr Ho Ka Ming, Ken Dr Luk Kam Hung 

Dr Chan Chin Ping Dr Ho Yiu Keung, Steven Dr Luk Wan 

Dr Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric Dr Mak Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr Chan Hung Chiu, Peter Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson Dr Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr Chan Kin Ling Dr Ip Kit Kuen, Andrew Dr Ng Tze King, Peter 

Dr Chan King Hong Dr Ko Wai Kit Dr Ng Ventura Lorna 

Dr Chan Kit Chi, Kitty Dr Kung Kenny Dr Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr Chan Kwok Wai, Keith Dr Kwan Yu Dr Poon Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr Chan Man Li Dr Kwong Bi Lok, Mary Dr Sit Wing Shan, Regina 

Dr Chan Ming Wai, Angus Dr Kwong Ho Tak, Howard Dr Sze Hon Ho 

Dr Chan Pang Fai Dr Kwong Ka Wah Dr Ting Fei Yin 
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Dr Chan Sze Luen, David Dr Kwong Siu Kei Dr To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr Chan Tat Eddie Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta Dr Too Lai Chong 

Dr Chan Wan Yee, Winnie Dr Lai Sheung Siu Dr Tse Keith K K 

Dr Chan Yin Hang  Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene Dr Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr Chan Yuen Yan Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny Dr Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David Dr Lam Hiu Lam Dr Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy Dr Wan Wing Fai 

Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy Dr Lam Tsan, Augustine Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

Dr Cheung Man Ha Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung Dr Lee Man Kei Dr Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr Ching Kam Wing Dr Leung Cheuk Wing Dr Wong Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria Dr Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr Choi Wing Kin Dr Leung To Fung Dr Wong Pui Ling 

Dr Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius Dr Liang Jun Dr Wong Suk Ching 

Dr Chu Wai Sing, Daniel Dr Lim Mo Kin Dr Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond Dr Yeung Wai Man 

Dr Fok Peter Anthony Dr Lo Sze Mon, Dana Dr Yiu Yuk Kwan 

Dr Fu Sau Nga Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne  

 

B. Trainee Examiners  

Dr Chan Ka Man Dr Law Tung Chi Dr Tam Chung Yin, Janet 

Dr Chan Laam Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony Dr Tam Kit Ping 

Dr Chan Yam Lai, Thomas Dr Lee Ling Hin Dr Tam Yick Sin, Denise 

Dr Chan Ying Ho Dr Leung Tsi Mei, Violet Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr Chau Kai Man Dr Leung Yu Hang Dr Wong Kwok, Kitty 

Dr Cheng Chun Sing, David Dr Li Heung Wing Dr Wong Sze Nga 

Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa Dr Loy Tien En, Grace Dr Wong Wing Sze 

Dr Chow Sheung Yan, Alex Dr Ng Ching Luen Dr Wu Tsz Yuen, Tom 

Dr Chung Chak Cheong Dr Ng Ming Shing Dr Yip Tze Hung 

Dr Chung Kin Wing Dr Ngai Ho Yin, Allen Dr Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr Fan Wai Man, Anita Dr Ngan Ka Lai, Raymond Dr Young Suk Ching 

Dr Ho Wang Fung Dr Pang Siu Leung Dr Yuen Fu Lam 

Dr Ip Yan Yan Dr Shuen Chuen Kwok, Mariana Dr Yuen Shiu Man 

Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley Dr Sy Hung Pan, Jimmy  

Dr Lau Chi Hang Dr Sy Wing Man  

   

C. Examination Observer 

Dr Cheuk Christina Dr Hui King Wai Dr Tam Wah Kit 

Dr Cheung Chi Hong Dr Hui King Wai Dr Tse Sut Yee 

Dr Choi Chuen Ming, Clarence Dr Ip Sui Wah Dr Wong Kwai Sheung 

Dr Chow Kai Lim Dr Luk Man Hei, Matthew  

Dr Fong Ting Dr Pong Pong  

   

3. Consultation Skills Assessment 

A. Examiners 

Dr Au Chi Lap, Simon Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric Dr Ng Ching Luen 

Dr Au-Yeung Shiu Hing Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson Dr Ng Chun Bor 

Dr Chan Chin Ping Dr Ip Kit Kuen, Andrew Dr Ng Kwok Keung 

Dr Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin Dr Ip Yan Yan Dr Ng Mei Po, Jackie 

Dr Chan Hung Chiu, Peter Dr Ko Wai Kit Dr Ng Ming Shing 

Dr Chan Ka Man Dr Kung Kenny Dr Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr Chan King Hong Dr Kwan Yu Dr NG Tze King, Peter 

Dr Chan Kit Chi, Kitty Dr Kwong Bi Lok, Mary Dr Ng Ventura Lorna 

Dr Chan Man Li Dr Kwong Ho Tak, Howard Dr Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr Chan Ming Wai, Angus Dr Kwong Ka Wah Dr Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr Chan Pang Fai Dr Kwong Siu Kei Dr Ngan Ka Lai, Raymond 

Dr Chan Suk Yin Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta Dr Pang Siu Leung 

Dr Chan Sze Luen, David Dr Lai Sheung Siu Dr Shuen Chuen Kwok, Mariana 

Dr Chan Tat, Eddie Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene Dr Sit Wing Shan, Regina 

Dr Chan Wan Yee, Winnie Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny Dr Sze Hon Ho 

Dr Chan Yam Lai, Thomas Dr Lam Hiu Lam Dr Ting Fei Yin 
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Dr Chan Yin Hang Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley Dr To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr Chan Ying Ho Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy Dr Too Lai Chong 

Dr Chan Yuen Yan Dr Lam Tsan, Augustine Dr Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic Dr Tsoi Wai Wang, Gene 

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine Dr Law Tung Chi Dr Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr Cheng Chun Sing, David Dr Lee Ling Hin Dr Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy Dr Lee Man Kei Dr Wan Wing Fai 

Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa Dr Lee Siu Yin, Ruby Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

Dr Cheung Man Ha Dr Leung Cheuk Wing Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung Dr Leung Chun Yin, Daniel Dr Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr Ching Kam Wing Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria Dr Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy Dr Leung To Fung Dr Wong Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr Choi Wing Kin Dr Leung Tsi Mei, Violet Dr Wong Oi Yee, Amy 

Dr Chow Alex Sheung Yan Dr Li Heung Wing Dr Wong Pak Hoi 

Dr Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius Dr Liang Jun Dr Wong Pui Ling 

Dr Chu Wai Sing, Daniel Dr Lim Mo Kin Dr Wong Suk Ching 

Dr Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond Dr Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr Fok Peter Anthony Dr Lo Sze Mon, Dana Dr Wong Wing Sze 

Dr Fu Sau Nga Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne Dr Wu Tsz Yuen, Tom 

Dr Fung Hoi Tik, Heidi Dr Lo(Wong) Wan Ching, Wendy Dr Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr Fung Siu Cheung, Colman Dr Loy Tien En, Grace Dr Yiu Yuk Kwan 

Dr Ho Ka Ming, Ken Dr Lui Luen Pun, Benny Dr Young Suk Ching 

Dr Ho King Yip, Anthony Dr Luk Kam Hung Dr Yu Sze Kai, Frances 

Dr Ho Wang Fung Dr Luk Wan Dr Yuen Fu Lam 

Dr Ho Yiu Keung, Steven Dr Mak Chin Sing, Dennis  

 

B. Trainee Examiners  

Dr Chan Laam Dr Lau Chi Hang Dr Tam Kit Ping 

Dr Chau Kai Man Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony Dr Tam Yick Sin, Denise 

Dr Cheuk Christina Dr Leung Yu Hang Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr Chung Chak Cheong Dr Poon Shun Bong, Anthony Dr Wong Kwok, Kitty 

Dr Chung Kin Wing Dr Sy Hung Pan, Jimmy Dr Wong Sze Nga 

Dr Fan Wai Man, Anita Dr Sy Wing Man Dr Yip Tze Hung 

Dr Ip Sui Wah Dr Tam Chung Yin, Janet Dr Yuen Shiu Man 

 

C. Examination Observer 

Dr Cheung Chi Hong Dr Hui King Wai Dr Tam Wah Kit 

Dr Choi Chuen Ming, Clarence Dr Hui Lai Chi Dr Tse Sut Yee 

Dr Chow Kai Lim Dr Luk Man Hei Matthew Dr Wong Kwai Sheung 

Dr Fong Ting Dr Pong Pong  

 

4. Research 

A. Examiners 

Dr Chan Kit Ling, Amy Dr Hong Tin Chak Dr Sit Wing Shan 

Dr Chan Kwok Wai, Keith Dr Kung Kenny Dr Tam Ka Wae, Tammy 

Dr Chan Man Li Dr Kwan Yu Dr Tsang Chiu Yee, Luke 

Dr Chan Pang Fai Dr Lai Kit Ping, Loretta Dr Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

Dr Chan Yuen Yan Dr Lam Hon Man Prof Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr Chao Vai Kiong, David Prof Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy Prof Wong Chi Wai, William 

Dr Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine Prof Lam Tai Pong Dr Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr Cheng Pui Kwan, Lisa Dr Lam Tak Man, Catherine Dr Wong Ka Wah 

Dr Chiu Chi Fai, Billy Dr Lam Wing Wo, Edmund Dr Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr Chuh An Tung, Antonio Dr Lau Man Wai, Dominic Prof Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel 

Dr Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia Dr Lee Siu Yin, Ruby Dr Yeung Wai Man 

Dr Fu Sau Nga Dr Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne  

Dr Fung Siu Cheung, Colman Dr Ng Ventura, Lorna  

 

B. Trainee Examiners  

Dr Chan Chin Ping Dr Hui Ming Tung, Eric Dr Owens David Edward 

Dr Chan Ka Lok, Carroll  Dr Hung Wai Yin, Winson Dr Sze Hon Ho 

Dr Chan Kin Ling Dr Ip Sui Wah Dr Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 
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Dr Chan Laam Dr Kwan Ka Mei, Betty Dr Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr Chan Yin Hang Dr Kwong Bi Lok, Mary Dr Wong Carmen 

Dr Chen Yun, Julie Dr Lai Suk Yi, Irene Dr Wong Chi Lung 

Dr Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy Dr Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny Dr Wong Kwok Hoi 

Dr Cheuk Christina Dr Lam King Hei, Stanley Dr Wong Yu Fai 

Dr Cheung Hard King Dr Lau Chi Hang Dr Wu Tsz Yuen, Tom 

Dr Cheung Kwok Leung, Sydney Dr Lau Kam Tong Dr Yim Chi Ling 

Dr Cheung Man Ha Dr Lee Chun Kit, Tony Dr Yip Tze Hung 

Dr Cheung Ngai Fung Dr Leung Chun Yin, Daniel Dr Young Suk Ching 

Dr Cheung Sze Man Dr Leung Kwan Wa, Maria Dr Yu Pui Hang 

Dr Chu Wai Sing, Daniel Dr Leung To Fung Dr Yu Sze Kai, Frances 

Dr Chung Chak Cheong Dr Liang Jun Dr Yu Yee Tak, Esther 

Dr Chung Kin Wing Dr Lo Chun Hung, Raymond   

Dr Hui Kwan Sue, Wilson Dr Ng Ming Shing  

 

The Specialty Board conducted 2018 Supplementary Exit Examination from 3 July to 21 September 2018. 12 candidates sat the 

supplementary Exit Examination and 11 of them successfully completed and passed the whole Exit Examination. 

 

The 2019 Full Exit Examination was held from 3 December 2018 to 24 March 2019. 22 candidates attempted the Examination and 13 

candidates successfully completed and passed the whole Exit Examination. Professor Doris Young was the External Examiner of the 

2019 Full Exit Examination. 

 

The successful candidates were: 

Dr Eva T K AU Dr Elaine Y M KWOK Dr MOK Ka Yee 

Dr CHAN Ka Ho Dr KWOK Yuen Na Dr OR Ka Yan 

Dr CHAN So Wai Dr KWONG Sheung Li Dr SHUM Chi Shan 

Dr CHEUK Tat Sang Dr LEE Sum Dr SUNG Cheuk Chung 

Dr CHOW Tsz Ling Dr LEUNG Ching Ching Dr TSIM Koon Lan 

Dr CHUNG Sze Ting Dr LEUNG Lok Hang Dr Felix TSUI 

Dr DAO Man Chi Dr Kenneth Y K LEUNG  Dr David K K WONG 

Dr FOK Chun Man Dr LUI How Mui Dr WU Chun Yu 

   

The “Outstanding Candidate Award 2019“ was presenting to Dr WU Chun Yu, who had passed the Exit Examination at one setting with 

outstanding performance in the Examination.  

 

The Board had organized Pre-Exit Examination Workshop and Post-Examination Evaluation Workshop after the Examination for 

candidates. The second Refresher Course for examiners was held in December 2018 to maintain the standards of the assessment.  

 

Another task of the Board is to scrutinize applications for nomination to Fellowship of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in Family 

Medicine. It also assesses application for Certificate of Specialist Registration with comparable training according to guidelines laid 

down by Education Committee, HKAM and makes recommendation to our College Council. The College submitted 24 fellowship 

nominations and were all approved by the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. 

 

Finally, the Board would like to express the most sincere thanks to all examiners for their dedication and hard work in making the Exit 

Examination possible and successful.  
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BUSINESS MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

(April 2018 to March 2019) 

 

Chairman:  Dr Billy C F CHIU    (from December 2018)  

Committee Members: Dr Angus M W CHAN 

   Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 

Dr David V K CHAO 

   Dr Mary B L KWONG 

   Dr NGAN Po Lun 

   Dr Wendy W S TSUI 

 

Ex-officio:  Dr Cecila Y M FAN 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

   Dr William C W WONG 

                  

Staff:   Ms Erica M SO     (General Manager) 

Ms Teresa D F LIU     (Executive Officer) 

Ms Priscilla S M LI       (Administrative Executive) 

  

This year is another busy year. We have organised different types of CME activities for our members. The regular bi-monthly 

Dermatology and Mental Health Interest Groups, Medical Humanities Interest Group, Evidence-Based Medicine Interest Group, 

Geriatric Interest Group and Counselling Interest Group are most welcome by our members. Training Course including Chronic 

Disease Management for Primary Care Doctors co-organized with Primary Care Office, Department of Health; Bringing Better Health 

to our Community co-organized with Queen Elizabeth Hospital; Refresher Course for Health Care Providers co-organized with Our 

Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and the Hong Kong Medical Association; and CME Course for General Practitioners co-organized with the 

United Christian Hospital and the Hong Kong Medical Association, Certificate Courses included Practice Management, the Advanced 

Primary Care Life Support (APCLS) Training and Examination Workshop and the Certificate Course on End-of-life Care for Primary 

Care Doctors  co-organized with The Haven of Hope Service and Jockey Club End of Life Community Care Project are well attended. 

Update on Urogynaecology are opened to all our College members with good attendance. Assessment Enhancement Course (AEC) 

and Annual Refresher Course (ARC) are also successfully arranged by Board of Education. As usual, we have yearly pre-examination 

workshop for the candidates and standardization for the examiners arranged by Board of Conjoint Examination and Specialty Board. 

The 8th Hong Kong Primary Care Conference with the theme “Family Physician – Nexus of the New Era of Primary Care”, held on 23 

– 24 June 2018 had more than 470 participants. These valuable activities, some are generously sponsored by pharmaceutical 

companies, can effectively enhance and update a broad range of medical knowledge for our members. 

 

We had a memorable evening of 41st Annual Dinner held on 16th December 2018 at the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey 

Club Building and shared our joyful moment with all our members and invited guests together. We had the dinner lucky draw that night. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our College members, Cordis Hotel, Nikon HK and Min Yuen Tong for their generous 

donation of the lucky draw prizes. 

 

Our Journal remains to be one of the most outstanding and widely circulated local medical literatures. The advertising section in The 

Hong Kong Practitioner and The FP Links, The College’s bulk e-mail mailing and circulating services from members and other 

institutions remain very popular.  

 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Committee members for their contributions. 

 

On behalf of the College, I would also like to express my gratitude to all the following companies and organizations for their generous 

support for the College’s functions in the past one year: 

 

A Menarini Hong Kong Limited 

Abbott Laboratories Ltd 

Actavis Hong Kong Limited 

Amgen Asia Holding Limited 

Astellas Pharma Hong Kong Co Ltd. 

AstraZeneca Hong Kong Limited 

Bayer Healthcare Limited 

Fresenius Kabi Hong Kong Ltd 

Galderma Hong Kong Limited 

Gilead Sciences Hong Kong Limited 

GlaxoSmithKline Limited 

GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare (HK) Limited 

HK Sanatorium & Hospital Ltd 

Leo Pharma 

Lundbeck Hong Kong 

Reckitt Benckiser Hong Kong Ltd 

Merck Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 

Nikon Hong Kong Ltd 

Novartis Pharmaceuticals (HK) Ltd 

Novo Nordisk Hong Kong Limited 

Nutricia Clinical (HK) Ltd 

Sanofi-aventis Hong Kong Limited 

Servier Hong Kong Ltd 

Takeda Pharmaceuticals (Hong Kong) Limited 

The Shun Tak District of Min Yuen Tong of Hong Kong 

Union Medical Centre Ltd 
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EDUCATION COMMITTEE (AM AFFAIRS) 

(April 2018 – March 2019) 

 

Coordinator: Dr Cecilia Y M FAN   (Vice President, Education and   

Examinations)  (from January 2019) 

Dr David VK CHAO   (Vice President, Education and  

Examinations) (to December 2018) 

 

Staff:  Ms Erica M SO        (General Manager)  
 

The Credentialing Committee and CSR Vetting Committee  

The Credentialing Committee and CSR Vetting Committee were incorporated from December 2018 under the Management of the 

EC coordinator for a better collaboration with the Academy and the sister College on the relevant issues. 

 

Trainer to Trainee Ratio 

For the Trainer to Trainee Ratio, all Colleges (and respective specialties) including HKCFP are able to provide a ratio better than 

the basic requirement of 1 : 3. 

 

College Examination Arrangement in Hospital Authority (HA) Hospitals 

Representative from HA presented the proposal on the College examination arrangement in HA venues, which was discussed 

earlier in the Training Forum on Collaboration between HA and HKAM last year. It was proposed to standardise charging formula 

to be adopted in all HA hospitals across Clusters, and the charges would be at concessionary rate, based on floor area and 

duration of venue usage.   

 

EC Members reiterated the principle that training and assessment of trainees should be considered as part of the HA’s mission 

and duties, and that HA and Colleges are partners in clinician training, and therefore venue charging of College examinations 

would not be perceived as reasonable. Furthermore, HKAM and its Colleges should not be regarded simplistically as other 

organisations or different legal entities, in view of their special partnering relationship with HA. The principle of charging by HA 

would impose negative sentiment among Colleges and their members, and possibly adverse publicity, regardless of the well-

intended logistics. 

 

HA’s representative expressed that they were open on this issue and would explore how best to revise the current policy after 

further discussions with the Academy. Further discussion would be required between HA and the Academy. 

 

Progression from Basic to Higher Training 

As referred by the Membership Committee, members were briefed that a few HKAM Fellowship nominees from some Colleges 

were allowed to start their higher training before taking intermediate examination. The Academy’s “Guidelines for Training” has 

not specified that intermediate examination is required to be taken before progressing from basic to higher training ( though such 

is the understanding and common practice  among most Colleges at present). After discussion, members agreed that taking 

intermediate examination before progressing to higher training does not need to be mandatory, so as to allow flexibility for Colleges 

to take into account of different features of respective training curriculum and structure. 

 

Specialty Development and Training for Genomic and Genetic Medicine  

The Steering Committee on Genomic Medicine established by FHB had invited the Academy and Colleges to consider the 

following: 

 whether an independent specialty of Clinical/Medical Genetics (and Genomics) should be established; 

 whether, and if so, how further training on Genomic and Genetic Medicine could be provided in specialties with more 

involvement of Genomic and Genetic Medicine, such as Family Medicine, Oncology, and Internal Medicine. 

 

Leave policy for Trainees 

Leave policy for trainees was raised and it was understood that a uniform policy from the Academy would be difficult and not 

necessary since each College might have own considerations / constraints in respective training programmes. Each college would 

decide whether and when extended leave of a defined duration would significantly impact on the adequacy of training in 

accordance with the contents and methods of their training programmes in relation to the progress of a particular trainee in the 

training programme(s). Colleges were asked to clearly stipulate the duration of leave beyond which remedial or supplementary 

training would be required. The said duration should be applicable to all kinds of leave without prejudice. College may deviate 

from its established guidelines subject to sufficient justifications on a case-by-case basis. When necessary, Colleges may want to 

determine another duration of leave beyond which training would be considered to be sufficiently disrupted as to warrant 

suspension or termination of training status.  
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Similarly, discussion on part-time training was underway within Colleges, which would require facilitation by HA with changes of 

employment terms or associated policies. HA updated that a kind of fractional work arrangement is being explored, which could 

be applied to services of certain specialties as pilot and might then be extended to trainees where applicable. Members agreed to 

further examine the matter and raise concerns to HA. 

 

Specialist Training for Female Medical Graduates  

The Hong Kong Women Doctors Association reviewed the gender ratio of medical graduates and students of CUHK that showed 

a trend of feminisation of medical workforce. The Association suggested the Academy to look into the matter and make 

recommendations to address the matter (e.g. by means of “less than full time” training or flexible training arrangement). 

 

EC Members generally agreed with the stance that appropriate measures would be welcomed if they could facilitate trainees and 

help address the issue of manpower shortage, but such measures should not be gender-specific. All Colleges were invited to 

review / develop relevant policy regarding part-time / flexible training arrangement for further discussions within the EC. It was 

noted HKCFP had been allowing part-time training. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(July 2018 – June 2019) 

Chairman:  Dr David VK CHAO (President) 

Member: Dr Catherine X R CHEN 

  Prof Samuel Y S WONG 

     

Ex-officio: Dr LAU Ho Lim  (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

Dr Cecilia YM FAN   (Vice-President, Education and Examinations)   

Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary)  

  Dr Billy C F CHIU  (Honorary Treasurer) 

  Dr Angus M W CHAN (till December 2018) 

 

Staff:   Ms Erica M SO  (General Manager) 

 

Periodic Reaccreditation with the RACGP and RACGP’s Annual GP 
Conference GP18 
The periodic reaccreditation procedures on Vocational Training, Conjoint 
Examination, and Quality Assurance and Accreditation Programme had 
been successfuly completed in 2018 with the RACGP. The HKCFP 
Reaccreditation Team, led by Dr David Chao (President), Dr Angus Chan 
(Immediate Past President), and Dr Cindy Lam (Chief Censor) met with 
the RACGP team of experts, namely Dr Mark Miller, Dr Chris Hughes, and 
Dr Mark Rowe. In addition to providing briefing seminars on various facets 
related to our vocational training, conjoint examination, and quality 
assurance programmes, several training locations were visited for 
inspection of the clinical setup and trainees in different stages of vocational 
training were interviewed by the reaccreditation teams during the process. 
The teams also met on several occasions to discuss and exchange views 
about the future training and examination developments. Subsequently, 
HKCFP was invited to sign a Memorandum of Understanding for 
International Training Provider between our College and RACGP on 11 
October 2018, i.e. the first day of RACGP’s Annual Conference - GP18. 
The Memorandum of Understanding would continue for 5 years. During 
this visit, we had the great opportunity to exchange views on the 
enhancements of primary care systems and Family Medicine training with 
Presidents and Leaders of sister Colleges from around the globe. 
 
WONCA World Conference 2018 in Seoul, Korea 
The WONCA World Conference was held in Seoul, Korea from 17 to 21 
October 2018. This year, more than 70 College members attending this 
memorable event and witnessed the inauguration of Past President and 
incumbent Censor of HKCFP Dr Donald Li assuming his new role as the 
President of the World Organisation of Family Doctors (WONCA). The 
College hosted a Cocktail Reception to celebrate the inauguration of Dr Li 
at the COEX Exhibition Centre in Seoul. More than 100 International and 
Mainland guests attended the celebration and it was a wonderful occasion 
for the Hong Kong delegates to interact with international clinical leaders.  
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The Chairlady of HKCFP Young Doctors Committee Dr Loretta Chan and six members of the Committee officially represent the College 
and attended the Young Doctors’ preconference. Dr Loretta Chan was also elected as the Treasurer of the Rajakumar Movement, the 
Young doctors Committee of WONCA Asia Pacific Region. 
 
The College hosted a Workshop “Promoting Family Medicine – Novel Ideas” with the coordination of the members of Young Doctors 
Committee and Public Education Committee. The College shared her experience in health promotion in mass media in the past 40 
years. We had also discussed with the participants from the developing and developed countries about their own local experiences of 
Family Medicine promotion and brainstorm innovative solutions to increase public awareness and acceptance of Family Medicine. 
 
WONCA APR Conference 2019 in Kyoto, Japan 
The WONCA APR Conference took place from 15-18 May 2019 in Kyoto, Japan with the theme “Medical Generalists: bringing forward 
a brighter future”. The Organising Committee recognised that evidence of the health promoting influence of primary care had been 
accumulating ever since researchers had been able to distinguish primary care from other aspects of the health services delivery 
system and the main players of primary care were generalists. 
 
The Young Doctors Preconference organised by The Rajakumar Movement (TRM) was held on the first day of the Conference. Dr 
Loretta Chan, our official representative of TRM reported on the events organised by HKCFP Young Doctors Committee and shared 
the current related issues in Hong Kong. 
 
World Family Doctor Day 2019 

This year, the theme of the World Family Doctor Day was, “Family doctors – caring for you for the whole of your life”, or「家庭醫生－

你的終生健康伙伴」in Chinese. It aimed at highlighting the role of family doctors in providing life - long care to their patients – “from 

cradle to grave”.  In support of the World Family Doctor Day, the College and the Department of Health of Hong Kong (DH) jointly held 
a symposium to celebrate World Family Doctor Day 2019 on 11 May 2019.   
 
Also, with the coordination of our Public Education Committee, the College compiled a short video consisting of the “thank you” 
messages received from our patients for celebrating the World Family Doctor Day.  Same as last year, our representative was invited 
to attend the live Radio Programme ‘Healthpedia’ of Radio Television Hong Kong to promote the WFDD.  
 
The 6th Cross-Strait Congress of General Practitioners  

The 6th Cross-Strait Congress of General Practitioners (第六屆海峽兩岸全科醫學大會暨海醫會全科醫學分會第六屆學術年會) was 

held in Zhengzhou, China from 29 – 31 Mar 2019 with the theme “Seize the opportunity to deepen the integration and development 

of general practice” ("科研引領，完善學科，共享全科醫學發展”). The 3rd HKCFP Donald Li Scholarships were also presented to three 

awardees in the opening ceremony of the Conference. Speakers from the College shared with the Mainland GPs on various update 
topics and research studies. 
 
The 4th Annual General Practice Training Forum of the Chinese Medical Doctor Association 
The 4th Annual General Practice Training Forum of the Chinese Medical Doctor Association (CMDA) cum the 16th Annual Conference 

of General Practice and Community Health took place in April this year in Beijing. The theme of the Conference was“拓展視野 創新發

展 突破難點 提升質量”. Same as last year, the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine was invited to be the co-organiser and organised a 

delegation with the representatives from the sister Colleges to attend the conference. Dr William Wong represented our College to 
join the delegation and delivered a speech on Research in General Practice. 
 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(April 2018 – March 2019) 

Chairman: Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 

Committee Members: Dr David V K CHAO (President) 

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim  (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

 Dr William C W WONG      (Honorary Secretary) 

 

Staff:                 Ms Priscilla S M LI           (Administrative Executive) 

   

With careful monitoring by the Finance Committee, the financial situation of the College in 2018-2019 continued to remain sound and 

healthy. Our accumulated financial reserve kept on growing steadily. There is now a deposit of equivalent of over HK$14.8 million in 

our accounts. There are no major changes in our portfolio as compared to the previous financial year. We have about 25% of our 

portfolio is in equity shares, purchased when they were first issued, and the great majority of our funds are in the form of cash savings 

in various banks. 

  

I would like to express my sincere thanks to Dr David Chao , our President, Dr Lau Ho Lim, our Vice-President (General Affairs), Dr 

Cecilia Fan, our Vice-President (Education & Examinations), Dr William Wong, our Honorary Secretary, Ms Erica So, our General 

Manager and Ms Priscilla Li, our Administrative Executive, for their continuous support and services. I would also like to thank Mr C F 

Cheung, our Honorary Auditor, for his professional advice and services.    
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FP LINKS COMMITTEE 

(April 2018 – March 2019) 

 

Chairlady:        Dr Wendy W S TSUI    

Chief Editor:   Dr Catherine S W NG 

Deputy Editors: Dr Anita W M FAN 

 Prof Martin C S WONG 

 Dr Natalie Y K YUEN 

Members: Dr David C S CHENG Section Editor (Feature) 

 Dr John H TAM Deputy Section Editor (Feature) 

 Dr SZE Hon Ho Section Editor (News Corner) 

 Dr Natalie P Y SIU Deputy Section Editor (News Corner) 

 Dr Judy G Y CHENG Section Editor (After Hours) 

 Dr YIP Tze Hung  Deputy Section Editor (After Hours)  

 Dr Ken K M HO Section Editor (WONCA Express) 

 Dr FOK Peter Anthony Deputy Section Editor (WONCA Express) 

 Dr Maria K W LEUNG Section Editor (Photo Gallery)  

 Dr Christina CHEUK Deputy Section Editor (Photo Gallery) 

 Dr Alvin C Y CHAN      Section Editor (Board of Education News) 

 Dr CHAN Man LI  

 Dr Heidi H T FUNG  

 Dr Alfred S K KWONG 

 Dr Dorothy T C LAW  

 Dr LEUNG Lok Hang 

 Dr SIN Ming Chuen 

 Dr Eva H F TSUI 

   

Ex-officio:           Dr Angus M W CHAN 

 Dr David V K CHAO 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim 

 Dr William C W WONG  

 

Staff:   Ms Alky H K YU    (Executive Officer) 

  

 

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE 

Since the publication of the inaugural edition in March 2004, FP Links serves as the College Newsletter of HKCFP with the following 

missions: 

1.    To disseminate the College News to College members. 

2.    To report news of various Boards and Committees. 

3.    To provide a channel for dissemination of information or articles related to Family Medicine, either clinical or non-clinical. 

4.    To act as a bridge for communication between members and the College 

 

The founding Editorial Board started off with three members under Dr John Chung’s leadership. Throughout these years, there is 

significant expansion of our membership list. Our committee now comprises 23 members coming from different sectors: public and 

private; universities, cross clusters and even cross countries. With the vision to promote Family Medicine and advocate for primary 

care, we work closely to promote the development of Family Medicine and enhance the communication between the College, 

members and other professionals. Our contents are strongly diversified, from photo gallery and highlights of college events, 

WONCA news, features of primary care initiatives/ programmes, to latest medical updates and health related news, and even 

sharing of colleagues, young and experienced, about their life and reflections as a family doctor. There is also support from other 

Boards, e.g. the Board of Education who contribute the learning points discussed in group meetings. Our aim is to produce a 

newsletter which is both informative and interesting. 
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TRIPARTITE CONGRESS ORGANIZING COMMITTEE (HKCFP Segment) 
(July 2018 – June 2019)  

Organizing Committee: Co-Chair: Dr Angus MW CHAN  

 Members: Dr David VK CHAO  

  Dr Billy CF CHIU  

  Dr LAU Ho Lim  

  Prof William CW WONG  

 

Scientific Sub-Committee: Co-Chair: Prof William CW WONG  

 Dr Lorna V NG  (Co-Chair) 
     

 Members: Dr Catherine X R CHEN (Seminar Coordinator) 

  Dr Judy G Y CHENG (Publication Coordinator) 

  Dr CHIANG Lap Kin (Full Paper and Oral Presentation Coordinator) 

  Ms Samantha Y C CHONG (Poster Presentation Coordinator) 

  Dr Wendy W Y KWAN (Workshop Coordinator) 

  Dr KWAN Yu (Clinical Case Presentation Coordinator) 

  Dr TSE Sut Yee (Workshop Coordinator) 

 

Ex-officio: Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 
(Vice-President, Education & Examinations,  
from December 2018 onwards) 

 

Staff: Ms Erica M SO (General Manager) 

 Ms Crystal W Y YUNG (Administrative Manager) 

 Ms Teresa D F LIU (Executive Officer) 

 Ms Alky H K YU (Executive Officer) 

 Ms Windy W L LAU (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms Suki Y C LUNG (Administrative Executive) 

 

 

Our College is invited by the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine to co-host the Tripartite Congress from 6-8 December 2019 (Friday-

Sunday) at HKAM Jockey Club Building, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The official name of the conference is "4th AMM-AMS-HKAM Tripartite Congress cum 53rd Singapore – Malaysia Congress of 

Medicine & Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2019", co-organised by the Academy of Medicine of Malaysia (AMM), Academy of 

Medicine, Singapore (AMS), Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) and Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (HKCFP). The 

theme of the Conference is “People-centred Care: Towards Value-Based Innovations”. 

 

The three Academies have much in common in many aspects. We have very similar changing demographic trends and disease 

patterns. We share the same principles in medical postgraduate training. Most important of all, we have the same colossal demand 

in primary healthcare. This conference will be an opportunity for medical practitioners to share their knowledge and experience with 

friends and colleagues locally and from South East Asia, and to make contacts that may lead to future collaborations. 

 

 

Scientific Programme at-a-glance 
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HOUSE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

(April 2018 – March 2019) 

 

Chairman:               Dr LAU Ho Lim 

 

Ex-officio:   Dr Angus M W CHAN (President) 

Dr CHAO V K David  (Vice President,   

Education Examinations) 

Dr William C W WONG   (Honorary Secretary) 

Dr Billy C F CHIU  (Honorary Treasurer) 

 

College Secretariat 

General Manager:   Ms Erica M SO 

 

Administrative Manager:   Ms Crystal W Y YUNG 

 

Executives Officer:  Ms Teresa D F LIU 

    Ms Alky H K YU  

 

Administrative Executives:  Ms Charlotte Y C CHEUNG  

Ms Kathy K Y LAI   

Ms Windy W L LAU 

Ms Priscilla S M LI 

Ms Suki Y C LUNG  

Mr John P C MA 

Ms Natalie TY HO   (till 22 March 2019) 

 

Administrative Assistant:  Ms Angel O K FUNG (from 27 December 2019) 

    Ms Katie P L LAM 

Ms Cherry FC MA   (from 25 March 2019) 

Mr Louis T P LAW  (till 05 October 2018) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

From left to right:  

Ms Kathy Lai, Mr John Ma, Ms Katie Lam, Ms Suki Lung, Ms Crystal Yung, Ms Erica So, Dr Lau Ho Lim, Dr David Chao, Dr Angus 

Chan, Ms Alky Yu, Ms Teresa Liu, Ms Windy Lau, Ms Charlotte Cheung. 
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Expertise and Professionalism of the Secretariat 

There are 4 major academic events organised annually by our College, namely the Diploma of Family Medicine Examination, the 

Conjoint Fellowship Examination, the Exit Examination and the Hong Kong Primary Care Conference. 

 

Last year, our College Secretariat once again helped organise and run three very successful professional examinations, the Diploma 

of Family Medicine Examination, the Conjoint Fellowship Examination and the Exit Examination, earning very encouraging positive 

feedback from our Examiners and External Examiners alike. 

 

As in previous years, our Secretariat also organised the Hong Kong Primary Care Conference single-handedly without requiring our 

College to outsource the task to other academic conference planners. It allows us to host an important medical conference on primary 

care in Hong Kong within our limited financial and manpower resources. It also demonstrates to other members of the medical 

community that HKCFP possesses the expertise to host important medical conferences, so much so that the Hong Kong Academy of 

Medicine has invited our College to co-organise “The 4th AMM-AMS-HKAM Tripartite Congress cum 53rd Singapore – Malaysia 

Congress of Medicine & Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2019". 

 

Salary revision exercise and Staff promotions 

It is the usual practice of the Committee to review staff performance and propose an adjustment in salary, taking into consideration 

factors like the inflation rate, completion of contract, promotion and performance review for the individual staff. The Academy of 

Medicine’s grading system and the latest Government's civil service pay policy were also taken as a reference. 

 

In the last financial year, all members of staff received a salary increment according to their work performance. On the other hand, Ms 

Alky Yu was promoted to Executive Officer. 

 

High-morale team 

The House Committee Chairman has talked to individual staff at regular intervals, in order to know their views on College matters and 

to ascertain if there are any difficulties encountered in their work. Appropriate feedback would be given and any necessary follow-up 

or actions done. 

 

Traditionally, an annual gratuity lunch was organised to fortify the team spirit in the Secretariat 

 

Staff changes 

Ms Natalie Ho (Administrative Executives) and Mr Louis Law (Administrative Assistant) have resigned while Ms Angel Fung and Ms 

Cherry Ma joined the Secretariat. 

 

Last but not least, the Committee Chairman would like to thank Ms Erica So, General Manager, for her excellent leadership and 

contribution, and all staff for their committed support throughout the years 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

 

(July 2018 – June 2019) 

 

Chairman:    Dr Welchie W K KO   

    

Ex-officio:    Dr David V K CHAO   

     Dr LAU Ho Lim 

     Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

     Dr William C W WONG 

     Dr Billy C F CHIU  

   

Staff:     Ms Erica M SO  (General Manager) 

     Ms Teresa D F LIU (Executive Officer) 

     Ms Windy W L LAU (Administration Executive) 
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41st Annual Dinner 

The 41st Annual Dinner was held on 16 December 2018 (Sunday) at Run Run Shaw Hall, 1/F, Hong Kong Academy of Medicine 

Jockey Club Building, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong. 

 

The Annual Dinner was well attended by 197 participants including our Council members, College Board/Committee members, their 

spouses and guests from different collaborative organisations. It provided a joyful opportunity for us to meet and catch up with 

colleagues and friends.  

 

The Internal Affairs Committee wishes to thank Dr David V K CHAO, our new President, and our Council members, as well as 

collaborative organisations, hotels and the Printhouse for supporting and sponsoring the prizes in the Lucky Draw. Dr Judy G Y 

CHENG, Dr Heidi H T FUNG and Dr Matthew M H LUK, the Masters of Ceremony of the Annual Dinner, and our secretariat team 

members who dedicated their great efforts in making the Annual Dinner a successful occasion. We would also like to express our 

gratitude towards Dr John T N CHUNG and Dr Raymond W M YEUNG for their saxophone duet; and our in-house live band FM2 醫

家樂隊 formed by members of Young Doctors Committee, including Dr Chloe L CHAN, Dr TSE Sut Yee, Dr Aldo C L WONG and Dr 

Vincent C T YIU. In addition, we would like to thank Dr LO Ling who had again volunteered to be our additional photographer for the 

occasion. 

 

32rd Conferment Ceremony and the 30th Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration 

The 32nd Fellowship Conferment Ceremony and the 30th Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration were held on 9 June 2019 (Sunday) at the Run Run 

Shaw Hall, Hong Kong Academy of Medicine Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

This year, the Ceremony was well attended by 311 participants, including the successful candidates of Exit Assessment, Conjoint 

Fellowship Examination, Diploma in Family Medicine and their families and friends, as well as invited guests and dignitaries from the 

Food and Health Bureau, the Department of Health, the Hospital Authority, the universities and representatives of local and overseas 

academic colleges.  

 

Prof. Amanda HOWE, Immedicate Past President of the World Organization of Family Doctors (WONCA) and also the Honorary 

Fellow of HKCFP, delivered the 30th Dr Sun Yat Sen Oration titled “Identity, humanity and equity - three principles for modern times”. 

 

The successful candidates were listed as follows: 
 

Fellows of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians 

1. Dr AU-YEUNG Kevin Yik Hin 10. Dr LEE Shek Hang 19. Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang 

2. Dr CHAN Wing Yi 11. Dr MAURELLET Juan-Domingo 20. Dr TSUI Sau In 

3. Dr CHEN Liujing 12. Dr NG Hoi Yee 21. Dr YAU King Sun 

4. Dr CHOI Man Kei 13. Dr NGAI Ming Leon 22. Dr YEN Pang Fei 

5. Dr CHOW Pui Yin Melody 14. Dr POON Wing Kwan 23. Dr YEUNG Ka Yu Doogie 

6. Dr HOU Jing 15. Dr PUN Yat Hei 24. Dr YIP Hoi Man 

7. Dr LAI Joyce Ho Yan 16. Dr SUEN Victoria Gee Kwang 25. Dr YUEN Chi Hang 

8. Dr LAM Ting 17. Dr TAM Kwan Wai  

9. Dr LAU Ka Man 18. Dr TSANG Pui Lim  

 

Fellows of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners 

1. Dr AU-YEUNG Kevin Yik Hin 10. Dr LAU Wing Man 19. Dr TSANG Pui Lim 

2. Dr CHAN Wing Yi 11. Dr LEE Shek Hang 20. Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang 

3. Dr CHEN Liujing 12. Dr MAURELLET Juan-Domingo 21. Dr TSUI Sau In 

4. Dr CHOI Man Kei 13. Dr NG Hoi Yee 22. Dr YAU King Sun 

5. Dr CHOW Pui Yin Melody 14. Dr NGAI Ming Leon 23. Dr YEN Pang Fei 

6. Dr HOU Jing 15. Dr POON Wing Kwan 24. Dr YEUNG Ka Yu Doogie 

7. Dr LAI Joyce Ho Yan 16. Dr PUN Yat Hei 25. Dr YIP Hoi Man 

8. Dr LAM Ting 17. Dr SUEN Victoria Gee Kwang 26. Dr YUEN Chi Hang 

9. Dr LAU Ka Man 18. Dr TAM Kwan Wai  

 

Awards of the Certificate of Exit Examination 

1. Dr AU Tai Kwan Eva 9. Dr KWOK Yee Ming Elaine 17. Dr MOK Ka Yee 

2. Dr CHAN Ka Ho 10. Dr KWOK Yuen Na 18. Dr OR Ka Yan 

3. Dr CHAN So Wai 11. Dr KWONG Sheung Li 19. Dr SHUM Chi Shan Winnie 

4. Dr CHEUK Tat Sang 12. Dr LEE Sum 20. Dr SUNG Cheuk Chung 

5. Dr CHOW Tsz Ling 13. Dr LEUNG Ching Ching 21. Dr TSIM Koon Lan Kathy 
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6. Dr CHUNG Sze Ting 14. Dr LEUNG Lok Hang 22. Dr TSUI Felix 

7. Dr DAO Man Chi 15. Dr LEUNG Yuen Kin Kenneth 23. Dr WONG Ka Ki David 

8. Dr FOK Chun Man  16. Dr LUI How Mui 24. Dr WU Chun Yu 

 

Awards of Diploma in Family Medicine 

1. Dr CHAN Tsz Kiu Stewart 10. Dr KWOK Kwok Lung 19. Dr PONG Fei Fung 

2. Dr CHANG PIVE Sok Cheng 11. Dr LAM Lap 20. Dr SAU Chung Ying 

3. Dr CHEN Li 12. Dr LAU Ka Fai Tony 21. Dr TSANG Sharon 

4. Dr CHEN Yun Ju 13. Dr LAU Valerie Wing Yee 22. Dr WANG Amy Yang 

5. Dr CHENG Siu Han 14. Dr LEE Chung Yan 23. Dr WONG Chun Bun Gordon 

6. Dr CHEUNG Cheuk Hee 15. Dr LEI Sao Kuan 24. Dr XIANG Yuling 

7. Dr CHUNG Ka Chun 16. Dr LIU Hin Yeung 25. Dr YUNG Caroline Man San 

8. Dr FOK Wai Ming Joshua 17. Dr NG Ngai Mui  

9. Dr FU Wing Kai 18. Dr PANG Kwan  

 

The Internal Affairs Committee would like to thank Dr David V K CHAO, Dr LAU Ho Lim, Dr Cecilia Y M FAN, Dr William C W WONG 

and Dr Billy C F CHIU for their continuing support and advice during the preparation. We are also most grateful towards the tremendous 

team of helpers, including Dr Maria K W LEUNG the Public Orator; Dr Edmond C W CHAN, the Ceremony Coordinator; Dr CHAN 

Man Li, Dr Doris N P CHAN, Dr David C S CHENG and Dr Peter Anthony FOK, the Marshalling Officers; and Stephen C W CHOU, 

Dr Kinson K S LAU, Dr Jenny H L WANG and Dr Raymond W M YEUNG, the Ushers. Last but not least, we would like to express our 

gratitude towards our College Secretariat for their dedication and enthusiasm towards the College events. 

 

Photography Club 

3 lectures on “Portraiture Photography”, “Astrophotography” and “Underwater Photography” were successfully held on 14 October 

2018, 12 January 2019 and 23 March 2019 respectively. Photography club members and College members had an opportunity to 

learn more about the photography theories and practical techniques on these topics. We would like to express our sincere gratitude 

towards Fujifilm, Nikon Hong Kong and Olympus Hong Kong for supporting these aforementioned Photography Club events. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE 

(July 2018 – June 2019) 

 

Chairlady:             Dr Maria K W LEUNG    

 

Deputy Chairlady: Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

 

Committee Member:   Dr CHAN Man Li 

   

Ex-officio:  Dr David V K CHAO 

        Dr Billy C F CHIU  

   Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  

   Dr LAU Ho Lim    

   Dr William C W WONG  

       

Staff:   Ms Erica M SO (General Manager) 

Ms Priscilla S M LI (Administrative Executive) 

   Ms Katie P L LAM (Administrative Assistant) 

   Ms Angel Fung (Administrative Assistant, from December 2018) 

   Ms Natalie T Y HO (Administrative Assistant to March 2019)  

Mr Louis T P LAW (Administrative Assistant to December 2018) 
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The current membership of HKCFP is as follows: - (as at end of June 2019) 

Fellows*    776  (HKAM Fellows: (497) 

Full Members   205  

Associate Members   621 

Others **      95 

Total:                1,697 

* Fellows include Fellows, Foundation Fellows Honorary Fellows and Non-HKSAR Fellows. 

**       Others include Affiliate Members, Non-HKSAR Members and Student Members. 

 

More of our members become fellows and the body of Membership remains steady in the past year.  With our College’s team of 

dedicated members who are practicing quality medicine, the term “Family Medicine” is increasingly recognized by the general public 

as synonymous to quality primary care.  We expect to see a constant growth in membership with increase in proportion of fellowship. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC EDUCATION COMMITTEE 

(July 2018 – June 2019) 

 

 

 

Committee Members: Dr  Simon C L AU Dr Aster W Y LAU  

Dr CHAN Lam Prof Donald K T LI 

 Dr CHUNG Sze Pok Dr Vincent W S LI  

Dr Stephen K S FOO Dr LI Yim Chu  

Dr Anthony P FOK  Dr Leon M NGAI  

Dr HONG Tin Chak Dr Hugh J TAM  

Dr Mary B L KWONG Dr TSE Sut Yee   

Dr  Edmund W W LAM   

Chairman: Dr NGAN Po Lun 

 

Vice-Chairman: 

 

Dr 

 

HO Ka Ming 

 

Vice-Chairlady: 

Dr 

Dr 

Mark S H CHAN      (to December 2018)   

CHAN Wing Yan     
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Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO 
 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim 

 Dr William C W WONG 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 

Media Column Subgroup : Dr Simon C L AU Dr  Stanley K H LAM 
 

Dr Alvin C Y CHAN Prof Cindy L K LAM 
 Dr CHAN Hung Chiu Dr LAM See Yui 
 

Dr Amy K L CHAN Dr Edmund W W LAM 
 Dr Keith K W CHAN Dr LAU Ho Lim 
 

Dr CHAN Lam Dr Aster W Y LAU 
 

Dr Angus M W CHAN Prof Donald K T LI 
 Dr Mark S H CHAN Dr Vincent W S LI 
 

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN Dr LI Yim Chu 
 Dr David V K CHAO Dr Dana S M LO 
 

Dr Andy K Y CHEUNG Dr Wendy W C LO (WONG) 
 

Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo Dr Leon M NGAI 
 

Dr CHING Kam Wing Dr NGAN Po Lun 
 

Dr Billy C F CHIU Dr SHEK Hon Wing 
 Dr Oliver O C CHIU Dr Simon SO 
 

Dr CHUNG Sze Pok Dr Alan SYED 
 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN Dr Hugh J TAM 
 

Dr Anthony P FOK Dr TSE Sut Yee 

 Dr Stephen K S FOO Dr Sammy L T TSOI 

 Dr HO Ka Ming Dr Gene W W TSOI 

 Dr HO Kam Wai Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

 Dr HONG Tin Chak Prof Martin C S WONG 

 Dr HUI See Ying Dr William C W WONG  

 Dr Andrew K K IP Dr Samuel Y S WONG 

 Dr Alan Y L KWOK Dr WUN Yuk Tsan 

 Dr Mary B L KWONG Dr YIU Yuk Kwan 

 

Staff: Ms Windy W L LAU  (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms Kathy K Y LAI (Administrative Executive) 

 

This year, the Public Education Committee continued to carry out public education activities through different channels. The Media 

Column Subgroup continued to publish articles regularly in the Hong Kong Economic Journal (信報). The published articles are 

amounted to 648 for the Hong Kong Economic Journal. 

 

The World Family Doctor Day Symposium 2019 with the theme “Family doctors – caring for you for the whole of your life” was 

successfully held on 11 May 2019 to celebrate the ‘World Family Doctors Day’ (on 19 May each year). This event was co-organized 

by College and PCO, and 165 attendees were recorded. 

 

Various public education activities and events in 2018 to 2019 were listed at the end of the report. I would like to thank all the 

colleagues who had offered their valuable assistance in the past year, and our excellent administrative support from the secretaries. 

 

Public Education Activities: 

Date  Event Chairpersons 

3 September 2018 
Media interview on TVB Channel 85 最強生命線 programme to talk about冷氣

病 
Dr NGAN Po Lun 

6 October 2018 
The Cable TV Programme 「至 fit男女」to talk about the potential harm from 

BBQ food.    
Dr Anthony P FOK  

7 December 2018 
Health talk to parents about the prevention of children’s infectious at HKCS 
Central Nursery School 

Dr NGAN Po Lun 

21 April 2019 The Cable TV Programme 「至 fit男女」to talk about the health risk of sashimi Dr Anthony P FOK  

13 May 2019 
The RTHK Healthpedia Radio Programme ‘精靈一點’to promote the World 

Family Doctor Day 
Dr NGAN Po Lun 

11 May 2019 
World Family Doctor Day Symposium 2019: Family doctors – caring for you for 
the whole of your life 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN 
Dr NGAN Po Lun 
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Following is the list of weekly publications in Hong Kong Economic Journal (信報): 

Topic Author Date 

家庭醫生，有你，我放心 Dr YIP Wing Ki 16 August 2018 

冷氣攻略 Dr NGAN Po Lun 23 August 2018 

預防登革熱 防蚊工夫不可少 Dr CHUNG Sze Pok 30 August 2018 

不要讓自己發霉喔 Dr HO Ka Ming 13 September 2018 

病毒攻略 Dr NGAN Po Lun 20 September 2018 

認知治療與阿 Q 精神  Dr Aster W Y LAU 27 September 2018 

淺談脂肪肝的危與機 Dr CHUNG Sze Pok 11 October 2018 

HPV 疫苗接種：我們與世界的距離有多遠 Dr Leon M NGAI 18 October 2018 

阿士匹靈：冇病，食定唔食 Dr NGAN Po Lun 25 October 2018 

告別之前 Dr HO Ka Ming 8 November 2018 

甲狀腺 器官小 問題多 Dr NGAN Po Lun 15 November 2018 

甲狀腺 冇乜事 唔好照 Dr NGAN Po Lun 29 November 2018 

提倡家庭醫學，公眾教育傳承四十 Dr HO Ka Ming 6 December 2018 

放眼未來，社區主導的醫療改革 Dr CHUNG Sze Pok 20 December 2018 

生酮飲食 健康幫手或殺手 Dr HOU Jing 27 December 2018 

甲狀腺 功能亢 驗清楚 Dr NGAN Po Lun 10 January 2019 

流感有感 Dr Aster W Y LAU 17 January 2019 

《朝花夕拾‧芳華絕代—拾芳》 預防子宮頸癌 Dr HO Ka Ming 24 January 2019 

噴鼻定打針?  Dr Leon M NGAI 31 January 2019 

尋找實踐健康生活的鑰匙 Dr CHUNG Sze Pok 14 February 2019 

以毒換毒，可以嗎 ? Dr NGAN Po Lun 21 February 2019 

讓基層醫療分擔醫院工作吧!  Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 14 March 2019 

無煙香港 煙火將臨 Dr Leon M NGAI 21 March 2019 

胃酸倒流病 VS 幽門螺旋菌 Dr NGAN Po Lun 28 March 2019 

麻疹回來 不必慌亂  Members of Public Education Committee 11 April 2019 

東方之珠與天府之國－家庭醫生四川行 Dr HO Ka Ming 18 April 2019 

治療感冒的秘訣 Dr HOU Jing 25 April 2019 

如何「善終」？ Dr CHAN Wing Yan 9 May 2019 

家庭醫生心底話 Members of Public Education Committee 16 May 2019 

黑死病重臨？ Dr Leon M NGAI 23 May 2019 

 一年一度世界無煙日 一起共創無煙香港 Dr David V K CHAO 30 May 2019 

我們該如何面對全球衛生十大威脅 Dr NGAN Po Lun 20 June 2019 

家庭醫生鄭州行-認識國家全科醫療發展 Dr HO Ka Ming 27 June 2019 

風濕還是類風濕 你清楚嗎? Dr CHAN Lam 11 July 2019 

質子泵 抑制劑 怎樣用 才最好 Dr NGAN Po Lun 18 July 2019 

靜觀減痛 Dr Aster W Y LAU 25 July 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE 

(April 2018 – March 2019) 

 
Chairman:            Dr CHAN King Hong 

 

Vice-Chairmen:           Dr CHAN Kin Ling 

     Dr KO Siu Hin       
 

Committee Members:    Dr Antonio A T CHUH Dr Lorna NG VENTURA 

 Dr HUI Lai Chi  Dr WONG Ka Wah 

Dr Winson W Y HUNG      Dr Clarence C M CHOI 

Dr Mary B L KWONG Dr LEUNG To Fung 

Dr Edmund W W LAM  Dr Susanna L L HUNG                       

Dr SIU Ping Cheong  

  

Ex-officio: Dr Angus M W CHAN 

Dr David V K CHAO 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 
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Dr William C W WONG 

Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 

Staff: Mr John P C MA        (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms Cherry MA     (Administrative Assistant, from March 2019) 

 Ms Natalie T Y HO    (Administrative Assistant, to March 2019) 

 

 

The QA&A program aims to promote participation in Continuing Medical Education (CME) and Continuing Professional Development 

(CPD) activities for General Practitioner (GP) and Family Physician (FP). With end in mind to promote best practices, educational 

activities proposed to our College are assessed by the QA&A committee to identify relevant and high quality ones for members’ 

attendance. Participation in these learning activities towards best practices are acknowledges by CME/CPD points, with issuing of 

CME certificate to those fulfilling the College’s requirement as a token recognition and encouragement. To further strengthen 

succession planning and continuity of the committee, we have introduced 2 vice chairmen posts with interposing terms namely 1 year 

and two years respectively for Vice-Chairman 1 and Vice-Chairman 2. 

 

In order to further enhance an effective and efficient QA&A program for GP/FP, the QA&A committee has conducted a review on 

prevailing operation since 2Q2016. Active Learning Mode (ALM) has been endorsed in Hong Kong Primary Care Conference since 

2016. In this regard, active participation in prescribed learning of a prior-accredited activity may earn CPD points upon successful 

submission of both pre- and post- MCQs. Through innovative learning mode as such, learning may be facilitated efficiently and 

effectively in this era of rapid knowledge and technology expansion. ALM has also implemented in the Annual Refresher Training 

Course held by Specialty Board in December 2018.   

 

Also since the CPR Requirement of RACGP QI & CPD Programme 2017-19 has been amended, in order to achieve reciprocal 

recognition with RACGP QI & CPD Programme and College QA Programme; the enhanced CPR Course – ‘The Advanced Primary 

Care Life Support Course’ has been promoted alongside with CPR Subcommittee of The Board of Education starting from 2017. In 

addition starting from 1 January 2017, for HKCFP Members who have chosen Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) as their 

CME Administrator for the MCHK CME Programme for Non-specialists, their MCHK CME record would be under College’s 

administration; and the administrative fee charged by HKAM were waived. 

 

Kindly note that the electronic copy of CME Certificate 2018 is available on the College's homepage http://www.hkcfp.org.hk, members 

can login to their own account to download the certificates anytime. Request for hardcopy certificate can be made in writing to the 

college secretariat, an administrative fee of $50 per copy will be charged starting from July 2016. Please find list of active 

fellows/members who have fulfilled the College’s requirement for awarding CME certificate for 2018 as below. 

 

List of Active College Fellow who obtained CME certificate in 2018 

Dr AI Hiu Fay Dawn Teresa Dr ARORA Namrata Dr AU Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr AU Chi Lap Simon Dr AU Chi Sum Dr AU Tai Kwan Eva 

Dr AU-YEUNG Kevin Yik Hin Dr BIEN Tse Fang Barry Dr CHAN Angela Shuk Yan 

Dr CHAN Cheuk Wah Lawrence Dr CHAN Chi Keung Dr CHAN Chi Wai Edmond 

Dr CHAN Chi Wing Dr CHAN Chin Ping Dr CHAN Ching Teresa 

Dr CHAN Chung Yuk Alvin Dr CHAN Ham Dr CHAN Hau Ting 

Dr CHAN Hoi Ying Linda Dr CHAN Hon Ming Dr CHAN Hung Chiu Peter 

Dr CHAN Hung Wai Patrick Dr CHAN Ka Chun Julie Dr CHAN Ka Ho 

Dr CHAN Ka Lok Carroll Dr CHAN Ka Lung Dr CHAN Ka Man 

Dr CHAN Ka Wai Dr CHAN Kin Ling Dr CHAN Kin Wai 

Dr CHAN Kit Chi Kitty Dr CHAN Kit Ling Amy Dr CHAN Kwok Wai Keith 

Dr CHAN Lam Dr CHAN Lam Fung Dr CHAN Lit Ping 

Dr CHAN Man Hay Dr CHAN Man Hung Jeff Dr CHAN Man Li 

Dr CHAN Mei Tak Dr CHAN Ngai Ping Dr CHAN Pang Fai 

Dr CHAN Pui Chuen Dr CHAN Pui Kwan Dr CHAN Pui Wai 

Dr CHAN Shan Ching Dr CHAN Shui Ling Dr CHAN Shuk Wun 

Dr CHAN Siu Ling Cloey Dr CHAN So Wai Dr CHAN Suen Ho Mark 

Dr CHAN Sze Luen David Dr CHAN Sze Man Dr CHAN Tat Eddie 

Dr CHAN Wai Yee Tina Dr CHAN Wan Ki Dr CHAN Wan Wai 

Dr CHAN Wing Yan Dr CHAN Wing Yi Dr CHAN Yau Wa 

Dr CHAN Yeuk Kei Dr CHAN Yin Chiu Dr CHAN Yin Hang 

Dr CHAN Ying Ho Dr CHAN Ying Ho Andrew Dr CHAN Yu 

Dr CHAN Yuen Yan Dr CHAN Yuk Ying Angela Dr CHANG Ka Fai 

Dr CHANG Wai Wah Wilson Dr CHANG Wells Dr CHAU Ka Vai 

Dr CHAU Kai Man Dr CHE Ka Seng Dr CHEN Hing Han 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/
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Dr CHEN Liujing Dr CHEN Xiao Qun Dr CHEN Xiao Rui Catherine 

Dr CHENG Cheuk Hong Dr CHENG Chun Sing David Dr CHENG Ghar Yee Judy 

Dr CHENG Hei Wan Dr CHENG Kit Wing Dr CHENG Kwan Chui 

Dr CHENG Michael Dr CHENG Pui Sum Cupid Dr CHENG Sai Yip Ronald 

Dr CHENG Wai Fat Dr CHEUK Christina Dr CHEUK Man Cheong Eric 

Dr CHEUK Tat Sang Dr CHEUK Wing Ngar Dr CHEUK Yau Chun 

Dr CHEUNG Chi Hong David Dr CHEUNG Hard King Dr CHEUNG Helen 

Dr CHEUNG Kin Wan Kelvin Dr CHEUNG Kit Ying Andy Dr CHEUNG Kwok Leung Sydney 

Dr CHEUNG Man Ha Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen Dr CHEUNG Mei Yee 

Dr CHEUNG Ngai Fung Dr CHEUNG Pui Shan Cindy Dr CHEUNG Shun Tai 

Dr CHEUNG Sze Man Dr CHEUNG Wai Keung Paul Dr CHEUNG Wang Chung 

Dr CHEUNG Wing Wo Dr CHEUNG Yan Kit Dr CHEUNG Yau Ling Florence 

Dr CHEUNG Ying Man Dr CHEUNG Yu Dr CHIANG Lap Kin 

Dr CHING Kam Wing Dr CHING Tak Kwan Joyce Dr CHIU Chap Fai Johnnie 

Dr CHIU Chi Fai Billy Dr CHIU On Chi Oliver Dr CHO Yin Fan 

Dr CHOI Chuen Ming Clarence Dr CHOI Kin Gabriel Dr CHOI Man Kei 

Dr CHOI Wing Kin Dr CHOI Yue Kwan Dr CHOU Chun Wing Stephen 

Dr CHOW Chong Kwan Dr CHOW Kai Lim Dr CHOW Kam Fai 

Dr CHOW Kar Kin Peter Dr CHOW Kim Yue Dr CHOW Kwan Lung 

Dr CHOW Pui Yin Melody Dr CHOW Sheung Yan Alex Dr CHOW Shun Ming Simon 

Dr CHOW Tsz Ling Dr CHOW Wai Hung Dr CHOW Wai Man Rudolph 

Dr CHOW Wing Man Dr CHOW Wing Yan Dr CHOY Chi Keung 

Dr CHOY Lai Chun Dr CHOY Pui Sang Ignatius Dr CHU Lai Ah Julia 

Dr CHU Lai Shan Dr CHU Tsun Kit Dr CHU Wai Ting Becky 

Dr CHU Wan Wing Vivian Dr CHUA Kam Ling Dr CHUANG Yuk Shan 

Dr CHUH An Tung Antonio Dr CHUI Man Dr CHUI Siu Hang Billy 

Dr CHUI Winnie Wan Ying Dr CHUNG Chak Cheong Dr CHUNG Kin Wing 

Dr CHUNG Sze Pok Dr CHUNG Sze Ting Dr CHUNG Tze Nang John 

Dr CHUNG Wai Ho Dr CHUNG Yat Ki Benedict Dr DAO Man Chi 

Dr DOO Ching Hoi Dr FAN Yuen Man Cecilia Dr FOK Ka Pun 

Dr FOK Peter Anthony Dr FOK Siu Wing Dominic Dr FONG Chui Ying 

Dr FONG Ting Dr FOO Bong Yin Kevin Dr FOO Kam So Stephen 

Dr FU Sau Nga Dr FU Siu Saap Michelle Dr FUNG Hoi Tik 

Dr FUNG Kai Chiu Dr FUNG Kin Chor Dr FUNG Kwok Hay 

Dr FUNG Pak Kei Dr FUNG Yuk Kwan Dr HAN Jinghao 

Dr HAN Tun Bing William Dr HAU Sin Ying Cindy Dr HO Chin Chiu 

Dr HO Chung Yu Dr HO Ka Kei Edward Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr HO Ka Ying Dr HO Kai Chi Kenneth Dr HO Kam Wai 

Dr HO Kin Sang Dr HO King Yip Anthony Dr HO Mo Sze Ellen 

Dr HO Shu Wan Dr HO Tsz Bun Dr HO Wang Fung Desmond 

Dr HO Wing Man Dr HONG Tin Chak Dr HOU Jing 

Dr HSU Kwok Fai David Dr HUI King Wai Dr HUI Kwun Sue Wilson 

Dr HUI Lai Chi Dr HUI Ming Tung Eric Dr HUI See Ying 

Dr HUI Wai Lee Dr HUNG Chi Bun Dr HUNG Lok Lam Susanna 

Dr HUNG Wai Shan Sandra Dr HUNG Wai Yin Winson Dr IONG Ka I 

Dr IP Chung Ho Ronald Dr IP Kit Kuen Andrew Dr IP Pang Fei 

Dr IP Sai Yin Dr IP Sui Wah Dr IP Yan Yan 

Dr KAM Hing Wah Anthony Dr KAM Ting Ting Dr KAN Chi Ho 

Dr KAN Chi Leung David Dr KAO Park Ming Dr KI Chi Wing Samuel 

Dr KO Siu Hin Dr KO Wai Kit Dr KO Yuet 

Dr KOK Kwok Yee Dr KONG Che Wan Dr KONG Chi Hang 

Dr KONG Chun Yuk Dr KONG Yim Fai Albert Dr KUM Chung Hang 

Dr KUNG Kenny Dr KWAN Chun Man Dr KWAN Ho Yin Patrick 

Dr KWAN Ka Mei Betty Dr KWAN Man Woo Dr KWAN Shu To 

Dr KWAN Sin Man Dr KWAN Wing Yan Wendy Dr KWAN Yu 

Dr KWOK Chi Chiu Dr KWOK Chi Ming Dr KWOK Chi Sum 

Dr KWOK Chung Hon Michael Dr KWOK Lai Key Priscilla Dr KWOK Lai Ping Steffi 

Dr KWOK Memie Dr KWOK Tsz Tik Dr KWOK Vincci 

Dr KWOK Yee Ming Elaine Dr KWOK Yuen Na Dr KWOK Yuk Lun Alan 

Dr KWONG Bi Lok Mary Dr KWONG Hon Kei Dr KWONG Ka Wah 

Dr KWONG Lok See Dr KWONG Sheung Li Dr KWONG Siu Kei Alfred 

Dr KWONG Wing Hun Dr LAI Joyce Ho Yan Dr LAI Kit Chi 

Dr LAI Kit Ping Loretta Dr LAI Ming Wah Alexander Dr LAI Pui Yan 
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Dr LAI Sheung Siu Dr LAI Siu Wai Dr LAI Suk Yi Irene 

Dr LAI Sum Yin Dr LAI Wai Wah Dr LAM Hiu Lam 

Dr LAM Hon Man Dr LAM King Hei Stanley Dr LAM Man Chun 

Dr LAM Man Man Dr LAM Man Jansen Dr LAM Paul 

Dr LAM Pui Dr LAM Soe Tjhoen Dr LAM Sun Ching 

Dr LAM Tak Hung Dr LAM Tak Man Catherine Dr LAM Ting 

Dr LAM Tsan Augustine Dr LAM Wai Chi Rocky Dr LAM Wai Leung Anthony 

Dr LAM Wing Kwun Dr LAM Wing Wo Edmund Dr LAM Ying 

Dr LAM Ying Ying Dr LAU Cheuk Nam Mathew Dr LAU Chi Hang 

Dr LAU Chi Hung Dr LAU Chi Ming Dr LAU Chun Hung Gavin 

Dr LAU Chun Yin Victor Dr LAU Ho Lim Dr LAU Hon Chung 

Dr LAU Ka Kin Dr LAU Ka Man Dr LAU Kam Tong 

Dr LAU Kin Sang Kinson Dr LAU Lai Na Dr LAU Man Wai Dominic 

Dr LAU Po Shan Dr LAU Pui Lam Patrick Dr LAU Pui Ling 

Dr LAU Sek Fung Spike Dr LAU Tai Wai Dr LAU Wai Keung Timothy 

Dr LAU Wai Yee Aster Dr LAU Wing Man Dr LAU Yue Young Geoffrey 

Dr LAW Tung Chi Dr LEE Cheuk Pong Dr LEE Chi Leung 

Dr LEE Chiang Tee Frederick Dr LEE Chik Pui Dr LEE Ching Man Margaret 

Dr LEE Chun Hui Dr LEE Edna Tin Wai Dr LEE Ho Ming 

Dr LEE Hoi Ying Dr LEE Ka Ling Glenn Dr LEE Kai Yuen 

Dr LEE Kar Fai Dr LEE Kit Yan Dr LEE Ling Hin 

Dr LEE Man Kei Dr LEE Shek Hang Dr LEE Sik Kwan Jenny 

Dr LEE Siu Yin Ruby Dr LEE Sum Dr LEE Wing Mei Dickinson 

Dr LEE Wing Mei Winnie Dr LEE Wing Yi Dr LEUNG Cheuk Wing 

Dr LEUNG Ching Ching Dr LEUNG Chun Yin Daniel Dr LEUNG Gin Pang 

Dr LEUNG Hor Yee Dr LEUNG Hung Cho Dr LEUNG Ka Fai 

Dr LEUNG Kim Dr LEUNG Kin Kay Dr LEUNG Kwan Wa Maria 

Dr LEUNG Lai Kuen Dr LEUNG Lok Hang Dr LEUNG Man Yin 

Dr LEUNG May Heng Sandy Dr LEUNG Pui Sha Crystal Dr LEUNG Sze Wan Selina 

Dr LEUNG To Fung Dr LEUNG Tsi Mei Violet Dr LEUNG Wai Man 

Dr LEUNG Wan Chiu Dr LEUNG Wing Kit Dr LEUNG Wing Mun 

Dr LEUNG Yu Hang Dr LEUNG Yuen Kin Kenneth Dr LI Keung 

Dr LI Kong Yu Dr LI Shing Yan Dr LI Wing Shun Vincent 

Dr LI Yim Chu Dr LI Yuen Yuen Dr LIM Mo Kin 

Dr LIN Chor Keung Calvin Dr LIU Yin Mei Dr LO Alvina 

Dr LO Chun Hung Raymond Dr LO Ling Dr LO Sze Mon Dana 

Dr LO Tsun Fan Dr LO Tsz Yan Dr LO Wai Hon 

Dr LO Wing Sze Dr LO Yuen Chung Yvonne Dr LUI Luen Pun Benny 

Dr LUK Chi To Dr LUK Chun Wa Dr LUK Kam Hung 

Dr LUK Man Hei Matthew Dr LUK Wan Dr MA Ching Hing Stanley 

Dr MAK Kam Lun Dr MAK Wing Hang Dr MAN Fung Yi 

Dr MAURELLET Juan-Domingo Dr MO Kam Chuen Dr MOK Ka Yee 

Dr MOK Wai Che Lena Dr MOK Yuen Fan Jennifer Dr NG VENTURA Lorna 

Dr NG Cham Chi Dr NG Ching Luen Dr NG Chiu Lap 

Dr NG Chun Bor Dr NG Hoi Yee Dr NG Kwok Keung 

Dr NG Mei Po Jackie Dr NG Mei Yee Dr NG Ming Shing 

Dr NG Pak Him Dr NG Pui Yam Dr NG Sheung Yee 

Dr NG Sze Wing Catherine Dr NG Tsz Kin Dr NG Tze King Peter 

Dr NG Yeung Shing Dr NGAI Ho Yin Allen Dr NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr NGAI Ming Leon Dr NGAN Hung Kin Henry Dr NGAN Ka Lai Raymond 

Dr NGAN Po Lun Dr OR Ka Yan Dr PAK Sik On 

Dr PANG Kwok Ching Dr PANG Seung Chiu Dr PANG Siu Leung 

Dr PON Wai Pi Dr PONG Pong Dr POON Ming Wai 

Dr POON Shun Bong Anthony Dr POON Ting Kong Dr POON Wing Kwan 

Dr POON Yung Yin Dr PUN Yat Hei Dr SCHLAIKIER Brigitte Elisabeth 

Dr SHE Siu Yam Dominic Dr SHEK Chun Chiu Dr SHEK Hon Wing 

Dr SHIU Ka Lok Dr SHIU Wing Ho Dr SHUEN Chuen Kwok Mariana 

Dr SHUM Chi Shan Winnie Dr SIN Edmond Ho Fai Dr SIN Ka Ling 

Dr SIN Ming Chuen Dr SIT Pui Ki Lolita Dr SIT Wing Shan 

Dr SIU Leung Chow Dr SIU Pui Yi Natalie Dr SIU Samuel Ji-Sum 

Dr SO Ching Yee Gloria Dr SO Fong Tat Dr SO Mei Ho Doris 

Dr SO Ping Roger Dr SO Simon Dr SO Siu Hei 

Dr SO Tsang Yim Dr SUEN Hung Yan Alex Dr SUEN Victoria Gee Kwang 
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Dr SUN Yiu Kwong Dr SUNG Tai Wai David Dr SY Hung Pan Jimmy 

Dr SY Wing Man Dr SZE Hon Ho Dr SZE Lung Yam 

Dr SZE Pui Ka Catherine Dr SZE Siu Lam Jason Dr TAM Chi Wing Peter 

Dr TAM Chung Yin Janet Dr TAM Ho Shan Dr TAM John Hugh 

Dr TAM Ka Wae Tammy Dr TAM Kit Ping Dr TAM Kwan Wai 

Dr TAM Man Wai Dr TAM Sze Man Dr TAM Wah Kit 

Dr TAM Wing Yi Cherry Dr TAM Yick Sin Dr TANG Hiu Wai 

Dr TANG Hoi Yan Dr TANG Kin Sze Dr TANG Man Leung Thomas 

Dr TIN Yuen Ying Dr TING Fei Yin Dr TING Sze Man 

Dr TO Kit Yuk Dorothy Dr TONG Ka Hung Dr TONG Po Hei Timmy 

Dr TONG Siu Man Dr TOO Lai Chong Dr TSANG (LEUNG) Yin Ching 

Dr TSANG Chi Fai Dr TSANG Ming Lam Dr TSANG Pui Lim 

Dr TSANG Sheung Yin Stanley Dr TSANG Wai Mun Dr TSE Hing Choi 

Dr TSE Keith Kwok Ki Dr TSE Kwok Lam Dr TSE Kwok Lun Tony 

Dr TSE Peggy Dr TSE Po Ching Venus Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr TSE Tak Kei Dr TSE Tsui Yee Emily Dr TSE Tung Wing George 

Dr TSE Wan Ying Dr TSEUNG Kwan Hang Dr TSIM Koon Lan Kathy 

Dr TSO Ka Hin Kathleen Dr TSOI Lai To Sammy Dr TSOI Wai Wang Gene 

Dr TSUI Felix Dr TSUI Hing Sing Robert Dr TSUI Hiu Fa 

Dr TSUI Hoi Yee Dr TSUI Pun Nang Dr TSUI Sau In 

Dr TSUI Wing Sze Wendy Dr WAN King Tung Peter Dr WAN Kwong Yu 

Dr WAN Wing Fai Dr WANG Hua Li Dr WAT Kwong Sang 

Dr WONG Bing Hang Dr WONG Chak Tong Dr WONG Chi Ho Keith 

Dr WONG Chi Lung Dr WONG Chi Sang Martin Dr WONG Chit Wing 

Dr WONG Chun Fai Dr WONG Chun Pong Dr WONG Chung Tao 

Dr WONG Fai Ying Dr WONG Hang Fai Ricky Dr WONG Hei Man Emily 

Dr WONG Hing Lam Dr WONG Hiu Lap Dr WONG Ho Cheong 

Dr WONG Hong Kiu Queenie Dr WONG Hung Peter Dr WONG Ka Ki David 

Dr WONG Ka Wah Dr WONG Kwai Sheung Dr WONG Kwai Wing 

Dr WONG Kwok Hoi Dr WONG Kwok Kitty Dr WONG Lai Cheung Virginia 

Dr WONG Man Kin Dr WONG Man Ying Michelle Dr WONG Man Ying Michelle 

Dr WONG Nai Ming Dr WONG Oi Yee Amy Dr WONG Pak Hoi 

Dr WONG Pak Kin Dr WONG Pui Ling Dr WONG Siu Shan Simon 

Dr WONG Suk Ching Dr WONG Sze Kei Dr WONG Sze Nga 

Dr WONG Tak Lung Dr WONG Tseng Kwong Dr WONG Tsz Kau Carl 

Dr WONG Wai Bun Wilbert Dr WONG Wai Man Rita Dr WONG Wai On 

Dr WONG Wai Ying Jeannie Dr WONG Wing Sze Dr WONG Yat Wah Alfred 

Dr WONG Yeuk Ka Harry Dr WONG Ying Fun Dr WONG Yuen Ping Mariana 

Dr WONG Yuk Shan Dr WU Chun Yu Dr WU Kwok Keung 

Dr WU Shui Chi Nerrissa Dr WU Sze Man Dr WU Tsz Yuen Tom 

Dr WU Wing Keung Ricky Dr WUN Yuk Tsan Dr XU Shaowei 

Dr YAM Tak Kwong Dr YAU Chi Hong Dr YAU Kin Chung 

Dr YAU King Sun Dr YAU Lai Mo Dr YAU Wing Ho 

Dr YEN Pang Fei Dr YEUNG Chi Keung Dr YEUNG Hoi Pun 

Dr YEUNG Ka Yu Doogie Dr YEUNG Pui Chu Christina Dr YEUNG Sau Ying 

Dr YEUNG Sze Wai Dr YEUNG To Ling Solomon Dr YEUNG Wai Kei Patrick 

Dr YEUNG Wai Man Dr YEUNG Yee Mei Dr YIM Chi Ling 

Dr YING Gard Ching Derek Dr YIO Shing Dr YIP Chun Kong 

Dr YIP Hoi Man Vivian Dr YIP Pui Chuen Dr YIP Tze Hung 

Dr YIP Wah Yung Dr YIP Wing Ki Dr YIP Wing Yi 

Dr YIU Cheuk Man Dr YIU Kam Yi Dr YIU Ming Pong 

Dr YIU Yee Ki Dr YIU Yiu Kee Kelvin Dr YIU Yuk Kwan 

Dr YOUNG Suk Ching Dr YOUNG Yiu Fai Dr YU Kwan Alexander 

Dr YU Man Sun Dr YU Pui Hang Dr YU Sze Kai Frances 

Dr YU Wing Hung Dr YU Yee Tak Esther Dr YUEN Chi Hang 

Dr YUEN Fu Lam Dr YUEN Ming Wai Dr YUEN Shiu Man 

Dr YUNG Yin Ying Prof LAM Lo Kuen Cindy Prof LEE Albert 

Prof LI Kwok Tung Donald   

 

List of Active College Member who obtained CME Certificate in 2018 

Dr AU, Wah Cheong, Eric Dr AU-YEUNG, Kin Yiu Dr BHENDE, Kalpana Avinash 

Dr BIEN, Szu Hsin, Davina Dr BONG, Chi Wai, Allan Dr CHAIN, Chi Woo, David 

Dr CHAM, Cho Lan, Lisa Dr CHAN, Cheuk Ming Dr CHAN, Cheuk Yan, Stephen 
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Dr CHAN, Chi Ho Dr CHAN, Chi Hung Dr CHAN, Chi Hung, Alan 

Dr CHAN, Chi Wai, Allen Dr CHAN, Cho Shan, Erica Dr CHAN, Cho Yin 

Dr CHAN, Chow Ming Dr CHAN, Chun Hon, Edmond Dr CHAN, Chun Tin 

Dr CHAN, Chung Mok, Samuel Dr CHAN, Fu Wai Dr CHAN, Fung Yuen 

Dr CHAN, Kam Sheung Dr CHAN, Ki Chun Enoch Dr CHAN, Ki Fung, Dickson 

Dr CHAN, King Hong Dr CHAN, Kit Choi Dr CHAN, Kiu Pak Kilpatrick 

Dr CHAN, Kwan Ho Dr CHAN, Lap Kuen Dr CHAN, Lin 

Dr CHAN, Lok Wai, Thomas Dr CHAN, Maria Magnifica M. Dr CHAN, Min Chung, Peter 

Dr CHAN, Ming Wai, Angus Dr CHAN, Nai Yin, Nelson Dr CHAN, Nim Tak, Douglas 

Dr CHAN, Ping Kwong Dr CHAN, Pui Hong Dr CHAN, Pui Kwong 

Dr CHAN, Sai Man Dr CHAN, Shek Hoi Dr CHAN, Shiu Leung 

Dr CHAN, Shiu Yee, Cynthia Dr CHAN, Siu Chung, Bruce Dr CHAN, So Heung 

Dr CHAN, Suk Yin Dr CHAN, Wai Chung, Virginia Dr CHAN, Wai Hung, George 

Dr CHAN, Wan Yee, Winnie Dr CHAN, Wei Kwan Rita Dr CHAN, Wing Chi Annie 

Dr CHAN, Yin Yue, Yeni Dr CHAN, Yiu Wing Dr CHAN, Yuen Ching 

Dr CHAN, Yuen Kwan, Mario Dr CHAN, Yuen Ling Dr CHAN, Yuen Sang 

Dr CHANG, Hoi Yi Dr CHANG, Hsu Wei Dr CHANG, King Chuen 

Dr CHANG, Ting Ting Dr CHAO, Vai Kiong, David Dr CHAU, Yiu Shing 

Dr CHEN, Cong Xiao Dr CHEN, Tien Chiang Dr CHEN, Tsz Ting 

Dr CHEN, Yun, Julie Dr CHENG, Chung Liang Dr CHENG, Chung Tat, Jacky 

Dr CHENG, Kam Wing Dr CHENG, Siu Han Dr CHENG, Tin Sik 

Dr CHEUK, Kwok Leung Dr CHEUK, Wai Yin, Ivy Dr CHEUK, Yau Lin 

Dr CHEUNG, Chik Wan Dr CHEUNG, Chun Tat Dr CHEUNG, Kwok Wai Alvin 

Dr CHEUNG, Tsz Ki Dr CHEUNG, Wai Ming, Fanny Dr CHEUNG, Wing Kee 

Dr CHEUNG, Yan Yee Christie Dr CHEUNG, Yu Fung Dr CHEUNG, Yuen Yan 

Dr CHEUNG, Yuet Ying, Christina Dr CHIANG, Chay Kung Dr CHIENG, Buong Sieng 

Dr CHIN, Weng Yee Dr CHIU, Ho Ching Dr CHIU, Kun Ming 

Dr CHIU, Sung Kwan Dr CHIU, Yuen Chun Dr CHIU, Yuen Man 

Dr CHO, Hing Sang, Kenneth Dr CHO, Tze Yan Dr CHOI, Bo Yue Olivia 

Dr CHOI, Siu Chuen Dr CHOI, Sze Wai Michelle Dr CHOI, Wai Hung 

Dr CHONG, Kok Hung Dr CHONG, Nga Yee Dr CHONG, Yu Hoi 

Dr CHOW, Hoi Kei, Jessica Dr CHOW, Jun Fung Johnathan Dr CHOW, Tsz Wang 

Dr CHOW, Tung Fai Dr CHOY, Yuk Lun, Frederick Dr CHU, Henson 

Dr CHU, Kee Leong Dr CHU, Lun Piu, Ronald Dr CHU, Man Yee, Candy 

Dr CHU, Pui Yan Dr CHUA, Tec Sang, Susannah Dr CHUANG, Chi Kit 

Dr CHUNG, Chak Hang Jonathan Dr CHUNG, Hiu Yeung Dr CHUNG, Ka Chun 

Dr DIANTO, Jeffrey Dr FAN, Siu Wai Dr FAN, Vei Chen 

Dr FAN, Yuen Shan Patricia Dr FENG, Longyin Dr FONG, Kin Lee, Garry 

Dr FONG, Pak Yiu Dr FONG, Ting Kwok Dr FOSTER, Jonathan Charles 

Dr FUNG, Andrew Yat Wang Dr FUNG, Ka Hang, Timothy Dr FUNG, Kevin Koon Fun 

Dr FUNG, Tat Biu, Albert Dr FUNG, Yiu Tong, Bennet Dr GOH, Winston Louis 

Dr HARIMAN, Affandy Dr HO, Chi Sun, Jason Dr HO, Ka Ki 

Dr HO, Kin Chung Dr HO, Ying Ho Dr HO, Yiu Keung, Steven 

Dr HONG, Ka Yi Dr HONG, Sze Nga Dr HUI, Alice Sau Wei 

Dr HUI, Ling Dr HUI, Min Yee Linda Dr HUI, Suk Yin, Mandy 

Dr HUI, Yuk Ting Candy Dr HUN, Pek I Dr HUNG, Cheung Fat, Horatio 

Dr HUNG, Leong Pan Dr HUNG, Wing Chi Dr IP, Kai Wah 

Dr JIAO, Fangfang Dr JOR, Hon Man Dr KAM, Cheuk Wai 

Dr KAM, Ngar Yin Dr KAN, Kwong Tin Dr KARK, Man Fong 

Dr KENNELLY, Sophia Kwan Mei Dr KEUNG, Man Fung Dr KO, Chi Fai, William 

Dr KONG, Ka Ming Andrew Dr KONG, On Tai Dr KOO, Chung Wai 

Dr KOO, Hok Tin, Hilton Dr KORNG, Kokan Allan Dr KU, Hau 

Dr KUNG, Garry Dr KUO, Pih Ngo, Peggy Dr KWA, Matthew 

Dr KWAN, Tsz Yan Dr KWAN, Wing Kai, William Dr KWAN, Yih Chuen, Eugene 

Dr KWOK, Ka Cheong Dr KWOK, Man Wah Dr KWOK, Wai Lun 

Dr KWOK, Yip Tung Tony Dr KWONG, Ho Tak Dr KWONG, Kam Tim William 

Dr KWONG, Kin Hung Dr KWONG, Ngar Ming, Henry Dr KWONG, Siu Kee 

Dr LAI, Chiu Fai Dr LAI, Ho Yeung, Kelvin Dr LAI, Hoi Lin 

Dr LAI, Ka Ho Dr LAI, Pong Shing, Eric Dr LAI, Siu Kee, Vincent 

Dr LAM, Chi Hang Dr LAM, Chi Yui Dr LAM, Ching Man 

Dr LAM, Ching Man, Caroline Dr LAM, Chiu Ki, Alexander Dr LAM, Chun Keung, Peter 

Dr LAM, Kang Dr LAM, Kei Chiu, Tony Dr LAM, Ki Yu 

Dr LAM, Lai Cho, Eugenia Dr LAM, See Yui Dr LAM, Siu Ping 
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Dr LAM, Tak Wa Dr LAM, Ting Chung Matthew Dr LAM, Wai Kwong 

Dr LAM, Wai Ming Dr LAM, Wai Yip Dr LAM, Wai Yiu 

Dr LAU, Ka Man, Angela Dr LAU, Kim Sing Dr LAU, Kwan Chung, Jonathan 

Dr LAU, Sin Mei Dr LAU, Valerie Wing Yee Dr LAU, Wing See 

Dr LAU, Ying Kit Dr LAW, Kwok King Dr LAW, Man Fong 

Dr LAW, Wai Man Dr LEE, Big Kau, Judy Dr LEE, Chi Bun 

Dr LEE, Choi Fung Dr LEE, Chun Kit, Tony Dr LEE, Fook Kay 

Dr LEE, Kam Ha Dr LEE, See Mei Dr LEE, Shek Kwong 

Dr LEE, Sing Chark, Jack Dr LEE, Tsz Ching Dr LEE, Wing Lam 

Dr LEE, Ying Cheung Dr LEUNG, Chi Fai Dr LEUNG, Fung Ming, Angela 

Dr LEUNG, Hilching Eunice Dr LEUNG, Ka Cheong Dr LEUNG, Kwan Wai, Amas 

Dr LEUNG, Lai Man Dr LEUNG, Mei Tak Dr LEUNG, Nai Yip, Paul 

Dr LEUNG, Nim No, Deborah Dr LEUNG, Shuk Yun Dr LEUNG, Sze King 

Dr LEUNG, Wai Kay Dr LEUNG, Wai Lun Dr LEUNG, Wai Man, Raymond 

Dr LEUNG, Wai Yan Viola Dr LEUNG, Wing Hing, William Dr LEUNG, Wing Hong 

Dr LEUNG, Yuen Kei Dr LEUNG, Yuen Yee Dr LI, Janice Chun Ying 

Dr LI, Minru Dr LI, Ping Chit Dr LI, Ping Wai 

Dr LI, Wai Ling Dr LI, Wai Sum Dr LI, Wing Chi 

Dr LI, Wing Hei, Sunny Dr LIANG, Jun Dr LIE, Kin Fung 

Dr LIE, Siu Fen Dr LIM, Foon Lian Dr LIM, Martina 

Dr LIM, Paik Chok, Rose Dr LIN, Su Chuen Janice Dr LIU, Cheuk Ying, Shirene 

Dr LIU, Kwei Hing Dr LIU, Wai Ling Dr LIU, Wing Yee 

Dr LIU, Yuk Ping, Louisa Dr LO (WONG), Wan Ching, Wendy Dr LO, Benjamin Yiung Lu 

Dr LO, Cheuk Wai Dr LO, Chun Fat Dr LO, Hui Ying, Edmund 

Dr LO, Ka Man Michelle Dr LO, Pik Har Dr LO, Ping Wo 

Dr LO, See See Dr LO, Shuk Kam Dr LO, Wan Shun, Kara 

Dr LO, Wei Dr LO, Yuen Man Dr LOCKE, Michael Ka Yung 

Dr LOO, Anne Dr LOY, Tien En, Grace Dr LUI, Hau Man, Phoebian 

Dr LUI, Rupert Yau Han Dr LUK, Sze Wan Candy Dr LUK, Wing Kun Leona 

Dr LUKE, King Kai, Kenneth Dr MA, Man Ki Dr MA, Mya Khin 

Dr MA, Ping Kwan, Danny Dr MA, Yuen Ying Dr MAK, Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr MAK, Ho Yin Dr MAK, Kwan Wo Dr MAK, Tak Wah, Philip 

Dr MAK, Wing Kin Dr MAK, Wing Yee Dr MCBRIDE, Andrea Evelyn 

Dr MING, Shiu Kow Dr MO, Chun Hung, Eric Dr MOY, Man Cho 

Dr NAING, Win Tun, Thomas Nelson Dr NG, Hee Liang Dr NG, Hok Wai 

Dr NG, Ka Wing Dr NG, Kai Man Dr NG, Kenneth Cheuk Kee 

Dr NG, Kit Leung Dr NG, Kwok Fai Dr NG, Man Hon, George 

Dr NG, Ngai Mui Dr NG, On Li Dr NG, Pui Yee, Beatrice 

Dr NG, Shak Hong Dr NG, Tsz Chung Dr NG, Yue Chun John 

Dr NG, Yui Wing Joanne Dr NGAI, Bernard Dr NGAN, Yuen Fat 

Dr NOH, Young Ah Dr O, Sun Yin Dr O'TREMBA, Francis Martin 

Dr PANG, Kwan Dr PANG, Kwong Kee Dr PANG, Lai Sheung 

Dr PANG, Sze Ching Esther Dr PAU, Wai Man, Raymond Dr PEI, Yuk Man, Debra 

Dr POON, Ilima Yin Shan Dr POON, Ka Yin Dr POON, Lai Ping 

Dr POON, Man Kay Dr POON, Wai Cho Dr SCHRADER, Hans Franciscus Jozef 

Dr SHEN, Yu Chun Dr SHEN, Yu Wei Dr SHIK, Cheng Fong 

Dr SHING, Yuk Ping, Agnes Dr SIT, Hing Cheong Dr SIU, Ping Cheong 

Dr SIU, Wing Yee Dr SO, Chi Kin Dr SO, Hei Ming 

Dr SO, Yung Pak Dr SUN, Xiao Ling Dr SUNG, Cheuk Chung 

Dr SUNG, Man Ling Dr SYED, Alan Dr SZETO, Chui Ying 

Dr TAI, Lik Dr TAM, Chi Wai Dr TAM, Chun Ho 

Dr TAM, Kwok Wai, Sunny Dr TAM, Man Kit Dr TAM, Wing Pik, Eliza 

Dr TAM, Yiu Pun Dr TAN, Shu Kwan Dr TANG, Anthony Hing Yung 

Dr TANG, Kuen Yan, Alfred Dr TANG, Shao Fen, Joyce Dr TANG, Siu Man, Simon 

Dr TANG, Suet Chung Lawson Dr TANG, Tin Yuk, Adrian Dr TAY, Wee Kok, Jordan 

Dr TIK, Tsz Ling Nicola Dr TO, King Dr TOA, Wai Lung 

Dr TONG, Man Chiu Dr TONG, Terence Dr TONG, Wai Keung 

Dr TONG, Ying Kau Dr TONG, Yuet Hang Dr TSAI, Hung Yu 

Dr TSANG, Chiu Yee, Luke Dr TSANG, Chun Au Dr TSANG, Hing Wing 

Dr TSANG, Kam Wah Dr TSANG, Kwok Ying, Ingrid Dr TSANG, Sharon 

Dr TSANG, Woo Kay Dr TSANG, Yat Fai Dr TSANG, Yee Wing 

Dr TSAO, Goh Mei Ling, Marion Dr TSOI, Wing Yin, Winnie Dr TUET, On Sang 

Dr TUNG, Po Yin Dr WAN, Ka Yan Dr WANG, Amy Yang 
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Dr WEN, Yongna, Wendy Dr WONG, Alan Yan Ho Dr WONG, Che Hing 

Dr WONG, Chi Chiu, Albert Dr WONG, Chi Ho, Hubert Dr WONG, Chi Wai, William 

Dr WONG, Chi Wing Dr WONG, Ching Chuen Dr WONG, Ching Keung 

Dr WONG, Chiu Lun Dr WONG, Chun Bun, Gordon Dr WONG, Chun Chung 

Dr WONG, Chun Kit, Arthur Dr WONG, Chung Ming Dr WONG, Hin Hei Henry 

Dr WONG, Hor Yung Dr WONG, Hung Tat Dr WONG, Ka Kin 

Dr WONG, Ka Yan, Catherine Dr WONG, Kai Hei Dr WONG, Kar Shing 

Dr WONG, Kwok Ho, Joseph Dr WONG, Kyaw Lwin, Simeon @ Huang 
Hsin Yang 

Dr WONG, Kyin Lin, Peter 

Dr WONG, Lai Koon, Magdalene Dr WONG, Ling Ling Dr WONG, Man Ho 

Dr WONG, Ming Shun Dr WONG, Ngai Lam Dr WONG, Ping San, John 

Dr WONG, Sau Yee Dr WONG, Sze Man Dr WONG, To Chuen 

Dr WONG, Tze Wing Dr WONG, Wai Man Dr WONG, Wai Pang 

Dr WONG, Wing Ning, Rosanna Dr WONG, Wing Sang, Bernard Dr WONG, Yan Biu 

Dr WONG, Yee Chung, Eva Dr WONG, Ying Sau Dr WONG, Yu Man 

Dr WONG, Yuk Sen, Anna Dr WONG, Yuk Teck Dr WOO, Wing Hung 

Dr WU, Chi Ho Bosco Dr XU, Song Ci, Alice Dr YAM, Chun Yin 

Dr YAN, Chi Yung Dr YANG, Jung Mai Dr YAP, Jon-Alvan Tsun Hee 

Dr YAU, Chi Yan Dr YAU, Chiu Ming Dr YAU, Kwok Ho 

Dr YAU, Tang Fai Dr YAU, Wai Keung Dr YEUNG, Lok Ki 

Dr YIP, Pui Leung Dr YIP, Wan Ha Dr YIP, Yuk Pang, Kenneth 

Dr YIU, Man Lok, Genevieve Dr YOUNG, Ying Nam, Dominic Dr YU, Chung Kwan Cellina 

Dr YU, Pak Him Vincent Dr YU, Suet Mui Dr YU, Wai Ming, James 

Dr YU, Wai Nam Dr YU, Yee Cheung, John Dr YUE, Kam Lun 

Dr YUE, Wing Shun Dr YUEN, Ching Yan Dr YUEN, Ching Yi 

Dr YUEN, Ka Wai Dr YUEN, Man Ki Dr YUEN, Sek Cheung 

Dr YUNG (YEE), Sui Yin, Ruth Dr YUNG, Hiu Ting Dr YUNG, Leung Tung Daniel 

Dr YUNG, Oi Kwan, Iris Dr ZHANG, Dingzuan Dr ZHAO, HaiFeng 

Prof LAM, Tai Pong Prof WONG, Yeung Shan, Samuel  

 

 

 

 

RESEARCH COMMITTEE 

(April 2018 to March 2019) 

 

Chairman:  Prof Samuel Y S WONG 

 

Honorary Advisors: Prof Cindy L K LAM  Prof Doris YOUNG 

 

Committee Members: Dr David V K CHAO  Dr Catherine X R CHEN 

   Dr CHEUNG Man Kuen Dr CHIANG Lap Kin 

Dr CHIN Weng Yee  Dr Antonio A T CHUH 

   Dr LIANG Jun  Dr Lorna V NG 

   Dr Esther Y T YU  Prof Martin C S WONG     

       

Ex-officio:  Dr LAU Ho Lim  (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

   Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

   Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 

 

Staff:    Ms Crystal W Y YUNG  (Administrative Manager) 

Ms Priscilla S M LI   (Administrative Executive) 

 
 

Eleven submissions had been received for the Best Research Award 2018 and the selection panel consisted of two assessors. The 

winning paper was “5-year effectiveness of the multi-disciplinary Risk Assessment and Management Programme for primary care 

patients with hypertension (RAMP-HT) on HT-related complications and health service utilization – A population-based matched cohort 

study” by Dr Esther Y T YU. 

 

The 2019 HKCFP Research Fellowship had received three applications this year. The selection panel which consisted of two 
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assessors had selected the winner to be Dr LAU Ka Man. Her research project was “The effectiveness of atrial fibrillation special clinic 

on oral anticoagulants use for high risk atrial fibrillation patient management in community”. 

 

The Committee has established two new funding awards over the last six years: Trainees Research Fund, to encourage trainees to 

attempt research segment of the Exit Examination, and Research Seed Fund, to provide the opportunity for other interested parties 

to develop fitting proposals and ideas. Successful applicants from the awards can fully implement and test their research strategies 

in the public, which ultimately contribute to the primary care sector.  

 

Finally, I wish to thank all who have provided assistance to the Research Committee and look forward to closer collaborations in the 

future. 

 

 

 

 

 

WEB AND COMPUTER COMMITTEE 

(April 2018 to March 2019) 

 

Chairman:      Dr Matthew M H LUK 

 

Members:       Dr Stephen K C CHEUNG  Dr Alfred K Y TANG 

Dr CHOW Kai Lim  Dr Peter K T WAN 

Dr Howard H T KWONG  Dr David K K WONG 

 

Ex-officio:       Dr David V K CHAO (President from December 2018) 

Dr Angus M W CHAN (till December 2018) 

Dr LAU Ho Lim  (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

Dr Cecilia Y M FAN  (Vice-President, Education & Examinations) 

        Dr William C W WONG (Honorary Secretary) 

        Dr Billy C F CHIU (Honorary Treasurer) 

 

Staff:        Ms Erica M SO  (General Manager) 

Mr John P C MA  (Administrative Executive) 

Mr Louis T P LAW (Administrative Assistant, to October 2018) 

 

In the year 2018-19, we are happy to serve our College members.  

 

Computer software and hardware are updated and renewed as necessary ito meet the work demand.  Thanks to our secretarial 

support and input from the committee, the options of new registration system for educational activities, members MCQs and Clinical 

Quizs function are now in use.  The Web Committee also look after the College Facebook, where rapid and timely information to share 

to our members and friends in the community. Paypal payment is also opened for registration fee of Tripartite Congress 2019. 

 

We welcome suggestions from interested members. The daily web and computer operation is being monitored by our dedicated 

secretarial staffs, we are thankful for their work. 

 

I would like to thank the members of the Web Committee for the support and valuable advice in the past year.  We look forward to 

another year of service. 
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YOUNG DOCTORS COMMITTEE 
(April 2018 to March 2019) 

 

CO-CHAIRMEN’S MESSAGE: 

 

The HKCFP Young Doctors Committee was formed and was endorsed by the our College Council in May 2017, with the aims to 

engage young doctors in our College activities and enhance their communication, to nurture young leaders, to connect young doctors 

locally and internationally, and to promote continuity of representation by our young College members in national and international 

events. The membership of the Committee would be renewed annually in order to vitalize the Committee and keep it full of energy 

and enthusiasm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Co-Chairmen: 

 

Dr 

 

CHAN Wing Yan 

 
(Representative, WONCA APR Rajakumar Movement) 

(Representative, HKAM Young Fellows Chapter) 

 Dr CHAN Chi Wai  

 (Representative, 吳階平醫學基金會家庭醫學部青年委員會) 

   

Vice-Chairladies:  Dr TSE Sut Yee              

 (Representative, WONCA APR Rajakumar Movement)                                     

  Dr CHAN Wing Yan 

Committee Members: Dr CHAN Ka Ho                                                                     
 Dr CHAN Lam 
 Dr CHAN So Wai            (from September 2018 onwards) 

 Dr Cherlyle Y C CHAN   (from February 2019 onwards) 
 Dr Stella Y Y CHAN 
 Dr Christina CHEUK 
 Dr Thomas M C DAO      (Representative, 全國全科醫學青年專家聯盟) 
 Dr Victor S W IP  

 Dr Eugenia L C LAM  

 Dr LAU Ka Man               (from February 2019 onwards) 

 Dr Will L H LEUNG                                                                                                          

 Dr Leon M NGAI                                                                                                   Dr CHAN Chi Wai                                                    

 Dr Annie K Y OR                                                                                                  

 Dr Joyce L P POON          (from February 2019 onwards) 

 Dr Emily T Y TSE 

 Dr Aldo C L WONG  

 Dr Peter H M LEE             (to December 2018) 

 Dr Lawson S C TANG      (to December 2018) 

   

Ex-officio: Dr David V K CHAO        (President) 

 Dr LAU Ho Lim                (Vice-President, General Affairs) 

 Dr Cecilia Y M FAN         (Vice-President, Education and Examinations) 

 Dr William C W WONG   (Honorary Secretariat) 

 Dr Billy C F CHIU            (Honorary Treasurer) 

   

Staff: Ms Erica M SO                 (General Manager) 

 Ms Kathy K Y LAI             (Administrative Executive) 
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ACTIVITIES:  

Date Event YDC Representatives 

12 June 2018 

HKCFP 1st Family Medicine Career Talk 

 

 

 

Dr Stephen K S FOO 

Dr Angus M W CHAN 

Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 

Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

Dr Will L H LEUNG 

Dr Christina CHEUK 

Dr Thomas M C DAO 

Dr Lawson S C TANG 

Dr Leon M NGAI 

Dr Peter H M LEE 

Dr Aldo C L WONG 

 

30 June 2018 

07 July 2018 

14 July 2018 

28 July 2018 

HKCFP Basketball Team for HKAM 2018 – Intercollegiate Basketball 

Tournament Dr Will L H LEUNG 

Dr Peter H M LEE 

Dr CHEUK Yau Chun 

Dr Kevin Y H AU YEUNG  

Dr Steve S C CHAN 

Dr Alex S Y CHOW 

Dr P A FOK 

Dr Jack S H KO 

Dr KWONG Hon Kei 

Dr Ben C L LEE 

Dr MAK Wing Hang 

Dr Jacky S H HO 

Dr George T W TSE 

Dr Dereck M H WONG 

Dr YIP Wing Ki 

Mr. Emil HUNG (Honorary Coach) 

01 July 2018 –  

30 June 2019 

HKCFP Mentorship Programme for the first year Basic Trainee (2018 – 
2019) 
 

List of Mentors: 

Dr Simon C L AU 

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 

Dr Angus M W CHAN 

Dr Alvin C Y CHAN 

Dr Michael CHENG 

Dr Billy C F CHIU 

Dr Simon S M CHOW 

Dr John T N CHUNG 

Dr Andrew K K IP 

Dr Edmund W W LAM 

Dr Aster W Y LAU 

Dr LAU Ho Lim 

Dr Carl T K WONG 

Dr YUEN Fu Lam 

Dr LAM Sun Ching 

Dr Barry T F BIEN 

Dr CHONG Man Yuk 

Dr WONG Sai Ho 

Dr WONG Chung Tao 
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18 October 2018 

WONCA 2018 – 22nd World WONCA Conference Workshop: ‘Promoting 
Family Medicine – Novel Ideas’ 
 

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN (Speaker) 

Dr HO Ka Ming (Speaker) 

Dr CHAN Chi Wai 

Dr NGAN Po Lun 

Dr Chloe L CHAN 

Dr Eugenia L C LAM 

Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr CHUNG Sze Pok 

Dr Lawson S C TANG 

Dr Will L H LEUNG 

Dr Aldo C L WONG 

16 December 2018 

FM2 (醫家樂隊) at HKCFP 41st Annual Dinner 

 

Dr Aldo C L WONG  

Dr Chloe L CHAN 

Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr Raymond W M YEUNG 

Dr Vincent YIU 

10 February 2019 

YDC 1st Hiking activity 

 
Dr CHAN Chi Wai  

Dr Loretta W Y CHAN  

Dr CHAN Yau Wa 

Dr CHEUNG Yan Kit 

Dr Susannah T S CHUA 

Dr HO Ka Ming 

Dr LAU Ka Man 

Dr Will L H LEUNG 

Dr Annie K Y OR 

Dr Joyce L P POON 

Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr Aldo C L WONG 

 

Other activities:  

Date Event YDC Representatives 
28 September 2018 Career Talk 2018 organized by Medical Society, HKUSU Dr TSE Sut Yee  

26 November 2018 RTHK Radio Programme 精靈一點: 專科醫生是如何煉成的 Dr Loretta W Y CHAN 
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07 December 2018 

FM2 (醫家樂隊) at HKAM 25th Anniversary President’s Dinner

 

Dr Aldo C L WONG 

Dr Chloe L CHAN 

Dr P A FOK 

Dr KUNG Kenny 

Dr Will L H LEUNG 

Dr TSE Sut Yee 

Dr YIP Wing Ki 

Dr Vincent YIU 

27 February 2019 – 

3 March 2019 

香港醫學專科學院四川考察交流團 

Organizer:      Young Fellows Chapter, HKAM 

Co-organizer: 國務院港澳辦 

                       四川省港澳辦 

                       香港中聯辦 

                       四川省衛健委 

Dr Chloe L CHAN 

Dr P A FOK  

Dr HO Ka Ming 

29 March 2019 –  

31 March 2019 

第六屆海峽兩岸全科醫學大會暨海醫會全科醫學分會第六届學術年會 - 

「抓住機遇深化全科醫學融合發展」- 河南鄭州 

Organizer:  海峽兩岸醫藥衛生交流協會全科醫學分會 

Co-organizers:  河南省人民醫院 

  中國全科醫學雜誌社 

Dr Thomas M C DAO 
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HONORARY TREASURER 
(April 2018 to March 2019) 
 

Honorary Treasurer:  Dr Billy C F CHIU 

 

Staff:             Ms Priscilla S M LI         (Administrative Executive) 

           

The financial situation of our College remains stable for the year 2018-2019. 

With a current reserve valued in excess of HK$14.8 million, thanks to the 

conservative investment strategy of the Finance Committee. The great majority 

of our funds are in the form of cash savings in the Bank of East Asia, HSBC and 

Wing Hang Bank. 

Our College is operated under four companies, as detailed in the Auditor’s report. 

In this financial year, our main income sources were from, in descending order, the Membership Committee, 

Board of Conjoint Examination, Board of Diploma in Family Medicine (DFM), Specialty Board and Board of 

Vocational Training and Standards. When compared with 2017-2018, the Membership Committee, 

membership subscriptions obtained an income of HK$1.32 million but with 6% decrease as 10% earlybird 

discount was offered with good feedback. The Board of Conjoint Examination obtained a surplus of 

HK$1.03 million (100% increase). The Board of DFM obtained a surplus of HK$981K (9% increase). The 

Specialty Board obtained a surplus of HK$635K (4% decrease). The Board of Vocational Training and 

Standards obtained a surplus of HK$488K (30% increase). 

On the side of expenditure, our single most significant spending is still in staff salaries and allowances, 

which amounted to HK$4 million. The Board of Education saw a deficit of HK$658K but with a significant 

improvement of 23% when compare with 2017-2018. 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

REPORT OF THE COUNCIL  

The Council has pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the College are provision of continuing medical education in relation to family medicine. 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the College for the year are set out on page 5 of the financial statements. 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 6 to the financial statements. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

The council members during the year were: 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (President) 
Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-president) 
Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia  (Vice-president) 
Dr. Wong Chi Wai, William (Hon-Secretary)  
Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy (Hon-Treasurer) 
Dr. Au Chi Lap 
Dr. Chan Chi Wai 
Dr. Chan Chung Yuk 
Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter 
Dr. Chan King Hong 
Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus  
Dr. Chan Suen Ho, Mark (Resigned on 16 December 2018) 
Dr. Ho Ka Ming (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 
Dr. Hui Ming Tung, Eric (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 
Dr. Ko Wai Kit (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 
Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary 
Dr. Lee Siu Yin, Ruby (Resigned on 16 December 2018)  
Dr. Leung Kwan Wa, Maria (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 
Dr. Li Yim Chu (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 
Dr. Liang Jun  
Dr. Lo Sze Mon (Resigned on 30 June 2018) 
Dr. Luk Man Hei, Mathew (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 
Dr. Ng Ventura Lorna 
Dr. Ngan Po Lun 
Dr. Tsoi Wai Wang, Gene (Resigned on 16 December 2018) 
Dr. Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy 
Dr. Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel  
Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan  

 

In accordance with Article 34 of the College's Articles of Association, the President, Vice-President, Hon. Secretary and Hon. Treasurer 

and not exceeding one-third of the other members, shall retire from office and being eligible offer themselves for re-election. 

INTERESTS OF COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Saved as disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements, no other contracts of significance to which the College was a party and in which 

a council member had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the College a party to any arrangements to enable the council members of the College to acquire benefits 

by means of acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of the College or any other body corporate. 

 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the College were entered into or existed during the year. 

AUDITOR 

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs W. M. Moo who retires and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
 
On behalf of the board 
 

 
 
Chairman 

HONG KONG, 25 October 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

Opinion 

I have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (“the Company”) set out on pages 5 to 13, which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes 

in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies. 

 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and of its 

financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 

(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in 

compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. My responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I 

am independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and I have 

fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

 

Other information 

The Council of the Company are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all information included in the 

Council’s report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. 

 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Council and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Council are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs 

issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Council determine is necessary 

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Council are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council either 

intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit.  I also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
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may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

-  

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

-  

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by the Council. 

-  

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern.  If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.  My 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

-  

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a matter that achieves fair presentation. 

. 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
W. M. Moo 
Certified Public Accountant 
 
Hong Kong, 25 October 2019
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 
   2018 
 
 Note HK$ HK$ 

 

Membership subscription fees   1,267,423 1,357,550 

Entrance fees from members  53,290 53,650 

Bank interest income  471 88 

Other income                 6,701                   29,174 

 

 3(d) 1,327,885 1,440,462 

  ------------- ------------- 

Less: Expenses 

 

Audit fee  8,500 7,700  

Bank charges   2,768 2,963 
Building management fee  174,944 179,888 
Business registration fee  2,250 2,250 
Depreciation  7,930 20,910 
Legal and professional fee  100,705 72,656 
Management fee  1,200,000 1,200,000 
Meeting allowance  325 - 
Sundry expenses   12,602  40,362 
 
  1,510,024 1,527,529  

  ------------ ------------  

 
Deficit before taxation   (182,139) (87,067) 
 
Taxation     4                 (4,565) (95,639)  
 
Net deficit for the year  (186,704) (182,706) 
    ====== ====== 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 

 

   2018 
 
 Note  HK$ HK$ 
ASSETS 
 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 6 37,008 44,938 

 

Current assets 

Accounts receivable  153,123 239,300 

Amount due from related companies 7 145,726 207,013 

Cash at bank   1,896,209 1,793,054 

  2,195,058 2,239,367 

  -------------- -------------- 

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  20,500 26,500 

Deposit received  36,500 36,500 

Amount due to related companies 8 1,753,228 1,617,328 

  1,810,228 1,680,328 

  ------------ ------------ 

 
 

Net current assets   384,830 559,039 

  ______ _______ 

 

Total assets less current liabilities  421,838 603,977 

   

Non-current liabilities  

Deferred tax 9 690,954 686,389 

 
  (269,116) (82,412) 
   ======      ===== 
 

FUNDS                                                                                                                                            

 

Premises fund   785,274 785,274 

 

General fund  (1,054,390) (867,686) 

 

  (269,116) (82,412) 

   ====== ===== 
 
 
 
 
 
                             

_____________________                   ____________________ 
Chairman                                            Hon Treasurer 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

 

 

  2018 
 
 HK$ HK$ 
 

Premises Fund 
 
At 1 April and 31 March  785,274 785,274 
 ----------- ----------- 
 
General Fund 
 
At 1 April (867,686) (684,980) 

 
Net deficit for the year (186,704) (182,706) 

 
At 31 March  (1,054,390) (867,686) 
 ------------ ----------- 

 
Total equity 

 
At 1 April  (82,412) 100,294 

                                                                                               ======             ======        
 

At 31 March  (269,116) (82,412) 
                                                                                        ======              ===== 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

 

  2018 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results for the year  (182,139) (87,067) 

Adjustments for: 

Bank interest received  (471)                      (88) 

Depreciation   7,930 20,910 

 

Operating results before working capital changes  (174,680) (66,245) 

Decrease in accounts receivable   86,177 (47,250) 

Increase/(Decrease) in accruals                    (6,000)               2,300 

 

Cash used in operations  (94,503) (111,195) 

Bank interest received   471  88 

 

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (94,032) (111,107) 

 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment                                                  -  (52,868) 

 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advance from related companies  197,187                 75,906 

 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND 

 CASH EQUIVALENTS  103,155 (88,069) 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL  1,793,054 1,881,123 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 1,896,209 1,793,054 

   ======= ======= 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

1 LEGAL STATUS 

The College is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital.  The liability of each of its members, in the 

event of its being wound up while he is a member, or within one year after he ceased to be a member for payment of the 

debts and liabilities of the College contracted before he ceases to be a member, and costs, charges and expenses of 

winding up, and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, is limited to an amount not 

exceeding HK$10. 

 

 

2 GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the Company’s registered office is Room 

803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activities of the company are provision of continuing medical education in relation to family medicine.  

 

 

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment, except investment properties, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. 

 

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 

condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as 

repairs and maintenance costs, is normally charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it is 

incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future 

economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of 

the asset. 

 

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset recognised in the statement of comprehensive income is the difference 

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. 

 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method at the following rate to write off the costs of the assets over their 

estimated useful lives. 

 

 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% p.a. 

 

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

 At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, and investments in a 

subsidiary and an associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an 

impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of 

related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If an estimated recoverable amount is lower, the 

carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit 

or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased to 

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no 

impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

(c) Related party 

 For the purpose of these financial statements, related party includes a person and entity as defined below:  

 
(1) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Group and the Company if that person:  
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(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group and the Company or of a parent of the Group and 

the Company;  
 

(ii) has control over the Group and the Company; or  
 
(iii) has joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity or has significant voting power in it.  

 
(2) An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:  

 
(i) the entity and the Group and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).  
 

(ii) either entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a member of a group of which the other entity 
is a member).  

 
(iii) both entities are joint ventures of a third entity.  

 
(iv) either entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.  

 
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group and the Company or 

an entity related to the Group and the Company. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring 
employers are also related to the plan.  

 
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (1).  

 
(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant voting power in the entity. 

 

(d) Revenue recognition 

 Entrance fee from members are recognised in the financial year of receipt. 

 
 Annual subscriptions fee is recognised on a time proportion basis. 
 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 
rate of interest applicable. 
 

 (e) Foreign currencies 
 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.  Monetary assets and 
liabilities in foreign currencies at the period end are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the statement of financial 
position date.  All exchange differences are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 
(f) Income tax 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 

and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 

temporary differences that will result in taxable amounts in determining taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods when the 

carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (taxable temporary differences). Deferred tax assets are 

generally recognised for all temporary differences that will result in amounts that are deductible in determining taxable profit 

(tax loss) of future periods when the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (deductible temporary 

differences) - but only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 

temporary differences can be utilised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current 

assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which it 

expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the deferred tax liability to be settled, on the basis of tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
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4 TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements because there is no estimated assessable 

profits for the year.  (2018:Nil) 

 

    2018 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 The taxation charge is made up as follows: 

 

 Deferred tax 

 Charge to statement of comprehensive income during the year  4,565 95,639 

  ==== ===== 

 

The taxation on the company’s deficit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation 

rate in Hong Kong for the company as follows: 

 

 Deficit before taxation (182,139) (87,067) 

  ====== ===== 

 

 Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2018:16.5%) (30,053) (14,366) 

 Tax effect of non-deductible expense 5,873 99,093 

 Tax effect of non-chargeable income (4,564) (12,677) 

 Additions to unrecognized tax losses 33,309 23,589 

 Taxation charge 4,565 95,639 

  ===== ==== 

 

5 COUNCIL MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION 

None of the Council members received any remuneration for their services rendered to the College during the year.  

(2018:Nil) 

 

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

   Furniture 

  College fixtures & 

  premises equipment Total 

 

  HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 Cost 

 At 1.4.2018 and 31.3.2019 500,000 3,826,359 4,326,359 

  ----------- ------------- ------------- 

 Accumulated depreciation 

 At 1.4.2018 500,000 3,781,421 4,281,421 

 Charge for the year                                                           -                            7,930                     7,930 

 At 31.3.2019 500,000 3,789,351 4,289,351 

  ----------- ------------- ------------- 

 Net book value 

 At 31.3.2019                                                                       -  37,008 37,008 

  ===== ===== ===== 

 At 31.3.2018                                                                       -  44,938 44,938 

  ===== ===== ===== 

 

The College premises is held in Hong Kong under a medium term lease from the Federation of Medical Societies of Hong 

Kong. 
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7 AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 

                                                                                             Amount outstanding                     Maximum amount outstanding 

  At 31.3.2018 At 31.3.2019 during the year 

  HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 HKCFP Holdings And 

 Development Limited 130,679 92,079 130,679 

HKCFP Education Limited 76,334   53,647   76,334 

 
  207,013 145,726  
  ====== ======  

 

 The advance is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. 
 
 

8 AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 

 The advance is unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 

 

 

9 DEFERRED TAX  

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 

16.5% (2018:16.5%). 

 

 The movement on the deferred tax liabilities account is as follows: 

   2018 

  

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 At 1 April 686,389 590,750 

 

 Charge to statement of comprehensive income during the year                       4,565                        95,639 

 
 At 31 March 690,954 686,389 

  ======   ====== 

 

At 31 March 2019, the company has unused tax losses of HK$1,603,776 (2018:HK$1,401,902) available for offset against 

future profits.  No deferred tax asset has been recognized due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.  The losses 

may be carried forward indefinitely. 

 

 

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm’s length 

basis, are summarised as follows: 

   2018 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Management fee paid 1,200,000 1,200,000 

  ======= ======= 

 

 

11 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the Council on 25 October 2019. 
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  File No. 22/05368560 
 

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2018/2019 

 
  HK$ 
  
Loss per accounts 182,139 
 
Less: Depreciation  7,930 
 
  174,209 
 
Add: Depreciation allowance 3,878 

 Commercial building allowance  23,787 

 
Adjusted loss 201,874 
  ====== 
 
Statement of loss 
 
Balance b/f 1,401,902 
 
Add: Loss for the year  201,874 
 
Balance c/f 1,603,776 
  ======== 
 
Depreciation allowance 
 
    Total 

 10% pool 20% pool 30% pool allowance 

 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 
W.D.V. b/f 90 19,164 120 
 
A.A.  9  3,833  36 3,878 
       ==== 
W.D.V. c/f 81 15,331 84 
 == ===== ==  
  
 
 
 
 
 

  File No. 22/0536560 
Sch. 1 

 
Commercial building allowance 
 
   HK$ 
 
Deemed cost of construction b/f and c/f 594,675 
  ====== 
    
Residue value b/f 147,053 
 
A.A. (4%)  23,787 
 
Residue value c/f 123,266 
  ====== 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 
 
25 October 2019 
 

W. M. Moo, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other Council members and officials 

of the College, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the College’s financial statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2019 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the College and of the results and cash flows of the College for the year.  In preparing these financial 

statements, we have: 

a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with section 383 of the Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the preparation 

of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial statements 

are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Ordinance.  

We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 

and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions 

undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other relevant records and 

related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been made available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards require 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the Council members received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to S383 of the 

Company Ordinance during the year. 

 

 
 

For and on behalf  

of the Council 

 

 

 
                        
______________________                   ______________________ 
Chairman                                                Hon Treasurer 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2019. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the Company’s registered office is 

Room 803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activities of the company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of Family 

Medicine. 

 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the company for the year are set out on page 5 of the financial statements. 

 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 

 

DIRECTORS 

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: 

 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (Chairman) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia (Vice-Chairman)   (Appointed on 4 December 2018) 

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai (Hon. Treasurer) 

Dr. Wong Chi Wai, William (Hon. Secretary)  

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus    (Resigned on 16 December 2018) 

 

In accordance with Articles 38 and 39 of the company's Articles of Association, Dr Chan Ming Wai shall retire from the 

Board and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. 

 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS 

Saved as disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the company was a party 

and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any 

time during the year. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the company to 

acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of the company or any other body 

corporate. 

 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the company were entered into or existed 

during the year. 

 

AUDITOR 

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs W. M. Moo Certified Public 

Accountant, as auditor of the Company. 

 

 

On behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

Hong Kong, 25 October 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

Qualified Opinion 

I have audited the financial statements of HKCFP Education Limited (“the Company”) set out on pages 5 to 12, which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows 

for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of my report, the 

financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and of its financial 

performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards for Private 

Entities (“HKFRS for PE”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly 

prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

As explained in note 6 to the financial statements, the company has not prepared consolidated statements of the Group because 

the directors consider that it would involve expenses and delay out of proportion to the value to the members. Under Hong Kong 

Financial Reporting Standards, group accounts should have been prepared. If is not practicable to quantify the effects of the 

departure from this requirement. 

 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. My responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 

my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the 

Code”), and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

 

Other information 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all information included 

in the directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. 

 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact.  I have nothing to report in this regard 

 

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 

HKFRS for PE issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors 

determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 

directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is 

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
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aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 

the audit.  I also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by the directors. 

 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw 

attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify my opinion.  My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 

the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a matter that achieves fair presentation. 

 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

W. M. Moo 

Certified Public Accountant 

 

Hong Kong, 25 October 2019 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

 

   2018 

    

   HK$ HK$ 

 

Surplus on Board of Conjoint Examination  1,031,948 514,521 

Surplus on Board of Vocational Training   488,077 376,001 

Surplus on Specialty Board   635,029 659,285 

Surplus on Editorial Board  -  52,141 

Management fee income  3,100,000  2,850,000 

Sundry income   900  150 

Bank interest income   368  208 

Surplus on exchange difference             -                        6,682  

 

  5,256,322 4,458,988  

  ------------ ------------  

 

Less: Expenses 

 

Audit fee  8,500 8,500 

Bank charges and interest  595 1,413 

Business registration fee  2,250 2,250 

Cleaning expenses  5,029 4,850 

Committee expenses  1,648,594 1,918,414 

Deficit on Editorial Board  6,354                       - 

Deficit on Board of Education  658,579 852,471 

Insurance  75,083 60,633 

Legal and professional fees  19,435 83,720 

Loss on exchange difference  5,579                       -  

Newspapers  3,080 3,080 

Postage  2,747 5,698 

Printing and stationery  89,647 80,214 

Provident fund contribution  222,551 194,894 

Repairs and maintenance  954 299 

Salaries and allowances  4,097,190 3,653,489 

Sundry expenses  19,525 28,229 

Telephone and fax  50,780 50,707 

Travelling expenses                                                     5,481                     4,227 

 

  6,921,953 6,953,088  

  ------------- -------------  

 

Deficit for the year  (1,665,631) (2,494,100) 

  =======     =======
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 

 
    

   2018 
 
 Note  HK$ HK$ 
ASSETS 
 

Non-current assets 

Interest in a subsidiary 6 3,176,825 3,331,393 

 

Current assets 

Deposits paid and prepayments  43,798 141,956  

Account receivable                                                    91,724    4,500                

Cash at bank and in hand  697,579   392,550 

 

  833,101 539,006  

  ----------- -----------  

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  73,920 329,500  

Receipt in advance                                                  375,650 131,420 

Amount due to related companies 7 19,709,782 17,893,274  

 

  20,159,352 18,354,194  

  -------------- --------------  

 

Net current liabilities  (19,326,251) (17,815,188) 

  _________ _________  

 

  (16,149,426) (14,483,795) 

  ======== ========  

 

GENERAL FUND                                                                                                                           

 

Balance brought forward   (14,483,795) (11,989,695) 

 
Deficit for the year   (1,665,631)  (2,494,100) 
 
  (16,149,426) (14,483,795) 
  ======== ======== 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
___________________             __________________ 

Chairman  Hon Treasurer 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

 

  2018 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results for the year   (1,665,631) (2,494,100) 

Bank interest received                    (368)                     (208) 

 

Operating results before working capital changes (1,665,999) (2,494,308) 

(Increase)/Decrease in deposits paid and prepayments 98,158 (104,563) 

(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable    (87,224) 37,445 

Increase/(Decrease) in accruals  (255,580) 231,090 

Increase in receipt in advance                                                         244,230                101,370 

 

Cash used in operations (1,666,415) (2,228,966) 

Bank interest received                                                                        368  208 

 

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,666,047) (2,228,758) 

 ------------- ------------- 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advance from related companies 1,816,508 2,197,584 

Net advance from a subsidiary  154,568  63,386 

 

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,971,076  2,260,970 

 ------------- -------------- 

 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 305,029 32,212 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL 392,550 360,338 

  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 697,579 392,550 

 ====== ====== 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1. LEGAL STATUS 

 The company is limited by guarantee and without a share capital.  The liability of each of its membership in the event of 

its being wound up while he is a member, or within one year after he ceased to be a member for the payment of the debts 

and liabilities of the company contracted before he ceases to be a member and of the costs, charges and expenses of 

winding up the company, and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, is limited to an 

amount not exceeding HK$10. 

 

2. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the Company’s registered office is Room 

803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activities of the company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of Family 

Medicine.  

 

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Subsidiaries 

A subsidiary is a company in which the company, directly or indirectly, controls the composition of the board of directors, 

controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued share capital.  The company’s interest 

in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value.  Results of the subsidiaries are 

accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends received and receivable. 

 

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, and investments in a 

subsidiary and an associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 

an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or 

group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If an estimated recoverable amount is lower, 

the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately 

in profit or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased 

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had 

no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

 (c) Related party 

For the purpose of these financial statements, related party includes a person and entity as defined below:  

 

(1) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Group and the Company if that person:  
 

(ii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group and the Company or of a parent of the Group 
and the Company;  

 
(ii) has control over the Group and the Company; or  

 
(iii) has joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity or has significant voting power in it.  

 
(2) An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:  
 

(i) the entity and the Group and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).  

 
(ii) either entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a member of a group of which the other 

entity is a member).  
 

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of a third entity.  
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(iv) either entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.  
 
(viii) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group and the Company 

or an entity related to the Group and the Company. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring 
employers are also related to the plan.  

 
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (1).  

 
(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant voting power in the entity. 

 

(d) Revenue recognition 

Revenue arising from activities is recognised when the activities are completed. 

 
Management fee received is recognised when management services are rendered. 
 
Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 
rate of interest applicable. 

 

 (e)  Income tax 

 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 

and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for 

all temporary differences that will result in taxable amounts in determining taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods when 

the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (taxable temporary differences). Deferred tax assets 

are generally recognised for all temporary differences that will result in amounts that are deductible in determining taxable 

profit (tax loss) of future periods when the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (deductible 

temporary differences) - but only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 

deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current 

assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which 

it expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the deferred tax liability to be settled, on the basis of tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 

4 TAXATION 

 No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements as there is no estimated assessable 

profits for the year.  (2018:Nil). 

 

 The company had no significant unprovided deferred taxation at 31 March 2019 and 2018 and for the years then ended. 

 

At 31 March 2019, the company has unused tax losses of HK$16,518,190 (2018:HK$14,860,738) available for offset 

against future profits.  No deferred tax assets has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.  

The losses may be carried forward indefinitely. 

 

5 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

 None of the directors received any remuneration for their services rendered to the company during the year.  (2018:Nil) 

  

6. INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 

   2018 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Unlisted ordinary shares, at cost 10,000 10,000 

 Amount due from subsidiary 3,166,825 3,321,393 

  3,176,825 3,331,393 

  ======== ======== 
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 Name of Principal Description Country of Percentage 

 subsidiary activity of shares held incorporation of equity held 

 

 HKCFP Holdings Education Ordinary Hong Kong 100% 

   and Development  shares 

   Limited 

 

 Statement pursuant to Paragraph 18(4) of the Tenth Schedule of the Companies Ordinance. 

 

No group financial statements are prepared as the directors are of opinion that it would involve expense and delay out of 

proportion to the value to the members. 

 

 The following net aggregate amounts of profit/(loss) of the subsidiary has not been dealt with in the company’s accounts: 

 

   2018 

  HK$ HK$ 

 The net aggregate amount of the subsidiary's 

 profit/(loss) for the year 40,031 (303,212) 

 Add: Post-acquisition loss brought forward (3,560,310) (3,257,098) 

 Net aggregate amount retained by the subsidiary (3,520,279) (3,560,310) 

  ======== ======== 

 

The subsidiary company’s financial statements had been audited by W. M. Moo, Certified Public Accountant. 

 

No qualification is contained in the report of the auditor of the subsidiary on its accounts for the year ended 31 March 

2019. 

 

7. AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 

 The advances are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 

 

 

8. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM FUNCTIONS AND ACTIVITIES 

     2018 

  Income Expenses 

  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 

 Deficit on Education Board 260,600 919,179 (658,579) (852,471) 

 Surplus/(Deficit) on Editorial Board 149,905 156,258 (6,353) 52,141 

 Surplus on Board of Conjoint  

  Examination 1,373,500 341,552 1,031,948 514,521 

 Surplus on Board of Vocational                 

  Training 505,250 17,173 488,077 376,001 

 Surplus on Specialty Board 1,001,500  366,471           635,029             659,285 

  3,290,755 1,800,633 1,409,122 749,477 

   ====== ====== ====== ===== 

 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm’s length 

basis, are summarised as follows: 

   2018 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Management fee income 3,100,000 2,850,000 

    ========   ======== 

 

10. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 25 October 2019. 
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                 File No. 22/14876267 

HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2017/2019 

 HK$ 

 

Loss per accounts 1,665,631 

 

Less: Sundry expenses                                                                                                        2,600 

 Loss on exchange difference                                                                                      5,579 

 

Adjusted loss 1,657,452 

     ======== 

Statement of loss 

 

Loss brought forward 14,860,738 

Add: Loss for the year  1,657,452 

Loss carried forward 16,518,190 

 ======== 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 
 
25 October 2019 
  

W. M. Moo, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other committee members and 

officials of the Association, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the company’s financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows of the Company for the year.  In preparing these 

financial statements, we have: 

a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with section 383 of the Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2012, for the preparation 

of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial statements 

are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Ordinance.  

We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 

and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other 

relevant records and related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been made 

available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards require 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

   

8. We confirm that none of the directors received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to S383 of the Company 

Ordinance during the year. 

 

 

For and on behalf  

of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

 

   
________________________ ______________________ 
Chairman  Hon Treasurer 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD  

The Executive Board has pleasure in submitting its report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 

March 2019. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the Foundation is to promote, encourage and assist, for the public benefit, research and education on 

family medicine. 

 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the Foundation for the year are set out on page 5 of the financial statements. 

 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

The Executive Board members during the year were: 

 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (Chairman) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia (Vice-Chairman)  (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 

Dr. Wong Chi Wai, William (Hon Secretary)  

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai (Hon Treasurer) 

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus (Resigned on 16 December 2018) 

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok (Resigned on 16 December 2018) 

Dr. Liang Jun (Resigned on 16 December 2018) 

Dr. Ng Ventura, Lorna (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 

Dr. Ngan Po Lun (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 

 

In accordance with Article 52 of the Foundation's Articles of Association, all Executive Board members shall retire from the Board 

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 

 

INTERESTS OF EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

Saved as disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the Foundation was a party and in 

which a member of the Executive Board had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or 

at any time during the year. 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the Foundation a party to any arrangements to enable the members of the Executive Board of the 

Foundation to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of, the Foundation or any other 

body corporate. 

 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the Foundation were entered into or existed during the 

year. 

 

AUDITOR 

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs W. M. Moo who retires and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

On behalf of the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

Hong Kong, 25 October 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

Opinion 

 

I have audited the financial statements of HKCFP Foundation Fund (“the Foundation”) set out on pages 5 to 11, 

which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income, 

statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Foundation as at 31 

March 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong 

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Foundation in accordance with the HKICPA’s 

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion. 

 

Other information 

 

The Executive Board of the Foundation is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all 

information included in the Executive Board’s report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s 

report thereon. 

 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing 

to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Executive Board and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 

Statements 

 

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in 

accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal 

control as the Executive Board determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the Executive Board is responsible for assessing the Foundation’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless the Executive Board either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to cease operations, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Foundation’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit.  I also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

-  

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Foundation’s internal control. 

-  

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the Executive Board. 

-  

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Executive Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If I conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.  My conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Foundation to cease to continue as a going concern. 

-  

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a matter that achieves 

fair presentation. 

 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during 

my audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

W. M. Moo 

Certified Public Accountant 

 

Hong Kong, 25 October 2019 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

 

 

   2018 

 

 Note HK$ HK$ 

 

Donation received    2,188,328 3,675,261 

Bank interest income  21,702 15,720 

Investment income  164,028 149,495 

Surplus on exchange difference                                                             -                           33,571 

  

 3 (d) 2,374,058 3,874,047 

  -------------- -------------- 

Less: Expenses  

 

Advertising  -      120,000  

Audit fee  6,500 6,500 

Bank charges   2,065 3,355 

Legal and professional fee   565 1,374 

Loss on exchange difference  92,651 - 

Management fee  900,000 650,000 

Sponsor expense   5,000                  47,008 

 

  1,006,781 828,237 

  ------------ ---------- 

 

Surplus for the year  1,367,277 3,045,810 

  =======   ======= 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 

 

    2018 

 

 Note  HK$ HK$ 

ASSETS 

 

Non-current assets 

Available-for-sale investments 6  5,101,771 4,289,015 

 

Current assets  

Interest receivable                    204,478 328,209      

Amount due from related companies 7 21,409,363 19,434,268 

Cash at bank   12,099,005 12,703,092 

 

  33,712,846 32,465,569 

  --------------- ---------------- 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  6,500 126,500 

Amount due to a related company                                                                  2,500                    2,500 

 

  9,000 129,000 

    ------ --------- 
 

Net current assets  33,703,846 32,336,569 

  _________ _________ 

 

  38,805,617 36,625,584 

  ======= ======= 

 

FOUNDATION’S FUND 

 

Balance brought forward  34,284,600 31,238,790 

 

Surplus for the year  1,367,277 3,045,810 

 

Investment revaluation reserve 8  3,153,740  2,340,984 

  

                                                       38,805,617 36,625,584 

                                                   =======           ======= 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
______________________  ______________________ 

Chairman  Hon Treasurer 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

 

  2018 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results for the year 1,367,277 3,045,810 

Bank interest received                                                                       (21,702)  (15,720) 

 

Operating results before working capital changes 1,345,575` 3,030,090 

Decrease in accounts receivable  123,731   (175,209) 

Increase in accruals  (120,000) 121,000 

Increase in receipt in advance                                                           -                   (60,000) 

 

Cash generated from operations 1,349,306 2,915,881 

Bank interest received  21,702  15,720 

 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,371,008 2,931,601 

 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advances to related companies (1,975,095) (2,263,050) 

 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (604,087) 668,551 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL 12,703,092 12,034,541 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 12,099,005 12,703,092 

 ======== ======== 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1. LEGAL STATUS 

The Foundation is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital.  The liability of each of its members, 

in the event of its being wound up while he is a member or within one year after he ceased to be a member for payment 

of the debts and liabilities of the Foundation contracted before he ceases to be a member, and costs, charges and 

expenses of winding up and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, is limited to an 

amount not exceeding HK$50. 

 

2. GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Foundation is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the Company’s registered office is 

Room 803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activities of the Foundation is to promote, encourage and assist, for the public benefit, research and 

education on family medicine. 

 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Available-for-sale investments 

 Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets in listed equity securities that are designated as 

available for sale.  After initial recognition, available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value, with gains or 

losses recognized as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is 

determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the 

statement of comprehensive income. 

 

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, and investments in a 

subsidiary and an associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 

an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or 

group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If an estimated recoverable amount is 

lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased 

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined 

had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an 

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

(c) Related parties 

For the purpose of these financial statements, related party includes a person and entity as defined below:  

(1) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Foundation if that person:  

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Foundation or of a parent of the Foundation;  

(ii) has control over the Foundation; or  

(iii) has joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity or has significant voting power in it.   

 

(2) An entity is related to the Foundation if any of the following conditions applies:  

(i) the entity and the Foundation are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary 

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).  

(ii) either entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a member of a group of which the 

other entity is a member).  

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of a third entity.  

(iv) either entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.  

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Foundation or an 

entity related to the Foundation. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are 

also related to the plan.  

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (1).  
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(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant voting power in the entity 

 

(d) Revenue recognition 

 Donation received is recognised on receipt basis. 

 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 

rate of interest applicable. 

 

(e) Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.  Monetary assets 

and liabilities in foreign currencies at the year end are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the statement of financial 

position date.  All exchange differences are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

4. TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements as the Foundation is exempt from 

tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. 

 

5. EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION 

None of the Executive Board members received any remuneration for their services rendered to the Foundation during 

the year.  (2018:Nil) 

 

6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 

   2018 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 Listed equity securities, at market value  

 At 1 April 4,289,015 3,422,010 

 Surplus on changes in fair value 

 charged to equity  812,756  867,005 

 At 31 March 5,101,771 4,289,015 

  ======== ======== 
 

The available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value which is determined by reference to the bid price quoted 

in an active market. 

 

 

7. AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 

 

  Amount outstanding Maximum amount outstanding 

  At 31.3.2018 At 31.3.2019 during the year 

  HK$  HK$        HK$ 

 

 The Hong Kong College of 

   Family Physicians 1,617,328 1,753,228 1,753,228 

 HKCFP Education Limited 17,816,940 19,656,135 19,656,135 

  19,434,268 21,409,363  

   ======== ========  

 

 The advances are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 
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8. INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE 

   2018 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Balance at April 1 2,340,984 1,473,979 

 

 Add: Surplus on changes in fair value of investment                                      812,756                        867,005 

 

 Balance at March 31 3,153,740 2,340,984 

     ====== ===== 

 

 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Material transactions with related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm’s 

length basis, are summarised as follows: 

 
  2018 
 
 HK$ HK$ 
 
Management fee paid 900,000                       650,000 

                                                                                                            =====                  ===== 
 

 

10 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

These financial statements were approved by the Executive Board Members on 25 October 2019. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



126 

 

HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 
 

25 October 2019 

 

W. M. Moo, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other board members and officials 

of the Foundation, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the Foundation’s financial statements 

for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Foundation and of the results and cash flows of the Foundation for the year.  In preparing these 

financial statements, we have: 

a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with section 383 of the Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the 

preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the 

financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Ordinance.  

We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other 

relevant records and related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been made 

available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 

require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the Executive Board members received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to 

S383 of the Company Ordinance during the year. 

 

9. We confirm that the market value of the investment securities held by the company as at the statement of financial position 

date amounted to HK$5,101,771. 

 

 

For and on behalf  

of the Executive Board  

 

 
 
 
  
  
_______________________ _______________________ 
Chairman  Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 
 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2019. 

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the company’s registered office is Rooms 803-

4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activity of the company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of family medicine. 

 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the company for the year are set out on page 5 of the financial statements. 

 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 

 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 5 to the financial statements. 

 

DIRECTORS 

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were: 

 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David (Chairman) 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia (Vice-Chairman) (Appointed on 16 December 2018) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai (Hon-Treasurer)  

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus  (Resigned on 16 December 2018)  

 

In accordance with Article 9 of the company's Articles of Association, all directors shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves 

for re-election. 

 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS 

Saved as disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the company or its holding 

company was a party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 

year or at any time during the year. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the company or its holding company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the company 

to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or any other body corporate. 

 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the company were entered into or existed during the year. 

 

AUDITOR 

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs W. M. Moo Certified Public Accountant, as auditor 

of the Company. 

 

 
On behalf of the Board 

 
 
 
 

Chairman 

HONG KONG, 25 October 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

Opinion 

I have audited the financial statements of HKCFP Holdings and Development Limited (“the Company”) set out on pages 

5 to 12, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of income and 

retained earnings and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 

2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong 

Financial Reporting Standards for Private Entities (“HKFRS for PE”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 

Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. My 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code 

of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with the Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

opinion. 

 

Other information 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises all information 

included in the directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. 

 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude 

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact.  I have nothing to report 

in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 

with HKFRS for PE issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as 

the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
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decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit.  I also: 

 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal control. 

 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the directors. 

 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If I conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.  My conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a matter that achieves fair 

presentation. 

 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my 

audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

W. M. Moo 

Certified Public Accountant 

 

Hong Kong, 25 October 2019 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

   2018 

 

 Note HK$ HK$ 

 

Course income   2(c) 1,172,383 834,993 

Bank interest income   191  42 

 

  1,172,574 835,035 

    -------------   ----------- 

 

Less: Expenses 

 

Audit fee  6,500 6,500 

Bank charges  520 1,090 

Business registration fee  2,250 2,250 

Cleaning expenses  360                         -   

Depreciation  48,006 45,886 

Legal and professional fee  2,205 2,100 

Management fee  1,000,000 1,000,000 

Printing and stationery  3,659 11,167 

Rates and building management fee  44,526 44,526 

Repairs and maintenance  5,461 4,513 

Sundry expenses                                                      -  465 

Telephone and fax  4,990 4,776 

Utilities                                                                                   7,334                    8,126 

 

  1,125,811 1,131,399  

  ------------- -------------  

 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation  46,763 (296,364)  

 

Taxation 3  (6,732)  (6,848)  

 

Net profit/(loss) for the year  40,031 (303,212)  

 

Retained earnings at start of the year  (3,560,310) (3,257,098)  

 

Retained earnings at end of the year      (3,520,279)     (3,560,310) 

  =======   ======= 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 

 

   2018 

 

 Note HK$ HK$ 

ASSETS 

 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 5 124,284 155,290 

 

Current assets 

Prepayment and deposit paid    60 60 

Amount due from a related company 6 2,500   2,500 
Cash at bank and on hand  150,733 317,514 

 

  153,293 320,074 

  ---------- ---------- 

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  19,787 51,169  

Receipt in advance  354,000 374,000  

Amount due to holding company  3,166,825 3,321,393  

Amount due to a related company 7 92,079 130,679  

Provision for taxation                                                            6,698                       6,698  

 

  3,639,389 3,883,939 

  ------------ ------------ 

 

Net current liabilities  (3,486,096) (3,563,865) 

  ________ ________ 

 

Total assets less current liabilities  (3,361,812) (3,408,575) 

 

Non-current liabilities 

Deferred tax 8  148,467  141,735 

 

  (3,510,279) (3,550,310) 

  ======= ======= 

 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES                                                                                                            

 

Share capital  9 10,000 10,000 

 

Retained earnings   (3,520,279) (3,560,310) 

 

  (3,510,279) (3,550,310) 

  ======= ======= 
 
 
 
 
 
                             

_______________________                     ______________________   
Chairman  Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 

 

 

 

   2018 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results before taxation  46,763 (296,364) 

Depreciation  48,006 45,886 

Bank interest received     (191)                   (42) 

 

Operating results before working capital changes  94,578 (250,520)  

Decrease in prepayment and deposits paid  -   68,000 

Decrease in accruals  (31,382) (2,483)  

Increase/(Decrease) in receipt in advance                                (20,000)  96,600  

 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations  43,196 (88,403) 

Bank interest received   191  42 

 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 43,387 (88,361) 

  ---------- ---------- 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advance to a holding company  (154,568) (63,386) 

Net advance from/(to) a related company  (38,600) (10,440)  

 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES                  (193,168) (73,826) 

  --------- --------- 

 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Payment to acquire property, plant and equipment (17,000) (153,000) 

    ---------   ---------- 

 

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (166,781) (315,187) 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL  317,514 632,701 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 150,733 317,514 

 ====== ====== 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.  The address of the company’s registered office is Room 

803-4, 8/F., HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong. 

 

The principal activity of the Company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of Family 

Medicine. 

 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard for 

Private Entities (HKFRS for Private Entities) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the 

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.  They have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.   

 

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 

condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as 

repairs and maintenance costs, is normally charged to the statement of income and retained earnings in the period in 

which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in 

the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an 

additional cost of the asset. 

 

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset recognised in the statement of income and retained earnings is the 

difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. 

 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis at the following rates to write off the costs of the assets over their 

estimated useful lives: 

 

 Furniture, fixture and equipment 15% p.a. 

 Leasehold improvement 15% p.a. 

 

(b)        Impairment of non-financial assets, other than inventories 

At each reporting date, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets, and investments in a 

subsidiary and an associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 

an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or 

group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If an estimated recoverable amount is lower, 

the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately 

in profit or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is increased 

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had 

no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

(c)        Turnover 

Turnover represents course fees received. 

 

(d)        Revenue recognition 

Revenue arising from professional courses is recognised when received. 

 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective 

rate of interest applicable. 
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(e)       Income tax 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. 

 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements 

and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for 

all temporary differences that will result in taxable amounts in determining taxable profit (tax loss) of future periods when 

the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (taxable temporary differences). Deferred tax assets 

are generally recognised for all temporary differences that will result in amounts that are deductible in determining taxable 

profit (tax loss) of future periods when the carrying amount of the asset or liability is recovered or settled (deductible 

temporary differences) - but only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 

deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current 

assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which 

it expects the deferred tax asset to be realised or the deferred tax liability to be settled, on the basis of tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 

 (f)        Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern concept because the shareholders agree to 

provide adequate funds for the company to meet its liabilities as they fall due. 

 

3 TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements in view of the excess of the allowable 

losses brought forward over the estimated assessable profits for the year.  (2018:Nil) 

 

 The taxation charges is made up as follows: 

   2018 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 Deferred tax 

 Current year 6,732 6,848 

  ==== ==== 

 

The taxation on the company’s profit/(loss) before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the 

taxation rate in Hong Kong for the company as follows: 

 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 46,763 (296,364) 

     =====    ====== 

  

 Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% (2018:16.5%) 7,716 (48,900) 

 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 14,653 14,419 

 Tax effect of non-chargeable income (6,731) (6,848) 

 Addition to/(Utilisation of) unrecognised tax losses (8,906) 48,177 

 Taxation charge 6,732 6,848 

  ==== ==== 

 

4 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

 None of the directors received any remuneration for their services rendered to the company during the year.  (2018:Nil)  
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

  Furniture,  

  fixture and Leasehold  

  equipment improvement Total 

  HK$ HK$ HK$ 

 Cost  

 At 1.4.2018 635,626 864,345 1,499,971 

 Additions                                                                                            -                 17,000               17,000 

 At 31.3.2019 635,626 881,345 1,516,971 

  ---------- ---------- ------------

 Accumulated depreciation 

 At 1.4.2018 610,386 734,295 1,344,681 

 Charge for the year                                                                     22,506                    25,500            48,006 

 At 31.3.2019 632,892 759,795 1,392,687 

  ---------- ---------- ------------ 

 Net book value 

 At 31.3.2019 2,734 121,550 124,284 

  ===== ====== ====== 

 At 31.3.2018 25,240 130,050 155,290 

  ====== ====== ====== 

 

6 AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 

   Maximum amount 
  Amount outstanding outstanding during 
  At 31.3.2018 At 31.3.2019 the year 
  HK$ HK$ HK$ 
 HFCFP Foundation     
 Fund    2,500                                 2,500                                       2,500 
  ====                                  ====                                       
  
 The advance is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. 
 

 

7 AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 

 

 The advance is unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 

 

 

8 DEFERRED TAX 

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a principal taxation 

rate of 16.5%.  (2018:16.5%) 

 

 The deferred tax liabilities account is as follows:  2018 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 At 1 April 141,735 134,887 

 Charge to statement of income and retained  

  earnings for the year  6,732  6,848 

 

 At 31 March 148,467 141,735 

  ====== ====== 

 

At 31 March 2019, the company has unused tax losses of HK$2,943,076 (2018:HK$2,997,049) available for offset 

against future profits.  No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to unpredictability of future profit streams. 
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9 SHARE CAPITAL 

   2018 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 Issued and fully paid: 

  10,000 ordinary shares 10,000 10,000 

    =====       ===== 

 

  

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm’s 

length basis, are summarised as follows: 

    2018 

 

   HK$  HK$ 

 

 Management fee paid   1,000,000 1,000,000 

   ======= ======= 

 

11 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY  

The company is a subsidiary of HKCFP Education Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, which is also 

regarded by the directors as being the company’s ultimate holding company. 

 

 

12 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 25 October 2019. 
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File No. 22/33523051 

HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2018/2019 

 

 HK$ 

 

Profit per accounts 46,763 

 

Add: Depreciation                                                                                                                               48,006 

 

  94,769 

 

Less: Depreciation allowance 5,542 

 Commercial building allowance (Sch.1)                                                                               35,254 

 

Assessable profits         53,973 

                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                             

Less: Loss set-off (53,973) 

 

Net assessable profits - 

  ===== 

 

Statement of loss 

 

Loss b/f  2,997,049 

 

Less: Profit for the year                                                                                                                  (53,973) 

 

Loss c/f  2,943,076 

  ======== 

 

Depreciation allowance 

  Total 

  20% Pool allowance 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

W.D.V. b/f          27,709 
 
 
A.A                                                                                                                  5,542                             5,542 
 ==== 
  
W.D.V. c                                                                                                        22,167 
 =====  
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  File No. 22/33523051  
  Sch. 1  
 
Commercial building allowance 
        HK$ 
 
Deemed cost of construction b/f 864,345 
   
Additions                                                                                                                            17,000 
 
Deemed cost of construction c/f 881,345 
  ====== 
 
Residue value b/f 613,261 
 
Additions 17,000 
 
A.A. (4%)  35,254 
 
Residue value c/f 595,007 
  ====== 
 
Additions to property, plant and equipment  
 
Leasehold improvement 
 
HKCSS WC Office Lobby construction                                                                           17,000 
  ===== 
@ Ranking for commercial building allowance 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

25 October 2019 

 

W. M. Moo, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other committee members and 

officials of the Association, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the company’s financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows of the Company for the year.  In preparing these 

financial statements, we have: 

 

a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong; 

d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with section 383 of the Companies 

Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the preparation 

of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial statements 

are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Ordinance.  

We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 

and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions 

undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other relevant records and 

related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been made available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards require 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. 

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the directors received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to S383 of the Company 

Ordinance during the year. 

 

 

For and on behalf  

of the Board of Directors 

               

 

                       

                             

_______________________ _______________________ 

Chairman Hon. Treasurer 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

香 港 家 庭 醫 學 學 院 

The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians 

Room 803-4, 8th Floor, HKAM Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong 

Tel : (852) 2871 8899   Fax : (852) 2866 0616 

Homepage : www.hkcfp.org.hk 

http://www.hkcfp.org.hk/

